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Ronson Europe N.V.
Letter from the CEO

To our shareholders

The year 2016 was another year characterized bgdrinends in the global economy. The Polish econcomginued to
generate growth and general stability, despiteirtiraigration crisis in Europe which increased tensiovithin many
European countries and increased popularity of e of separation from European Union (includBrgat Britain

deciding to exit from EU community) as well as desgontinuing instability in Eastern Ukraine, whianfolded

during 2014 and resulted, amongst other mattertsieirgrowing economic isolation of Russia, an intgatr Polish trade
partner. In 2016, the Polish economy grew by apprately 2.8%, which was lower than in 2015 and Iowean

expected, while unemployment continued to fall fpraximately 8.3% with many of the larger Polishies

maintaining rates around 3.0%. According to mangnemists, the Polish economy is expected to grovatgther
3.0% in 2017.

During 2016, the residential market in Poland corgd to demonstrate growth both on the demand antdeosupply
side. In 2016, construction commenced on 173,000 residential units in Poland, which is an increa$e3%
compared to 2015. The total number of building permranted during 2016 amounted to 212,000, winels 12%
higher than the year before. However, an increasipgply of residential apartments becoming avadlatla number of
major Polish metropolitan areas beginning in |d&i@2resulted in the overall stabilization of restiade prices observed
in 2015 as well as in last year.

Highlights for Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Companyrohg 2016 include:

- the pre-sale of 821 units which was slightly bektw Company’s plans for 2016 and represented ttense
highest yearly output in the Company’s history;

- delivery of 781 units to our customers, which ressilby over 12% better than the previous recowtllef
2015;

- completion of construction works on 7 projects hasg in the receipt of permits for occupancy fg833 units
(by over 28% more than during record high 2015);

- commencement of construction of 7 projects (EsprégsCity Link I, Miasto Moje |, Nova Krolikarnid-V,
Chilli IV, Panoramika 11l and Mtody Grunwald lllyepresenting a total of 921 units (very similar tn@mto
record high result achieved during 2015);

- afurther strengthening of Ronson’s brand nameffasdable quality) resulting from its overall agties;

- a significant transaction executed with one of @mmpany’s major shareholders, in which the Compsoig
project Nova Krolikarnia for PLN 175 million. Pawf the price paid for the project was settled viith price
paid by the Company for the purchase of its shéamearly 40%). The transaction allowed the Company t
generate substantial profits from the sale of tbea\Krolikarnia project at an attractive gross narg

During 2016, in an environment of increasing coritipet, the Company sold 821 units with a total wabf PLN 365.4
million, while in 2015 the Company sold 906 unitghva total value of PLN 338.6 million. Net inconfier 2016
amounted to PLN 64.5 million, while for 2015 ther@many reported a net profit amounting to PLN 19ilion. It is
important to notice that the 2016 financial resalts exceptional to some extend due to recognitfadhe profits from
the sale of the Nova Krdlikarnia project during tharth quarter of 2016 (instead of recognitiorpoffits from sales of
apartments in this project over the next few years)

We continue to believe that in the medium and ltergn, the residential Polish market holds greatrpse. Studies
continue to suggest that the living standards ef Boles is far below the European average. Accgrtbnsome
estimates, as much as over 4 million new units makd to be built during the coming years in ofdePoland to reach
the EU27 average number of units per 1,000 inhatsitdn addition, the ongoing migration of Polistizens from rural
to urban areas will create further demand for a tewsing stock. With current annual production togpout at
approximately 170,000 units the long-term shortagehe residential market will remain pronounced ahould
continue to create strong residential developmppbdunities.
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Letter from the CEO

We believe the Company is in an advantageous paosit benefit from current market conditions. Wéiche the
Company currently enjoys the following advantages:

- astrong capital structure allowing the Compangtést and finance new projects;

- apipeline of projects at attractive locations;

- the ability to increase and decrease the sizeiaridg of specific projects based on perceived madkenand,;
- a highly professional staff, and

- aknown brand in Warsaw and an emerging brandhierd®olish cities.

The advantages mentioned above should give the @wmynihe opportunity to expand the scale of its apens and
sales, and ultimately to rank amongst the larggidestial development companies in Poland.

We wish to thank all of our shareholders for thesntinued support and confidence in our abilitycéary out our
corporate vision.

Sincerely,
Shraga Weisman
CEO
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Ronson Europe N.V.
Supervisory Board Report

Supervisory Board report

We are pleased to present the Financial Staternéfenson Europe N.V. for the financial year 2046;ompanied by
the report of the Management Board. Ernst & Yourmgduntants LLP have audited the Financial Statesnant
issued an unqualified Auditor's Report. We recormuiitie shareholders to adopt the Financial Statesvaenpresented.

We concur with the Management Board’s proposahaksrt up on page 131 to allocate the net profitHeryear 2016
amounting to PLN 64,531 thousand to Retained egsnidpon the proposal by the Management Board siaghproval
by the Supervisory Board, the Extraordinary Genétakting of Shareholders held on 10 August 2016ramad a
dividend payment of PLN 21.8 million equal to PLNDO® per share. The dividend payment was made ofugdist
2016.

Supervision

During 2016, there were frequent Supervisory Baand Management Board meetings and conference daits)g
which, among other topics, the following items wdiscussed:

e the Company’s business strategy;

» the dividend policy;

» the Company’s financial position;

. potential sources of long term capital, includiaguance of long-term bonds;

« aperformance review of the Management Board aatliation of the Company’s remuneration policy;

e the corporate governance structure of the Company;

. risk management and processes undertaken during#ng

* an evaluation and re-appointment of the Companydtars;

» the transaction executed on 23 December 2016 wi¢had the Company’s principal shareholders, whertsey
Company sold one of its major development projaats whereby the Company acquired 108,349,187 ofnits
shares (for more details, reference is made t@itectors’ Report on page 17); and

» the financial results and other related issues.

The Supervisory Board (including its committees) mleven times to discuss, among other thingsfuhetioning of
the Management Board. The Board (Audit committée) anet with the external auditors without the pres of the
Management Board. All Supervisory Board meetindd ite2016 were attended by the majority of the rbers of the
Supervisory Board.

Audit Committee

The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Come@tare to supervise, monitor and advise the ManageBoard and
Supervisory Board on all matters related to risknagement, audit, control and compliance to relevarancial
legislation and regulations. The Audit Committes laéso been involved in the process of assessmgéiformance
and costs of the external auditors, with whom thamittee met four times during the year.

Remuneration and Nominating Committee

It is the primary task of the Remuneration and Nwmating Committee to: (i) propose to the SupervisBoard

remuneration of the members of the Management Baaoluding a review and monitoring of the Groupal

remuneration policy, (ii) advise the SupervisoryaBbon matters relating to the nominations of t&ipervisory and
Management Board members. The Remuneration andridbintg Committee regularly reviews the Supervisdoard

profile, its effectiveness and composition. The odttee also reviews the performance of the memiodrshe

Management Board.

Special Committee (reviewing conditions of the teattion executed on 23 December 2016 with one o th
Company’s principal shareholders)

The Supervisory Board decided to create the Spéliamhmittee and to appoint as the members of thei&lpe
Committee Mr. Reuven Sharoni, Mr. Przemystaw Kowslicand Mr. Yair Shilhav, being the independent rhem of
the Supervisory Board (who were identified by theaRls as not having any conflict in relation to domtemplated
Transaction, within the meaning of article 20.2tloé Articles of Association) and to ask the Spe€ammittee to

1
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review the contemplated Transaction from a busjrf@sancial, contractual, legal, regulatory andestherspectives, as
it determined appropriate, whereby the Special Ciitaen was entitled to instruct and consult legalirsel and

financial advisors, as well as valuation consuftafallowing which the Special Committee providée tSupervisory

and Management Boards with a recommendation irectg the proposed Transaction.

Internal Auditor

The Supervisory Board maintains an internal audiothe Company, who - upon request — examinevagit control
procedures within the Company in specific areas.

Financial statements

The Management Board has prepared the Financitdr¢ats for the year ended 31 December 2016. Tihreswial
statements were discussed at a Supervisory Boagtingattended by the auditors.

Composition of the Supervisory Board

During the Annual General Meeting of Shareholdels fon 20 April 2016, Mr Amos Luzon was appointeember of
the Supervisory Board for a term of four years.tat same date, Mr Arie Mientkavich stepped dowa asember of
the Supervisory Board.

During the Annual General Meeting of Shareholdezkl ton 20 April 2016, Mr Reuven Sharoni was re-apigal
member of the Supervisory Board for a subsequemt & four years.

Composition of the Management Board

During the Annual General Meeting of Shareholdedsl lon 20 April 2016, Messrs Shraga Weisman, Torhaginski
and Andrzej Gutowski were re-appointed members haf Management Board and managing directors A for a
subsequent term of four years.

During the Annual General Meeting of Shareholdestd lon 20 April 2016, Mr Roy Vishnovizki was apptad
member of the Management Board and managing dir&tior a term of four years. On that same date, Ydsef
Shaked stepped down as a member of the Manageroard Bf the Company.

On 18 January 2017, Mr. Roy Vishnovizki submitteid hesignation from the position of the member bé t
Management Board and managing director B with imeteceffect.

Upcoming Extraordinary General Meeting

During the upcoming Extraordinary General MeetirigSbareholders (1 March 2017) it will be proposedappoint
Messrs Erez Tik and Alon Haver as members of thedgament Board and managing directors B for a terfour
years. Messrs Tik and Haver will replace Mr Ereskavitz who will step down as member of the ManagenBoard
as per the date of the upcoming General Meetirghafeholders and Mr Roy Vishnovizki who stepped niénom his
position in January 2017. Moreover, in the samee&@dnMeeting of Shareholders it will be proposedappoint Ms
Mikhal Shapira, Mr Ofer Kadouri and Mr Alon Kadoa$ members of the Board of Supervisory Directorafterm of
four years, replacing Messrs Mark Segall, Yair I8l and Reuven Sharoni who all will step down ambers of the
Supervisory Board as per date of the General MgetfrShareholders. For more information referescmade to the
Shareholders Circular published by the Company 8nJdnuary 2017 with respect to the Extraordinarye®a
Meeting of Shareholders scheduled for 1 March 2017.

15 February 2017
For the Supervisory Board

Mark Segall,
Chairman
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Corporate Governance
Governance structure

The Company is a Dutch public company with a Igton the Warsaw Stock Exchange (‘WSE’). For thiasom, the
Company is subject to both Dutch and Polish ruresragulations regarding corporate governance.

Corporate Governance Code in the Netherlands

On 9 December 2003, the Dutch Corporate Govern@wamittee (‘the Committee’) released the Dutch ©oafe

Governance Code (‘the Code’). The Code containkiples and best practice provisions for managérbeards,

supervisory boards, shareholders and general ngsetifi shareholders, financial reporting, auditatisclosure,
compliance and enforcement standards. The Codegidarly reviewed. On 8 December 2016, the DutchpQate

Governance Code Monitoring Committee has publisae@vision of the Code. The most important charsyéhe

central role given to long-term value creation, dimel introduction of ‘company culture’ as a compuinef effective

corporate governance. In addition, the Code has hpdated in a number of other areas. Dutch listadpanies are
required to report in 2018 on compliance with tbeised Code in the 2017 financial year. The coodifor this is that
the revised Code must be enacted in Dutch law 720 he Management and Supervisory Boards will ssssiee

consequences of the revised Code for the Compatytake appropriate measures to duly comply withréhésed

Code in 2017.

Dutch companies listed on a regulated stock exahamthe EU/EER are required under Dutch law teld&e in their
annual reports whether or not they apply the pioris of the Code and, if not, to explain the reasahy. The Code
provides that if a company's general meeting ofedi@ders explicitly approves the corporate goveceastructure and
policy and endorses the explanation for any demiatiom the best practice provisions, such compaitiypbe deemed
to have complied with the Code.

The Company acknowledges the importance of googotate governance. The Management and Supervisoayd8
have reviewed the Code, and generally agree vgtputport. The Boards have taken and will take fanther steps
they consider required and appropriate to furtmplément the Code and any Dutch law corporate gewvere
requirements and improve the Company’s corporatem@ance features. This is very much a living psscét is the
Company’s policy to discuss the topic annually wilte shareholders and schedule it for this purgos¢he annual
general meeting of shareholders each financial. yea topic has been part of the agenda for eachrgemeeting of
shareholders since 2007.

The corporate governance policy and the corporatergpance framework of the Company were approvedh first
time by the shareholders in 2007 at the occasigheofPO of the Company.

Exceptions to the application of the Dutch CorpoeaGovernance Code:

The Company endorses the Code and has appliedetheant best practice provisions of the Dutch Coafmo
Governance Code, except for the provisions sebelaiw.

Il. 2.4 If options are granted, they shall, in aayent, not be exercised in the first three yeaterahe date of
granting. The number of options to be granted shalldependent on the achievement of challengirgetarspecified
beforehand.

In 2014 and 2016, the Company has granted to selenembers of management and key personnel a fovariable

remuneration, which are technically not optionsatgjuire shares but the cash value of such varraoheineration is
determined by the development of the Company’seshece after the date of granting (Phantom StoEkg rationale
is to align the interests of management and kegqgmerel with the interests of shareholders. Referémanade to the
Remuneration Report (pages 13 and 14). This varigdphuneration has been granted unconditionallyiraependent
on the achievement of targets. The Company shathmend these existing agreements to comply withigion Il 2.4

of the Code (to the extent it would be deemed apple). Considering that the Company’s stage oélbgment and its
intention to create a simple alignment of interegtsnanagement and shareholders, the Company rebtadipply this

provision (to the extent deemed applicable) indineent financial year.
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Governance structure (cont'd)

lll. 2.1 The supervisory board members, with tkeeption of not more than one person, shall bepeddent within
the meaning of best practice provision Ill. 2.2.

Our Supervisory Board currently consists of fivenmbers, of which three are independent within theumrgy of the
Dutch Corporate Governance Code. Moreover, the @omip articles of association state that the Supery Board
shall have at least two independent Supervisoryddaectors.

lll. 6.5 The terms of reference of the supervidoogrd shall contain rules on dealing with conflicdkinterest and
potential conflicts of interest between managenimard members, supervisory board members and thernek
auditor on the one hand and the company on theroffiee terms of reference shall also stipulate Whi@nsactions
require the approval of the supervisory board. Teenpany shall draw up regulations governing ownigrgif, and
transactions in securities by management or superyiboard members, other than securities issuethéy ‘own’

company.

The Company believes that the restrictions undectbsecurities law are sufficient to govern the ewhip of, and
transactions in, securities by Supervisory and Mans&nt Board members. Implementing additional ic&tns would

potentially harm its ability to attract and enstlre continued services of Supervisory and ManageBeard members
and the Company therefore believes that applyirsglt@st practice provision is not in its best iagtr

IV. 3.1 Meetings with analysts, presentations talgsts, presentations to investors and institutlonaestors and
press conferences shall be announced in advandbeooompany’s website and by means of press redeBRsevision
shall be made for all shareholders to follow theseetings and presentations in real time, for exanyyl means of web
casting or telephone lines. After the meetingsptlesentations shall be posted on the company'siteeb

Considering the Company’s size, it would createxeessive burden to provide facilities which enablareholders to
follow in real time the meetings and presentaticeferred to in the best practice provision. The @any will ensure
that presentations are posted on its website immegliafter the meetings in question.

Transactions with a conflict of interest

During the financial year 2016, with exception bé ttransaction executed on 23 December 2016 (asiloled on
page 17), no transactions as referred to in besttipe provisions 11.3.4, 111.6.3 and 111.6.4 togiace involving a
conflict of interest relating to directors, supsiiy board members or natural and/or legal perkolting at least 10%
of the shares in the company. Applying best-pracpicovisions 11.3.2, 11.3.3, 111.6.1 and [I.6.2 waherefore not
relevant.

Statement referred to in the Decree of 20 March 20&tb 154, determining the further requirementsna@rning the
contents of annual reports

Based on Section 391 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civdd€ (Act of 9 July 2004, Stb 370, to amend Book€) and the
Royal Decree of 20 March 2009, limited liabilityrapanies, whose shares — to put it briefly — atedi®n a regulated
stock exchange, must include a statement in theiua reports about their compliance with the pples and best
practices of the Code.

In light of the foregoing the Company confirms thrathe year under review, it did not comply full§th the provisions
of the Code, nor does it intend to comply during thurrent financial year or the next financial ydss reasons for
doing so are explained in the paragraphs above.
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Governance structure (cont'd)

Corporate Governance Code in Poland

The principles of corporate governance applicabléhe companies listed on the WSE have been s#t forthe
document called ‘Code of Best Practice for WSE ddsCompanies’ (the ‘WSE Corporate Governance Rulés’
2016 the governing version of the ‘Code of Bestcica for WSE Listed Companies’ was the one thaered into
force on 1 January 2016 (the ‘WSE Corporate Goveadules 2016’) which was adopted by the SupenviBoard
of the WSE on 13 October 2015 and was entitledt'Beactices for WSE Listed Companies 2016’. Acaagti, the
Company as being listed on the WSE in 2016 wasestibp the principles of corporate governance sehfin the
WSE Corporate Governance Rules 2016 to the extentified under the Dutch law as stated below.

The WSE Corporate Governance Rules apply to corapdisted on the WSE, irrespective of whether starthpanies

are incorporated in Poland or outside of Polande MWSE Corporate Governance Rules 2016 consisted of
recommendations relating to best practices foedistompanies and best practices provisions relatinganagement
boards, supervisory board members and shareholdecsnnection with the WSE Corporate Governanckef0016

the companies listed on the WSE are required tolatis in their current reports continuous or inotdé non-
compliance with the best practices provisions angublish a detailed statement on any non-compdiavith the WSE
Corporate Governance Rules 2016 by way of a statesémitted with the company’s annual report (tfiearly
Compliance Statement’).

The Company intends, to the extent practicableptaply with all principles of the WSE Corporate @avance Rules.
However, certain principles apply to the Companjydo the extent permitted by Dutch law. Detailedormation

regarding non-compliance, as well as additionalanqgtions regarding partial compliance with cerfdi8E Corporate
Governance Rules 2016 due to incompatibilities viititch law, are included in the reports publishedam annual
basis, which are also available on the Companyssite (www.ronson.pl) and are being issued by wag ourrent

report. The Company makes all efforts to complyhvétl principles of both the Dutch Code and the W&&porate
Governance Rules and to enforce such corporatetsteuthat ensures the Company’s transparencyetontist possible
extent. The Company believes that its efforts agreciated by its stakeholders and that thesetseffuitl support the
Company’s growth and its reliability.

As stated above, the ‘new’ corporate governancecimies set forth in the WSE Corporate Governanoed2016
came into force on 1 January 2016. The Companwdst¢o further comply with its reporting obligat®uander Polish
law in accordance with its previous practice argtldise, as done previously, continuous or inciderd@a-compliance
with the corporate governance principles undeMt&E Corporate Governance Rules 2016 by means odrdweports
(also published on its website (www.ronson.pl)).

General Meeting of Shareholders

Per the Articles of Association* of the Companye #mnual General Meeting of Shareholders shalldbe \within six
months after the end of the financial year to de#th, among other matters: (i) the annual repar}’ gdoption of the
annual accounts, (iii) discussion of (any subshmihanges in) corporate governance, (iv) discassfaremuneration
policy for the Board of Managing Directors (“Managent Board”), (v) granting of discharge to the Mgement
Board for the management over the past financiat,y@i) discussion of remuneration of SupervisBoard members,
(vii) granting of discharge to the Supervisory Bbdor the supervision over the past financial ydsiij) policy on

additions to reserves and dividends, (ix) adoptbrthe profit appropriation, (x) (re)appointment members of the
Management Board and (xi) (re)appointment of mesbéthe Board of Supervisory Directors (“SuperwsBoard”).

Other General Meetings of Shareholders shall b hsloften as the Management Board or the Supeyvidoard

deems necessary. Shareholders representing ig¢inegate of at least one-tenth of the Companyisegsapital may
request the Management Board or the SupervisorydBtm convene a General Meeting of Shareholdeegingt
specifically the business to be discussed.

’ Most recently amended on 30 June 2011
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Issue of new shares

The Company shall only issue shares pursuant ®salution of the General Meeting or of another ocoape body
designated to do so by a resolution of the Gemdealting for a fixed period not exceeding five yedrse designation
must be accompanied by a stipulation as to the rumbshares that may be issued. The designatigneaeh time be
extended for a period of up to five years. The glesion may not be cancelled, unless the designgiifovides
otherwise. A decision by the General Meeting taiésshares or to designate another body to issuesshan only be
taken upon the proposal of the Management Boare.pfbposal is subject to the approval of the Supery Board.

Each shareholder shall have a pre-emptive right mispect to any share issue in proportion to ¢jggemate amount of
his shares, except if shares are issued for a asin-@onsideration or if shares are issued to erapkgf the Group.

Considering the interest in the Company held (ewtly) by its leading shareholder, Amos Luzon Depehtent and
Energy Group Ltd., holding (indirectly) 66.1% oktompany’s share capital and votes, the changentfol over the
Company is not possible without the consent an@lrement of this leading shareholder. In addititre leading
shareholder is represented both in the SuperviBoayd and in the Management Board of the Company.

Supervisory and Management Boards

The Company has a two-tier corporate governanagtsie, consisting of an executive Management Bdtrd
‘Management Board’) and a non-executive Supervi®ogrd (the ‘Supervisory Board’). The day-to-daynagement
and policy-making of the Company is vested in thankigement Board, under the supervision of the Sigoey
Board. There are currently four members of the Meanzent Board whose names are set out below. Ther8spry
Board supervises the Management Board and the Quorigpgeneral course of affairs and the businessnducts. It
also supports the Management Board with advicgehfiorming their duties the Supervisory Board mersitmust act
in accordance with the interests of the Companythedbusiness connected with it.

As of 1 January 2013 the Act on Management and 1Sigien (‘Wet Bestuur en Toezicht’) came into etfed/ith this
Act, statutory provisions were introduced to ensubmlanced representation of men and women in geamant boards
and supervisory boards of companies governed IsyAbi. Balanced representation of men and womeleésned to
exist if at least 30% of the seats are filled byhraad at least 30% are filled by women.

Ronson Europe N.V. has currently no seats takendsyen. However, at the upcoming Extraordinary Galndeeting

of Shareholders on 1 March 2017, a woman will beinated for appointment as member of the SuperyiBoard of

the Company. Since Ronson Europe N.V. does not lowith the law in this respect, it has looked itih@ reasons for
non-compliance. The Supervisory Board recognizesbémefits of diversity, including gender balandewever, the
Supervisory Board feels that gender is only oné giadiversity. Supervisory Board and Managemen&iBlomembers
will continue to be selected on the basis of wigleging experience, backgrounds, skills, knowledgk iasights. The
Supervisory Board continues to strive for more dhitg in both the Supervisory Board and Managenfourd. For

more information on the rules of the SupervisoryaBbplease refer to the profile of the Supervid®oard on Ronson
Europe N.V.'s website.
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Supervisory Board

The Articles of Association provide that the Compahall have a Supervisory Board consisting oast three and at
most seven persons of which at least two Supenvifirectors shall be independent. Supervisory Dirnex are
appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholdars foeriod of four years. After holding office fiire first period of
four years, Supervisory Directors are eligible flerelection for two additional terms of four yeaach. The General
Meeting of Shareholders shall establish the renatioer for each Supervisory Director.

Supervisory Board Committees

The Supervisory Board is supported by two comnittee

e the Audit Committee (comprising Mr Shilhav (chairyaMr Sharoni and Mr Segall)
e the Remuneration and Nominating Committee (compyisilr Luzon (chairman), Mr Shilhav and Mr Sharoni)

These committees are composed of members of ther@sqry Board with relevant experience. All contandts
operate under the overall responsibility of the Sujgory Board, in accordance with the best pracsiipulations of
the Dutch Corporate Governance Code.

Composition of the Supervisory Board

Mark Segall (age 54, US citizen, male), Chairman

Mr Mark Segall was appointed as a member of theeBtgnry Board of the Company on 28 September 20G¥re-
appointed on 24 June 2015. Mr Segall is the fournddfidron Corporate Advisors LLC, a corporate adviy and
mergers and acquisitions boutique, Kidron Capitdvidors LLC, a US registered broker dealer, andKifron
Opportunity Fund I, LLC, a small private equity turPrior to forming Kidron in 2003, he was the Guoed executive
officer of Investec Inc. Mr Segall serves as chainnef Global City Holdings N.V. (previously, i.entil 23 December
2016, a 39.8% shareholder of the Company) and enbtiard of directors of Bel Fuse Inc. His curresint as
Supervisory Director expires in 2019, but he wél fesigning from the Supervisory Board at the Exttmary General
Meeting of Shareholders on 1 March 2017.

Amos Luzon (age 54, Israeli citizen, male), Vice-&iman

Mr. Amos Luzon was appointed as a member of theeSigpry Board of the Company on 20 April 2016, asd
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Luzsrthie controlling holder of Amos Luzon Developmemnid

Energy Group Ltd. (previously U. Dori Group Ltd.)A( Luzon Group") as of 14 January 2016, followitige

acquisition of shares in A Luzon Group from Gazioiie Israel Development Ltd. As of 21 January 2@hé until

6 February 2017 Mr. Luzon served as the CEO of dzdn Group, and as of 16 August 2016 he serves a#éctor,

and as of 6 February 2017 as the Chairman of therdBof Directors of A. Luzon Group. His currentntels

Supervisory Board Director of the Company expire020. There is no conflict of interest betwees @ompany and
other business activities of Mr. Luzon.

Przemyslaw Kowalczyk (age 47, Polish citizen, male)

Mr Przemyslaw Kowalczyk was appointed as a memb#reoSupervisory Board on 30 June 2011 and reiapgbon
24 June 2015. Since 2010 Mr Kowalczyk is an inddpah business consultant and operates as finaaoidl
investment advisor to a range of small and mediaterprises in Poland. From 2002 to 2009, he was lmerof the
management board at Volkswagen Bank Polska Graugr. # that, from 1994 to 2002, Mr Kowalczyk wadtige in
the banking sector in both Switzerland and Polard] held various positions including the Head & Trreasury
Department with Bankgesellschaft Berlin (Polskal.SHis current term as Supervisory Director expiia 2019.
There is no conflict of interest between the Conypamd other business activities of Mr Kowalczyk.



Ronson Europe N.V.
Corporate Governance

Composition of the Supervisory Board (cont'd)

Reuven Sharoni (age 79, Israeli citizen, male)

Mr Reuven Sharoni was appointed as a member oSthervisory Board on 23 June 2008 and re-appoiote&0
April 2016. Mr Sharoni’s recent positions includeuty Manager and head of Non Life Arieh InsuraGoenpany
Ltd. from 1980 to 1984. In the years 1984 to 20@¥0acted as Deputy General Managing Director asma 2000 until
2002 as the General Managing Director of Arieh tasae Company Ltd. Since 2003, Mr Sharoni has la@eactive
chairman of Shirbit Insurance Company Ltd.. Hisreat term as Supervisory Director expires in 2d2@, he will be
resigning from the Supervisory Board at the Extlawary General Meeting of Shareholders on 1 Mai@h72 There is
no conflict of interest between the Company aneiobusiness activities of Mr Sharoni.

Yair Shilhav (age 58, Israeli citizen, male)

Mr Yair Shilhav was appointed as a member of thpeBrisory Board on 28 September 2007 and re-apgubioh 24
June 2015. From 2006 until 2015, Mr Shilhav wasGhairman of the Audit Committee. Mr Shilhav is niemof the
Supervisory Board and Chairman of the Audit Comemitbf Global City Holdings N.V. (previously, i.entil 23
December 2016, a 39.8% shareholder of the Comp&igge 2004, Mr Shilhav has been the owner of anbas
consulting office. Between 2000 and 2003, he waseaber of the executive directory committee of aldit firm,
Somekh Chaikin, a member of KPMG. Between 1995 20@83, he was the head of the Haifa branch of Somekh
Chaikin, of which he was partner from 1990 to 20PBor to becoming a partner at Somekh Chaikinwhe head of
the professional and finance department of the siime He was also the head of the accountancyltip@t Haifa
University between 1998 and 2002. His current tasmSupervisory Director expires in 2019, but hé lél resigning
from the Supervisory Board at the Extraordinary &ah Meeting of Shareholders on 1 March 2017. Thereo
conflict of interest between the Company and otheiness activities of Mr Shilhav.
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Management Board

The management of the Company is entrusted to thealjement Board under the supervision of the Sigoew
Board. The Articles of Association provide that thnagement Board shall consist of two or more rgamga
directors. Managing directors are appointed by @emeral Meeting of Shareholders. The ManagementdBshall

meet as often as a managing director requests tingeall resolutions by the Management Board shalladopted by
an absolute majority of the votes cast.

The Management Board as a whole is responsiblgh@rday-to-day management, including comprehenssle
management control, financing and regulatory coamgié.

The Company and its operating companies are orgdralong clear functional reporting lines. Througthiive Group,
corporate and operating accountabilities, rolesraggdonsibilities are in place.

Managing directors A and B

Per the Company’s Articles of Association, the Mgaraent Board shall consist of one or more manadgiregtors A
and may in addition consist of one or more managdingctors B. The Supervisory Board shall deterngirexisely the
number of managing directors and the precise numibm@anaging directors of a specific class.

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall grantrte of the managing directors A the title of ‘Chigtecutive
Officer’ who will be the President of the ManagemBpnard, and may also grant to one of the manadiiregtors A the
title of ‘Chief Financial Officer’ and other titled® managing directors A or managing directors B.

The Management Board shall represent the Compamg.atithority to represent the Company shall alsgdsted in
two managing directors among whom, if one or mornaging directors B are in office, at least onelldha a
managing director B.

Composition of the Management Board

Shraga Weisman (age 65, Israeli citizen, male)

On 10 October 2008, Mr Shraga Weisman was appoimsechanaging director A and President of the Mamegé
Board, for a term of four years and granted the t€hief Executive Officer’. On 20 April 2016, heas re-appointed
for another term of four years.

Mr Weisman served as ‘Chief Executive Officer’ alar Building Company Ltd. from 1997 until May 30@\shdar
Building Company Ltd., listed on the Tel-Aviv Stogkxchange since May 2007, is one of the largest estate
development companies in Israel focusing on resigleand commercial projects, hotels and proteetstbmmodation
projects. From 1990 to 1997, he was ‘Chief Exeeutdfficer’ of Natanya Tourism Development Compamhich
developed residential and infrastructure develogrpeoiects in Israel. Mr Weisman holds a BA titkerh Tel-Aviv
University, an MSC title from Technion, the Israkistitute of Technology, and is a certified realage appraiser in
Israel. His current term as Managing Director expiin 2020. Mr Weisman does not perform any a&wibther than
for the Company.
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Composition of the Management Board (cont'd)

Tomasz tapiski (age 40, Polish citizen, male)

On 23 June 2008, Mr tafski was appointed as managing director A and merobéne Management Board, for a
term of four years and granted the title ‘Chiefdfinial Officer’. On 20 April 2016, he was re-appeth for another
term of four years. Mr Lapgki is also a member of the management boards of sabsidiaries of the Company.

Between 2000 and 2008, Mr tapki worked in the investment banking division of iOredit Group in Warsaw
(formerly of HVB and of Bank Austria Creditanstak) in UniCredit CA IB Poland (formerly CA IB Finaiat
Advisers). His experience in investment bankindudes mainly M&A (mergers and acquisitions) trarnisars as well
as other corporate finance related assignmentsvdsealso responsible for equity capital marketdsations, including
the initial public offering of Ronson Europe N.Ve®re joining CA IB Financial Advisers, from 1998 2000, Mr
tapinski worked for the consulting company Central Ewdpust. Mr tapiski graduated from Warsaw School of
Economics (Finance and Banking Faculty). His curterm as Managing Director expires in 2020. Mr #aagi does
not perform any activities other than for the Compa

Andrzej Gutowski (age 47, Polish citizen, male)

On 10 October 2008, Mr Gutowski was appointed asagang director A and member of the Management &dar a
term of four years and granted the title ‘Sales Batketing Director’. On 20 April 2016, he was repainted for
another term of four years. Mr Gutowski is also ammber of the management boards of many subsidiafi¢ise
Company.

Mr Gutowski had been employed by Ronson DevelopnMabhagement Sp. z 0.0. as the ‘Sales and Marketing
Manager’. Mr Gutowski is also a member of the mamagnt boards of many subsidiaries of the CompaeyjorB
joining Ronson Development Group, between 1994-20035utowski worked for Emmerson Sp. z 0.0. (leadieal
estate agency and advisory company in the Polistketjaas Director of Primary Markets and memberthod
management board. From 1988 until 1993, Mr Gutowtlkilied at Warsaw School of Economics (Foreigrd@yaHis
current term as Managing Director expires in 2020.Gutowski does not perform any activities othleart for the
Company.

Erez Yoskovitz (age 42, Israeli citizen, male)

On 21 December 2015, Mr Erez Yoskovitz was appdirste managing director B and member of the Manageme
Board of the Company, for a term of four years.Yskovitz serves as CFO of Global City Holdingsofar2009 until
2012, Mr Yoskovitz was CFO of Group in the Eledtyicand Air conditioning industry. Between 2003 a2@09, he
served as CFO in Cinema City in Hungary and Romg0(83-2009), while he worked as senior auditohvdlPMG
Israel from 2000 until 2003. Mr Yoskovitz holds @M title (specialization in finance) at Central Bpean University,
Budapest, a CPA (Israel) and BA in economics, mssimmanagement and accounting, Haifa University.ddirent
term as Managing Director of the Company expire2dh9, but he will be resigning from the Managenteward at the
Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders datch 2017.
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Explanatory notes by reason of the Decree, Articl&0 of the Takeover Directive

By reason of the Decree of 5 April 2006 to implemnanicle 10 of Directive 2004/25/EC of the Europdarliament
and the Council of the European Union of 21 ApfiD2 regarding public takeover bids, Ronson Europé. lthe
Company’) provides the following explanation:

a. Capital structure of the Company
The capital of the company consists of one classhafes, being ordinary shares with a nominal vafueUR 0.02
each. Information on the Company’s shares has inetrded under Note 25 to the Consolidated Findr&ti@ements.

b. Restriction on transferring shares or issued asjtary receipts with the Company’s co-operation
The Articles of Association of the Company haverestriction with respect to the transfer of shafidee Company has
no depositary receipts issued with the Companyeeration.

c. Duty to report interests in the Company

The Company has been notified regarding sharel®ldéth a substantial holding in accordance with &et on
Financial Supervision (3% or more) in the Compaby: Amos Luzon Development and Energy Group Ltd.
(indirectly), MetLife Otwarty Fundusz EmerytalnydaNationale Nederlanden Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny.

d. Special controlling rights
The Company has issued no shares with specialatiomgrrights.

e. Employees’ shares
The Company currently does not hold any employegesscheme or option plan where the control rigines not
exercised directly by the employees.

f. Restriction on voting right and issue of depasiy receipts
No restrictions are currently imposed on votinghtiggattached to issued shares. The Company haspasithry
receipts issued with the Company’s co-operation.

g. Agreements with shareholders

Currently, the Company is unaware of any runningresholder agreements. An agreement between sontieeof
Company’s principal shareholders previously in ércas been terminated by default following the daation
executed on 23 December 2016 between the Compahwr of its principal shareholders whereby the gamy
acquired all of the shares in the Company that weneed by the shareholder (see also page 17).

h. Regulations pertaining to the appointment andsdiissal of executive and supervisory directors amdendments
to the Articles of Association

By virtue of articles 13 and 14 and articles 21 a8df the Articles of Association, the General Kieg is authorized
to appoint, suspend or dismiss members of the Mamagt Board as well as members of the Supervisosyd The
Directors shall be appointed from a list of nomsjemntaining the names of at least two personsdoh vacancy, to
be drawn up by the Supervisory Board. A nominatidrich is drawn up in time shall be binding. Howevtite
General Meeting may deprive the nomination of itgllmg character by resolution adopted with a mgjaf not less
than two thirds of the votes cast, representingentban half of the issued capital. The membersiefManagement
Board and the Supervisory Board may be suspenddidmmissed by the General Meeting at any time.résolution to
suspend or dismiss a Director has not been propmgdide Supervisory Board, the resolution to sudpandismiss a
Managing Director is adopted with not less than thiods of the votes cast by shareholders, repteggmore than
half of the issued capital.

By virtue of article 40 of the Articles of Assodm, the Articles of Association can only be ameahédethe proposal of
the Management Board subject to approval from tige8/isory Board and the shareholders. A resoluticamend the
Articles of Association shall be passed by an alisahajority of the votes cast.

i. The powers of the board

By virtue of article 5 of the Articles of Associati, the Management Board is, subject to the approahe
Supervisory Board, authorized to resolve to isthwes for a certain period for a maximum per issfughares of 25%
of the issued share capital immediately prior &t fesue, with an aggregate maximum of all nonedsshares of the
authorized share capital. The period of authoratif the Management Board by the General Meetirghareholders
was renewed by a decision of the General Meeting§hafreholders which took place on 28 of June 20t 2iother
period of five years lapsing at 28 June 2017.

j- Important agreements when issuing a public bid
The Company is not aware of any existing agreemith is relevant in the context of the issuanca ptiblic bid.

k. Agreements with executive directors or employethe event of a public bid
The employment contracts of the Members of the Mdangent Board do not contain any specific clausdstwiefer to
a change of control in the Company.
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Remuneration Report
Introduction

The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholdeitd lon 1 October 2007, upon recommendation of tipe&isory
Board, approved the Company’s remuneration polibicivsets forth the terms of remuneration of thenimers of the
Management Board. The remuneration for the SupmnwiBoard was also adopted at the same Generatlsblders’
Meeting.

Remuneration Policy

The objective of the Company’s remuneration poigcio provide a compensation program that allovesGompany to
attract, retain and motivate members of the Superyiand Management Boards and those who havehtdraater
traits, skills and background to successfully leadnage and supervise the Company. The remunenatiicy is
designed to reward members of the Management Baardi®ther key personnel for their contributiornthte success of
the Company. Each of the Supervisory Boards membegives fixed annual remuneration and remunergtien
attended meeting.

Governance

The General Meeting of Shareholders approves p#as of the remuneration policy for the Managenodrd. The
General Meeting of Shareholders further determithesemuneration of the Supervisory Board. Comp@ansaf both
the Supervisory Board and Management Board is wederegularly. The Supervisory Board has a dedicate
Remuneration Committee.

Remuneration of the Management Board

Shraga Weisman

Mr Shraga Weisman, as a member of the ManagemerdBf Ronson Europe N.V., has entered into an eynpént
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsoevdlopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The terms of his
compensation package include a gross monthly féleedPLN equivalent of EUR 2,500. Mr Weisman i9astitled to
reimbursement of housing and office costs amountindo the PLN equivalent of EUR 3,000 per monthwell as
certain other social and medical insurance costs. ddmpensation also includes a reimbursement asamably
incurred and documented expenses related to thEepperformance of his consulting agreement ughéoaimount of
EUR 5,000 per calendar year as well as reimburseofahe costs related to his and his family’s &lato Israel up to
the maximum amount of EUR 20,000 per year and gpamcar.

In addition, he provides via his consulting compaeyvices to Ronson Europe N.V. For these serWted/eisman’s
company charges Ronson Europe N.V. a monthly feEUWR 29,000. His consulting company is also emtitie an
annual bonus set at 3.3% of the consolidated ampraahx profit of the Group.

Tomasz tapiski

Mr Tomasz tapiski, as a member of the Management Board of RoBswape N.V., has entered into an employment
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsavddopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The conditidnthe®
employment contract include a monthly salary of PA4O000, reimbursement of the medical insurancéscaisd a
company car.
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Remuneration of the Management Board (cont'd)

Andrzej Gutowski

Mr Andrzej Gutowski, as a member of the ManagenBaard of Ronson Europe N.V., has entered into apl@éyment
contract with a subsidiary of the Company (Ronsavddopment Management Sp. z 0.0.). The conditidnth®
employment contract include a monthly salary of P28J000, reimbursement of the medical insurancéscasd a
company car.

Erez Yoskovitz

Mr Erez Yoskovitz is not entitled to any remunesatifrom Ronson Europe nor from any of the Company’'s
subsidiaries.

Other

Mr Yosef Shaked, member of the Management Board 2@tApril 2016, and Mr Roy Vishnovizki, member tfe
Management Board until 18 January 2017, did nativecany remuneration from Ronson Europe nor fromaf the
Company’s subsidiaries during the year ended 3kDber 2016.

Remuneration of the Management Board in 2016

Total compensation of the Members of the ManagenBodrd, including bonuses and incentive plan linked
Company’s financial performance but not includihg tompany car, amounted to PLN 6,486 thousanditidddlly
the benefits from the incentive plan linked to @empany’s share price performance allocated tantembers of the
Management Board (calculated based on Black & ®shwmlethod; not paid) amounted to PLN 209 thouspaosit{ve).

Compensation of the members of the Management B@achiding bonuses and incentive plan linked tarpany’s

financial performance) amounted to:

- Mr Shraga Weisman - PLN 4,582 thousand,*

- Mr Tomasz tapiski - PLN 1,205 thousand (excluding results from plotential benefits from the incentive plan
linked to the share price performance in the amo@i®LN 122 thousand),*

- Mr Andrzej Gutowski amounted to PLN 699 thousanxicligding results from the potential benefits frohe t
incentive plan linked to the share price perforneaimcthe amount of PLN 87 thousand).

*The financial statements include a provision fertain bonus payments and payments within inceplive related to Company’s
financial performance. The controlling shareholderd vice chairman of the Supervisory Board disfgRit&l 2.3 million of these
payments. No payment of the disputed amounts shatidne until such dispute is resolved among thégsaiThe above and the
abovementioned does not limit any party from aggllections and does not derogate from any righdrof party.

Long-term incentive plan linked to the share pricgperformance of Ronson Europe N.V.

On 3 February 2014, the Supervisory Board of then@any adopted an incentive plan, addressed totedld®y
employees, which is based on the price performaridhe Company’s shares (the “Phantom Stock PlaDt).24
March 2016, the Company executed annexes to thetéthaStock Plan as approved by the Remunerationn@tie®
of the Company’s Supervisory Board. The PhantontiStlan including annexes, which does not assurgenaw
issue of shares and which will not result in anyrehares supply is based on the following key aggioms and
includes the settlement mechanism as describeavbelo

i. the exercise price of one option under the RimanStock Plan is PLN 1.60 which price shall beuatijd by
dividends paid out by the Company during vestind arercise periods. The adjustment mechanism appfity
to options that are not exercised as of date afldhd payment (being the basis for adjustment)agpmdies until
the last day of exercise period;

ii. the total number of options is 3,381,250 (whis the equivalent of approximately 1.2% of thempany’s total
number of shares), and the allocation of optiongadicular employees was made by way of a sepdetision
of the remuneration committee of the Remuneratiommittee;
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Long-term incentive plan linked to the share pricegperformance of Ronson Europe N.V. (cont'd)

iii. benefits were aggregated among the selecteplayees (of the Company or of its subsidiariespwdined the
Phantom Stock Plan through the end of 2016, of wfé¢ 40% was awarded as of the date of the decididhe
Remuneration Committee approving the Phantom Sttak, (b) 20% as of the end of 2014, (c) 20% ahe@tnd
of 2015 and (d) 20% as of the end of 2016;

iv. employees participating in the Phantom StoleinPnaintain the right to exercise their optionsilthe end of June
2019, or within 18 months since departure of thplegee from the Company, depending which occuss; fir

v. upon the exercise of the options, the Compaily pay the option holder the amount in cash equalthe
difference between the exercise price and the sumarket price of the shares in the Company (“@uriMarket
Price”) allocated to a particular employee (optimtder);

vi. the Current Market Price will be calculatedtlas average trading price of the shares duringtbeeding calendar
month, whereby the average trading price shalldierchined by calculating the total turnover valué’LN of all
of the shares in the Company traded during thabgetivided by the total number of shares tradedndusuch
period (however, if the total value of the ovetalinover in any particular month is lower than PLOD thousand,
then the Current Market Price shall be calculatethe basis of the most recent two-month marketzae;

vii. in the event that the free float is less tH&% of all the outstanding shares in the Compthrgy,Current Market
Price will be established by a reputable valuattompany based on a comparable valuation of Ronguees
companies listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange dbas®/E and P/BV multiples);

viii. an option holder shall be entitled to submipayment request during the first five working glay each calendar
month, provided that all employees must observe taaging restrictions related to the sale/purcha¢he
Company’s shares by Management and SupervisorydBowmbers and key management under applicable
regulations, especially with respect to the obsweaf closed periods.

Based on the approval of the Supervisory Board)2(00 options were granted in February 2014 todwmployees,
including the Management Board members, Mr 4skii and Mr Gutowski, whereas in March 2016, 676,2&0v
options added to the plan, of which 237,500 weleecated to Mr Lapiski and 168,750 were allocated to Mr Gutowski,
while 270,000 options were allocated to other keylkeyees of the Company (those who joined the itieermplan in
February 2014). Out of the total 3,381,250 optigremted, 1,187,500 options have been allocatedinatz tapiski,
and 843,750 options to Andrzej Gutowski while teenaining 1,350,000 options have been allocatedthierdkey
employees of the Company. No options were exerais¢iti31 December 2016.

Long-term incentive plan linked to Ronson Europe NV. financial results

On 3 February 2014, the Supervisory Board of thengamy adopted an incentive plan, addressed totsdldey
employees, which is based on the financial perfoiweaf the Company. Financial performance shatlétermined by
the Company’s Remuneration Committee of the SuperyiBoard taking into consideration either (a)rent sales
results (the new contracts signed with customargd)oprofits before tax recognized by the Group.

Based on the Remuneration Committee decision, Torapiaski (in addition to his remuneration) is entitlex &n
aggregated payment which would be equivalent 0b%.&f the Company’s profit before tax in particufarancial
year. Moreover Andrzej Gutowski is entitled to ajgeegated payment which would be equivalent of Ocf%he net
value of the Company’s current sales results.

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

Each Supervisory Board member currently receivesaamual remuneration of EUR 8,900 and EUR 1,500 per
attendance at meetings or EUR 750 if attendanbg fslephone. Moreover, Supervisory Board member®atitled to
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses relatesetuvices provided to the Company (mainly comprigiagel and
accommodation expenses). The Supervisory Board mesrdre not entitled to any benefits on terminatibriheir
service. One Supervisory Board member, notably Mro8 Luzon, has waived his remuneration from the @om.
The remuneration paid (or accrued) to the SupenyiBoard members includes only the remunerationterother four
members: Mr Mark Segall, Mr Yair Shilhav, Mr Przestawv Kowalczyk and Mr Reuven Sharoni. The total
Supervisory Board remuneration during 2016 amoutdd?LN 339 thousand (EUR 77 thousand).
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Risk Profile and Risk Management

Risk Profile

Management believes that the residential market awhole in Poland is less saturated than in anyratbentry within the
European Union, including also the developing caestin Central and Eastern Europe, which in genzalides for many
opportunities for residential developers. However ttuthe fact that the Polish economy is still exgrecing many dynamic
changes, it may be sensitive to potential up angneimirns. These market conditions form an importamd significant risk
factor for the Company and for other residentiavalepers, as the development process (includingestasuch as the
purchase of land, the preparation of land for aoiesion works, the construction process itself dirdlly, also the sale of
apartments) may take several years from start gotitpletion. It is important to understand thatisieas taken by the
Company must assume a relatively long-term timézbarfor each project as well as a significant vibitatof land prices,
construction cost levels and sales prices of aparsnduring the duration of projects which may haveaterial impact on
the Company’s profitability and financing needs.

Another specific risk is associated with the rapidell@pment of many Polish cities which very oftendlvwes a lack of
stability of development plans which could substdhtiimpact the likelihood that projects on partausites are realized as
initially desired or planned. Sometimes residerd@elopers are interested in buying land parcesout zoning conditions
or without a valid master plan for the area, which ldcallow for a better assessment of the ultimateieaf the plot.
Pursuing such market opportunities may result letireely low prices of the land parcels. However, stimtegy may result in
increasing operational and financial risks for tteveloper. Moreover, changing development planthefcities could also
impact the planned development and realization tdityu infrastructure (including water, gas, sewaged aelectricity
connections), which is critical factor for the Compand other developers. However, for a vast majofitiand parcels, the
Company has already obtained zoning approvals,wigiduces this risk to the Company significantly.

In addition to the above, simultaneously with thevmaaster plans that enter into force in the Polisles; there are new
requirements shifting up the standards of new coostn sites (including environmental rules, traffolutions and
infrastructure connections) which may result in bioitreasing costs of the new projects as well asammgld delays in the
preparation of the new projects.

A very specific risk for the Polish residential metrlis related to the initiatives of the Polish Gaweent supporting young
people wanting to buy their first apartment. Thevimes government program, which expired at the en20d2, was called
Rodzina na Swoim (Family on its Own) and was subsiditlie costs of mortgage loans. A new program callezsikanie
dla Miodych (Apartment for the Young) was launchethia beginning of 2014. The Polish government, wisisting up the
parameters of such programs (for instance maximatal area of the apartments qualifying for the paog or maximum
allowable price in particular cities), will thus beiofluence on the increasing attractiveness ofatertype of apartments and
the decreasing for other types.

Another operating risk lies within the constructiaogess itself. The Company does not operate amrmtisin business, but,
instead, it hires third party general contractansp are responsible for running the construction fandhe finalization of the
project including obtaining all permits necessawy $afe use of the apartments. Important seleatigaria when hiring a
general contractor include experience, professismaand financial strength of the contractor as waslithe quality of the
insurance policy covering all risks associated whth construction process.

The turbulence in the financial markets and witheheo currency during the past few years has resuita lack of stability
in the manner in which financing institutions (bankave approached both real estate companies dihddimal customers
when applying for a mortgage loan. As the real eftasiness is very capital consuming, the role efttnking sector and its
lending ability and willingness are crucial for tBempany leveraging not only when land parcels ageieed but also during
the later stages of development, especially dutiegconstruction phase. Moreover, the availabditgxternal financing is a
crucial element driving the demand for apartmeas$sthe vast majority of our customers are usinggage secured loans to
finance the purchase of apartments.

Simultaneously with increasing demands from devet@eranging debt financing of their projects, thenks are more
demanding from the customers arranging mortgageslda finance their purchase of apartments. As n@idg 2015, the
banks required each client to finance at least D% e apartment price out of his or her own resesir@his requirement
increased to 15% in 2016 and to 20% in 2017. Thegeased borrowing requirements may translatelower demand for
new apartments, which may be a source of additioslato all residential developers.

For addition informational on financial instrumenisks see Note 40 of the Consolidated Financiate®tents.

15



Ronson Europe N.V.
Risk Profile and Risk Management

Risk Appetite and Management

As part of its risk management measures, the Comparopntinually requesting, monitoring and purchgsinsurance
policies for most common risks associated with tttevidies of its contractors and their subcontrastincluding construction
companies and architectural designers, as well @agdnce policies with respect to third-party liagiliin the Company’s
opinion, these insurance policies offer adequater@e for the financial consequences of any midecinof the Company’s
business partners.

As a general basic rule, the companies’ risk appéetithat we are not interested in acquisition néitathat are not included in
the area with valid master development plans oratdave the valid zoning conditions. Land acquisitis always preceded
by a very detailed due diligence process (run byGbmpany’s professional employees as well as ®rradt specialists hired
by the Company), focusing mainly on zoning condisiand all other issues related to the ability lmfming the building
permit for the particular land/project. MoreovelngtCompany secures its interests in land purchastacts demanding
mechanisms assuming payments spread over time hasaadsuming payment/price corrections.

The Company may be unable to sell the residentig uhat it builds at attractive prices. The vatfea residential property
depends to a large extent on its location, architat design and standard of construction. If ttem@any misjudges the
desirability of a project’s location or its desighmay not be able to sell the property at thedaied price or at all. If the
Company is required to reduce the sales pricettachtpurchasers, the market value of the propsstyd be significantly
reduced and the Company's margins could decreakesvhgrofitable levels. The failure to sell the mitial units at
attractive prices may have a material adverse teffathe Company’s business, cash flows, finanaalddion, results of
operations or prospects of the Company. The Coniparsk appetite is to reduce the above descriigkl as much as
possible. In order to mitigate the market risksoiwed with the Company’s activities, the Companylegsprelevant internal
procedures. Moreover, in response to market ingtabiver the past several years, the Company @ectd scale down the
size of individual projects offered for sale, byiting larger residential projects into relativedynaller phases (usually at on
average around 150 units for each stage of coropletrhe Company’s plans for 2017 assume the pitigsitif commencing
the construction of three new projects and fourhientstages of projects that are currently undestcoction comprising
some 678 and 377 units respectively, which meandhbkaaverage scale of each new project, i.e. sthgempletion, will be
around 151 units. The Company is further mitigatihg risks related to the construction process ddgcting and hiring
experienced construction companies with good rejoutaind proven track-record in Poland.

The Company believes that even despite recentactina with one of its major shareholders, in whitle Company
purchased nearly 40% of its own shares in purposeedémption, the level of its indebtedness staysnatlerate and
relatively safe level in comparison to its peerd aill not limit its abilities to successfully raigkebt financing in the future
needed to support financing of its operations. &lgan be however no guarantee that such furthelrdising or any type of
fundraising would be successful. The developments gnowth of the business of the Company may be tcained if
fundraising is not successful or if funds are misa unfavorable terms, which could have a matedaerse effect on the
business, cash flows, financial condition, resulbpérations or prospects of the Company. Sinceadhkestate business is
very capital consuming, the role of the banking@eand its lending ability and willingness are g¢ali¢or the Company, as
well as liquidity on capital markets. The Companypissuing a low risk profile for the capital struguThe Company has a
strong capital structure as at 31 December 2016. fesat, The Company is able to start and finares projects. This
strong liquidity position is also associated witlr taw net indebtedness ratio, which is currently 4¢féase refer to note 29
of the Consolidated Financial Statement).

Moreover, various other organizational measures modedures were implemented in order to safeguazedquality of
operations and to incorporate adequate checks afahdes, including approvals, authorizations, mewig investment
decisions and so on. As part of implementing besttre provisions of both the Dutch and Polish coaf® governance
codes, the Company introduced a tailored intelisklmanagement and control system. During 2016ptbper operation of
the new internal risk management and control syske® again been monitored. Also, the Company hast aofse
whistleblower rules in place to ensure that employdethe Company and its subsidiaries have the piisgiof reporting
alleged irregularities of a general, operationalfinancial nature. The Company's Management Boaglietes that its
existing risk management measures are sufficiepréeide a reasonable degree of certainty as t@alisence of material
inaccuracies in the financial reporting, losses frtadd. Moreover, as a result of ongoing volatilitythe financial markets
and the continued unstable situation in the banki&gor, the Company’s Management pays partictienton to cash and
liquidity management, basically securing sufficiantounts of cash deposits with a view to a contionatif the Company’s

operations in these potentially more turbulent §me
For a description of the Company’s financial instants risk management reference is made to Noté #& cConsolidated
Financial Statements.
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Directors’ Report

General

Introduction

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’) is a Dutch pulsibompany with its statutory seat in Rotterdam,Nle¢herlands,
and was incorporated on 18 June 2007.

The Company (together with its Polish subsidiarite Group’) is active in the development and safleesidential
units, primarily apartments, in multi-family resit@&l real-estate projects to individual customarsPoland. For
information about companies in the Group from whibkir financial data included in the Consolidateidancial
Statements see Note 1 of the Consolidated FinaBtiéments.

The shares of the Company are traded on the WaBsagk Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31 iDeee
2016, 39.78% of the outstanding shares are coattty Amos Luzon Development and Energy Group (&d.Luzon
Group’), while another stake of 39.78% is held by Company for the purpose of redemption. The neimgi20.44%

of the outstanding shares are held by other investaluding Nationale Nederlanden Otwarty Fundiszerytalny
holding between 5% and 10% and Metlife Otwarty RugzdEmerytalny holding between 3% and 5% and of the
outstanding shares as of the date of this repomal be expected that as of date of redemptioth&yCompany of its
shares, the indirect shareholding of Amos Luzondlgyment and Energy Group in the Company may iserda
66.1% as a direct result of the redemption. Forowerview of shares outstanding and major shareh®ldé the
Company reference is made to page 40.

On 15 February 2017, the market price was PLN }éi share giving the Company a market capitalinatd
PLN 273.9 million (based on number of shares iautation).

Transaction with a principal shareholder. sale of a major development project and
acquisition of own shares

On 23 December 2016, the Company concluded an ragrgewith one of its principal shareholders, . P&RL2 B.V.

(“ITR 2012"), under which the Company sold to ITR12 certain shares in project companies and priegadgether
constituting the Nova Krélikarnia project for a g&iof approximately PLN 175.1 million, of which amount of
PLN 34.3 million was to be settled in cash (PLN42#illion was paid to the Company immediately aechaining
PLN 9.9 million will be paid by ITR 2012 within farbusiness days following a general meeting ofedf@ders of the
Company in which a dividend is declared in relattorthe financial year 2016 or on 1 June 2017, twigger date
occurs earlier). For the remaining value of theesal the Nova Krdlikarnia project, i.e. PLN 140.8llimn, the

Company acquired from ITR 2012 (in order to subsaty redeem) 108,349,187 of its shares held dyresntd

indirectly by ITR 2012, which at that date condgl 39.78% of the Company’s share capital and eduttie right to
exercise a corresponding percentage of the votéseaCompany’s general shareholders’ meeting, ota value of
PLN 140.8 million for the shares acquired equalslRL30 per share.

The sale of Nova Krélikarnia which is recorded le tCompany’s Consolidated Statement of Profit agsLand Other
Comprehensive Income under Revenue and Cost of,Sakulted in a gross profit amounting to PLN Syillion.

The transaction was conditional to approval by Ehdraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders hefd 22

December 2016, accepting the resolutions (1) aizfihgrthe Company to buy back the shares held By 2012 and
subsequently to cancel those shares and (2) waikingbligation of A. Luzon Group to make a pultéikeover bid as
a result of the abovementioned transaction (thari$action”) were adopted.
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Company overview

The Company is an experienced, fast-growing ancayn residential real estate developer expandmgébgraphic
reach to major metropolitan areas across Polandgeraging upon its large portfolio of secured sitin® Company
believes it is well positioned to maintain its gmsi as a leading residential development comphrgughout Poland.

The Company aims to maximize value for its shamdrsl by a selective geographical expansion in Eotasnwell as
by creation of a portfolio of real estate developigroperties. Management believes the Companypbsitioned itself
strongly to navigate the volatile economic enviremiithe Company has found itself in over the pegtal years. On
the one hand, the Polish economy appears to restatife, which potentially bodes well for the Comgamrospects.

On the other hand, the tenuous European recoveaigeebated in the last year by Middle East refugesis and results
of the EU referendum in the United Kingdom whicHlgad to exit of the UK from European Union, magntinue to

have a negative impact on the Polish economy ardQbmpany’s overall prospects. As a result, the zom

continues to adhere to a development strategyathmats it to adjust quickly to these uncertain dtinds by spreading
risks through (i) closely monitoring its projecs) potentially modifying the number of projectadatheir quality and
sizes and (iii) maintaining its conservative finahpolicy.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has 930 unitdabla for sale in fourteen locations, of which 78aits are
available for sale in seven projects that are argais at 31 December 2016, and the remaining 188 are in
completed projects. The seven ongoing projects s total of 1,276 units, with a total area 6{390 M. The
construction of 736 units with a total area of 80, At is expected to be completed during 2017.

In addition, the Group has a pipeline of 15 prgjéntdifferent stages of preparation, represerdimgroximately 4,509
units with a total area of approximately 285,900far future development in Warsaw, Po#nsVroctaw and Szczecin.
The Group is considering commencement of anothar $tages of the currently running projects conipgi77 units

with a total area of 20,6003rand three new projects comprising 678 units withtal area of 33,6007in total 1,055

units with a total area of 54,20 nduring 2017.

During year ended 31 December 2016, the Compangluted sales agreements for 821 units with thd iathe
PLN 365.4 million which compares to sales of 90&wuwith the total value PLN 338.6 million duringet year ended
31 December 2015.

During February, March, April, July and August 201fte Company issued bonds with an aggregate nbrahge and

issue price of PLN 55 million. The bonds carry ateiest rate composed of a base rate equal to éhmVibor plus a
margin (with the exception of one series of bonaisying a fixed interest rate of 5.25%), with irgsr payable semi-
annually or quarterly and maturing in April 201910 million), September 2019 (PLN 10 million), Breary 2020

(PLN 10 million), July 2020 (PLN 15 million) and Aust 2020 (PLN 10 million), with full payment due ¢he

maturity date. The bonds have been issued in dodenable the Company to finance the purchasemf far new

projects and the construction costs of new projdets additional information see Note 28 and 2%hef Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Dividend policy

In May 2013, upon approval of the Supervisory Baand the General Meeting of Shareholders, the @omphanged
its dividend policy and started paying dividend201.3. Prior to 2013, since the incorporation & @ompany and the
IPO in 2007, the Company has retained its profitd did not distribute dividends, in accordance wite dividend
policy as set out in the prospectus. The new diddpolicy assumes on-going periodic dividend payaduot the
shareholders. The Management Board believes tiatxpected operating, financial and cash-flow pmsibf the
Company may allow for increasing the dividend payiauthe future. As per the current dividend politlye Board of
Supervisory Directors will be evaluating future seamendations by the Board of Managing Director$1wéspect to
the potential dividend payouts taking into accdijithe current and expected balance sheet of tmepany, with close
observance of the all balance-sheet linked debe¢rants, (ii) the financial needs of the Companyimgnto be ranked
amongst leading residential developers in Poland(gih changing market environment.

The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholdetd bn 10 August 2016 approved a dividend paymeRLN 21.8
million equal to PLN 0.08 per share. The dividemyment was made on 24 August 2016. During 2015Ctmapany
paid a dividend amounting to PLN 10.9 million te ghareholders (equal to PLN 0.04 per share). Duibi4, the
Company did not pay dividends to its shareholdetsle the dividend paid during 2013 amounted to R&.RI million.

In addition, it will be proposed to the upcomingtiwrdinary General Meeting of Shareholders on X*di&017 to
approve an interim dividend of PLN 14.8 million edjgo PLN 0.09 per share with an ex-dividend ddté&®March
2017 and a dividend payment date of 23 March 2017.

Market overview

The Polish economy has proven to be strong evethénrecent turbulent times throughout Europe, whith
combination with the general paucity of dwellingsRoland (in comparison to all other European aies)t creates,
what management believes to be, solid long termsp@cts for further development of the residengal estate market
in spite of the volatility that has characterizbd market for the past nine years. ManagementJeslithe Company is
well positioned to adapt to changing market conddgi The Company’s sales results during the pastyeven despite
weaken dynamics during 2016) seem to confirm that@Gompany has consistently adapted appropriateliplatile
market environment.

After rapid changes in the real estate markets0BB2009 the activities of residential developdosved down until
2013, when the development of only 128,000 units e@mmenced in the Polish market during that yEae. market
conditions started improving already during 2018 aimce 2014 the scale of residential activities b@en constantly
increasing. The number of units commenced to beldped during 2016 reached nearly 173,000 which3%ahigher
than in 2015. It is important to note that the nembf newly opened projects built by developersalye85,500)
decreased by 1% during 2016 after a 24% increasegd2015 and a 36% increase during 2014, whileatttevity of
individual investors increased by 6%.

Meanwhile, a number of external factors have cbnotad to recent market growth. First, a governnmeagram that
subsidized young couples purchasing their firstrtapents, called “Rodzina na Swoim” (“Family on tsvn”) that
expired at the end of 2012 was replaced with a gewernmental program called “Mieszkanie dla Miodych
(hereinafter “MDM”") that came into effect in thediening of 2014 and supports the residential maikehose cities
where the maximum price of apartment qualifyingubsidies is close to the market price (includimgifistance cities
such as Gdask, L0z or Pozna). Second, in the last few years, the National BahRoland has kept interest rates at
record low levels (2.5% from July 2013 through ®egber 2014 and 2.0% from October 2014 until Mai@h5? when
the rate was further decreased to 1.5%). Theseritially low interest rates since 2013 positivelypiacted the
residential market for two reasons. First, mortglages became more affordable to potential resialeptirchasers and
second, more customers are purchasing apartmentash, as they consider real estate investmean astractive
alternative to the very low interest earned on bamkieposits.
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Market overview (cont’d)

Taking into consideration all these factors, theréase in demand for residential units noted inptdt four years has
caught up with supply. The improving market envimamt has encouraged developers to expand thettergsl
development activities. According to REAS (realagstagency analyzing the Polish residential maréet)elopers
introduced during 2016 more new apartments in mBlish metropolitan areas to their offer than tiagre able to
sell in this period (65,000 new apartments in sijon Polish metropolitan areas, including Warsawrevadded on
offer by developers during 2016 which compare®taltsales of 62,000 apartments during 2015). Sanabusly, the
number of apartments offered by developers incets@early 53,000 units, which corresponded to &%he annual
sales during the past year. Despite the constantase of the number of apartments on offer dupegt four years,
this increase has been slower than the pace of &adeof end of 2013 the total number of apartmentsale in six
major Polish metropolitan areas amounted to 41006 which was by 15% higher than the number efapents sold
by developers during that year). This confirms thatelopers are adjusting their activities to madggamics and are
expanding their supply on a measured basis.

Warsaw continued to be the most significant maiké?oland in 2016 with over 24,000 units sold iis theriod. The
number of apartments sold in Warsaw was by neadkp higher than during 2015. Sales dynamics in othajor

Polish metropolitan areas were slower in 2016 thaWarsaw and amounted to nearly 16%, contraryottb2avhen the
sales in Warsaw increased by 14% compared to 20d4€w25% in the five major Polish metropolitanasécompared
to 2014 results).

Despite sales results having reached relativellg kegels compared with previous years, such rosaists have almost
not translated into any increase in the overaltgpof apartments as the concomitant increase ieldement activity
has resulted in supply balancing with demand. Megeathe price limits imposed by the governmentagpam MDM
played a role as an incentive to many developeshé&pe their development activity to offer apartmeeat relatively
low prices to allow purchasers to qualify for thevgrnment subsidies.

An anticipated continuation of stability of intetastes at relatively low levels in the next questeas well as the
continuation in Poland of a stable economy maytitlesapportive to the positive situation in residial markets, even
though the government is not going to support baigdrfirst apartments in such way as it used toubh programs
such as Rodzina na Swoim or MDM (which is to exir2018). The recently announced new program “kkasie

Plus” will be addressed to those young people, whanot qualify for mortgage loans due to insuffitiéncome.

Moreover, new residential projects are plannedHgy dovernment (at least in initial phase of thisgoam) in the
medium sized and small towns, i.e. in those markdtich are not interesting to the largest residgrevelopers. It
seems therefore that on the one hand the new goeatal program will not support those individuaiterested in
buying their first apartment in leading Polish aggerations, but on the other hand shall not beuacso(especially
during the coming few years) of direct competitfonthe leading market players.

Another source of potential uncertainty in the destial real estate market is related to other plahthe Polish
government with respect to contemplated new reigumatpotentially affecting, among others, constarciegislation
and regulations related to perpetual usufruct. Bespnnounced good faith aimed at increased siitplof the

construction process in Poland, the introductiome#® regulations may result — especially temporaiy turbulences
and delays in commencing new projects by all dgpaie.

Notwithstanding the above, Management continudset@ve that considering all the above factorss iikely that a
continuous strengthening in the Polish residentiatket is foreseen for at least the following selvguarters.
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2016

A. Projects completed

The table below presents information on the prsjéicat were completed (i.e. completing all congtoucworks and

receiving occupancy permit) during the year ende@®8cember 2016:

Area of units(m?)

Project name Location Number of units
Espresso If’ Warsaw 151 7,600
Moko 1©) Warsaw 178 11,200
Kamienica Jeyce 10 Pozna 144 7,800
Panoramika If? Szczecin 107 5,900
Espresso IIf) Warsaw 155 8,500
Moko 1l © Warsaw 167 12,500
Kamienica Jayce 110 Pozna 151 7,400
1,053 60,900

Total

(*) For additional information see section ‘B. Réts breakdown by project’ below.

B. Results breakdown by project

Revenue from the sale of residential units is reczayl upon the transfer to the buyer of signifiaasis and rewards of
the ownership of the residential unit, i.e. upamnsig of the protocol of technical acceptance dedttansfer of the key
to the buyer of the residential unit. Total revemfighe Group recognized during the year ended 8tebhber 2016
amounted to PLN 309.7 million and including theesabf Nova Krélikarnia project amounted to PLN 48#illion,
whereas cost of sales before write-down adjustraadtexcluding Nova Krélikarnia project amountedPioN 246.0
million and after the cost allocated to Nova Krélikia project and write-down adjustment amounte@®ltdl 366.1
million, which resulted in a gross profit amountitg PLN 63.7 million (and a gross margin of 20.68)d to
PLN 118.7 million (and a gross margin of 24.5%}§prectively.

The following table specifies revenue, cost of saled gross profit in 2016 on a project by propedis:

Information on the - Gross Gross
delivered units Revenue"” Cost of saled™ profit margin
Area of
Number units PLN PLN PLN
Project of units (m2) thousands % thousands % thousands %
Moko 256 14,611 120,668 39.0% 81,565 33.0% 39,103 32.4%
Espresso Il & 111 153 7,624 53,289 17.2% 43,256 17.6% 10,033 18.8%
Kamienica Jgyce 123 6,236 36,518 11.8% 33,875 13.8% 2,643 7.2%
Miody Grunwald | & 11 84 4,940 27,739 9.0% 27,233 11.1% 506 1,8%
Panoramika Il 85 4,314 19,308 6.2% 19,113 7.8% 195 1.0%
Impressio 25 1,777 11,143 3.6% 11,473 4.7% (330) -3.0%
Sakura 16 1,023 7,719 2.5% 6,802 2.8% 917 11.9%
Tamka 20 1,721 21,414 6.9% 14,385 5.8% 7,029 32.8%
Verdis 2 151 1,780 0.6% 1,412 0.6% 368 20.7%
Naturalis I, I & 111 16 1,032 5,465 1.8% 4,976 2.0% 489 8.9%
Other 1 260 4,600 1.4% 1,863 0.8% 2,737 59.5%
Total / Average 781 43,689 309,643 100.0% 245,953 100.0% 63,690 6%0.
Nova Krolikarnia - - 175,119 N.A 117,850 N.A 57,269 32.7%
Write-down
adjustment N.A N.A N.A N.A 2,269 N.A (2,269) N.A
Results 781 43,689 484,762 100.0% 366,072 100.0% 118,690 524
™*) Revenue is recognized upon the transfer of sggmifirisks and rewards of the ownership of thedesiial unit to the buyer, i.e. upon signing of giretocol
of technical acceptance and the transfer of thedéefie residential unit to the buyer.
**) Cost of sales allocated to the delivered srproportionally to the expected total value of phneject.
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2016 (cont'd)

B. Results breakdown by project (cont’d)

Moko

The construction of first and second stage of thekd/project was completed in June 2016 and Oct@0d6,

respectively. The first and second phases of thigept were developed on a land strip of 12,200Imeated in
Mokotéw district in Warsaw at Magazynowa Streete ™Woko | project comprises 2 seven and eight-stoneyiti-

family residential buildings with a total of 166 aapments and 12 commercial units and an aggretmte $pace of
11,200 mM. The Moko Il project comprises 2 seven and eighitey, multi-family residential buildings with até of

160 apartments and 7 commercial units and an aggréigor space of 12,500°m

Espresso Il & Il

The construction of the second and third stage dsspr project was completed in May 2016 and Decer2b26,
respectively. The second and third stage phashi®fproject were developed on a land strip of 8,#60ocated in
Wola district in Warsaw at Jana Kazimierza Stréée Espresso Il project comprises 2 seven-and-siginey, multi-
family residential buildings with a total of 141 apments and 10 commercial units and an aggretmte $pace of
7,600 . The Espresso IlI project comprises 1 six-sevei@ight-storey, multi-family residential buildingtiv a total
of 147 apartments and 8 commercial units and areagtg floor space of 8,500°m

Kamienica Jeéyce

The construction of the first and second stagehef Kamienica Jsice project was completed in September 2016
December 2016, respectively. The first and secdras@ of this project were developed on a land stip,600 M
located in Jiyce district in Poznaat Kdscielna Street. The Kamienicazyee | project comprises 4 five and six-storey,
multi-family residential buildings with a total df39 apartments and 5 commercial units with an aggeefloor space

of 7,800 m. The Kamienica Jgce Il project comprises 5 five and six-storey, tiafaimily residential buildings with a
total of 151 apartments with an aggregate flooceps 7,400 rh

Mtody Grunwald | & I

The construction of the Mlody Grunwald | projectiahe Miody Grunwald Il project was completed inym2014 and
November 2015, respectively. The Mlody Grunwaldntl dl projects were developed on a land strip o600 nf
located in Grunwald district in Pozinat Jeleniogérska Street. The Miody Grunwald | @cojcomprises 3 six-storey,
multi-family residential buildings with a total 436 apartments and 12 commercial units and an gatrdloor space
of 8,500 M. The Miody Grunwald Il project comprises 3 six+gtyy multi-family residential buildings with a totaf
132 apartments and 5 commercial units and an aggréigor space of 8,200°m

Panoramika Il

The construction of the second stage of the Parikaapnoject was completed in July 2016. The sequimase of this
project was developed on a part of land strip 808,nf located in Szczecin at Bska Street, and is a continuation of
the Panoramika | project. The project comprisesnk-storey, multi-family residential building with total of 107
apartments and an aggregate floor space of 5,300 m

Impressio

The construction of the last stage of Impressiggutovas completed in July 2015. The project wasbiped on a land
strip of 14,500 rhlocated in the Grabiszyn district in Wroctaw atrfrska Street. The project comprises 8 four-storey,
multi-family residential buildings with a total @02 apartments and 4 commercial units and an agtgdigor space of
12,900 M.
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2016 (cont'd)

B. Results breakdown by project (cont’d)

Sakura

The construction of the last stage of Sakura ptojes completed in July 2015. The project was dped on a land
strip of 21,000 rhlocated in Warsaw at Klobucka Street. The projechprises 4 six-storey up to eleven-storey, multi-
family residential buildings with a total of 488 apments and 27 commercial units and an aggredmte $pace of
30,300 .

Tamka

The construction of the Tamka project was compl@teBeptember 2015. The Tamka project was developeal land

strip of 2,500 rfi located in theSrodmiecie district in Warsaw at Tamka Street (Warsaw cignter). The Tamka
project comprises 1 eight-storey, multi-family desitial building with a total of 60 apartments &dommercial units
with an aggregate floor space of 5,500 m

Verdis

The construction of the last stage of Verdis projeas completed in October 2015. The project waldped on a
land strip of 16,400 flocated in the Wola district in Warsaw at Saskiego Street. The project comprises 8 seven-
storey up to eleven-storey, multi-family residehbaildings with a total of 418 apartments and 28nmercial units
and an aggregate floor space of 26,160 m

Naturalis I, Il & 11l

The construction of the Naturalis I, 1l and 1l prots was completed in December 2012, August 2082Aaigust 2013,
respectively. The Naturalis I, Il and Ill projest®re developed on a land strip of 11,80blocated in tomianki near
Warsaw. The Naturalis I, 1l and Il projects congeril four-storey, multi-family residential buildingith a total of

52 apartments and an aggregate floor space of 28@Md 2 four-storey, multi-family residential buitdgjs, each with
a total of 60 apartments and an aggregate floaresp3,400 rh

Other

Other revenues are mainly associated with rentedmees and fee income for management servicesdaw\uo joint
ventures and delivering one house in the Constamgqs, as well as sales of parking places andagtw in other
projects that were completed in previous years.

Nova Krolikarnia
On 23 December 2016, the Company sold to its graicshareholders, I.T.R 2012 B.V. (“ITR 2012") thva
Krolikarnia project for a price of PLN 175,119 tlsaund. The transaction with ITR 2012 comprised tfiewing:

- a payment in cash for the benefit of the Compenthe amount of PLN 34,265 thousand, of which P24365
thousand was paid to the Company immediately vihgderemainder (PLN 9,900 thousand) will be paidTiy 2012 to
the Company within five business days following engral meeting of shareholders of the Company iiciwha
dividend is declared in relation to the financiaby 2016 or on 1 June 2017, which ever date osautier;

- the acquisition of 108,349,187 own shares (ireotd subsequently redeem) held directly and ictiydy ITR 2012,
for PLN 1.30 per share amounting to a total pritBIldN 140,854 thousand.
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2016 (cont'd)

C. Units sold during the year

The table below presents information on the totamnber of units sold (i.e. total number of units fehich the

Company signed the preliminary sale agreementstivitlients), during the year ended 31 Decemb#620

Units sold until

Units sold during
the year ended 31

Units for sale as at

Project name Location 31 December 2015 December 2016 31 December 2016 Total

Verdis®” Warsaw 428 2 11 441
Sakura” Warsaw 486 12 17 515
Naturalis I, 11 & 111 ©) Warsaw 158 13 1 172
Impressid” Wroctaw 185 19 2 206
Panoramika If? Szczecin 60 30 17 107
Panoramika 111 Szczecin - 14 108 122
Espresso Il & 111 Warsaw 204 80 22 306
Espresso V" Warsaw - 64 82 146
Miody Grunwald | & 1) Pozna 227 24 34 285

Miody Grunwald 111" Pozna - 33 75 108

Tamka® Warsaw 49 15 1 65
Moko ©) Warsaw 213 63 69 345
Kamienica Jayce! Pozna 190 84 21 295

City Link | ¢ Warsaw 122 142 58 322
City Link 11 ¢ Warsaw - 95 94 189
Vitalia 1 Wroctaw - 29 110 139
Chilli Iv @ Pozna - 6 39 45

Nova Krélikarnia I-V¢¢™) Warsaw - 56 - 56
Miasto Moje 1 Warsaw - 39 166 205
Other (old) projects - 1 3 4
Total 2,322 821 930 4,073

(*)  For information on the completed projects $Besiness highlights during the year ended 31 Dewen2016 — B. Results breakdown by project” (pageso 23).

(**)  For information on current projects under cdnsction, see “Outlook for 2017— B. Current projeatnder construction” (pages 35 to 37).

(***) The project presented in the Consolidated &itial Statements under investment in joint verstutee Company’s share is 50%.
(****) Project sold during the year ended 31 Deceenl2016 in a single transaction to one of the Conygmajor shareholders (see page 17).
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Business highlights during the year ended 31 Decemb2016 (cont'd)

C. Units sold during the year (cont’'d)

The table below presents further information onuhis sold (i.e. total number of units for whi¢tetCompany signed
the preliminary sale agreements with the clieritg)luding net saleable area (if)nof the units sold and net value
(exclusive of VAT) of the preliminary sales agreense(including also parking places and storagesguated by the
Company, during the year ended 31 December 2016:

Sold during the year ended 31 December 2016

Value of the

Number of Net saleable preliminary sales

units area (nf) agreements

Project name Location in PLN thousands
Verdis” Warsaw 2 208 1,552
Sakura"” Warsaw 12 816 6,040
Naturalis I, 1l & 111 © Warsaw 13 895 4,587
Impressid” Wroctaw 19 1,322 8,342
Panoramika If? Szczecin 30 1,803 8,106
Panoramika 111 Szczecin 14 696 3,116
Espresso Il & 111" Warsaw 80 4,037 28,769
Espresso V" Warsaw 64 3,258 24,868
Miody Grunwald | & 11®) Pozna 24 1,619 9,198
Miody Grunwald 111¢) Pozna 33 1,913 10,993
Tamka" Warsaw 15 1,473 19,068
Moko © Warsaw 63 4,846 40,890
Kamienica Jeyce Pozna 84 4,473 26,953
City Link | ¢/ Warsaw 142 6,285 54,872
City Link Il ¢ Warsaw 95 4,223 41,201
Vitalia | © Wroctaw 29 1,686 8,987
Chilli v @ Pozna 6 368 1,497
Nova Krélikarnia -V Warsaw 56 5,249 53,403
Miasto Moje 1 Warsaw 39 2,091 11,792
Other (old) projects 1 90 1,130
Total 821 47,351 365,364

*) For information on the completed projects s&siness highlights during the year ended 31 Deeer2®16 — B. Results breakdown by project” (pagk$c223).
(**)  For information on current projects under cdnsction, see “Outlook for 2017— B. Current projeatnder construction” (pages 35 to 37).

(***) The project presented in the Consolidated &irial Statements under investment in joint verstutee Company’s share is 50%.

(****) Project sold during the year ended 31 Deceent2016 in a single transaction to one of the Comypmmajor shareholders (see page 17).
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D. Commencements of new projects

The table below presents information on the prgjémt which the construction and/or sales processnecenced during
the year ended 31 December 2016:

Project name Location Number of units Area of units (nf)
Espresso IV Warsaw 146 8,100
Miody Grunwald 1117 Pozna 108 7,100
Chilli v © Pozna 45 2,900
Panoramika [11®) Szczecin 122 5,800
City Link I ¢V Warsaw 189 8,800
Nova Krélikarnia I-V ™ Warsaw 106 10,700
Miasto Moje 1 ) Warsaw 205 10,900
Total 921 54,300
*) For information on current projects under consttion, see “Outlook for 2017— B. Current projectsder construction” (pages 35 to 37).

(**)  The project presented in the Consolidated Finel Statements under investment in joint ventutes Company’s share is 50%.
(***) Project sold during the year ended 31 DecemB616 in a single transaction to one of the Compamajor shareholders (see page 17).

E. Land purchase

In May 2016, the Company completed the acquisitiball rights to a plot of land at Marywilska Stteée the Biatotka
district in Warsaw with a size of 76,300°.nAccording to the valid zoning conditions, the tpie dedicated for a
development of a residential multifamily projecheTtotal purchase price amounted to PLN 36.1 mil{izet of VAT).

In August 2016, the Company completed the acqarsitif another part of plot at shainowa Street in Warsaw for its
project Nova Krélikarnia. Pursuant to a preliminguyrchase agreement entered into with the Selfettsecproperty at
Jaminowa Street in Warsaw in June 2012 (the “Sel)ettsie Company had the right to purchase propenitsa total
area up to 118,4007{“Real Properties”), provided that the Sellersfifld number of conditions precedent, which
included concluding a court dispute between théeBehand third parties concerning some of the pt@secovered by
the preliminary purchase agreement (the “Disputedl Rroperties”). Due to the fact that the abovetimeed court
dispute had not been concluded until May 2014 atireements signed with the Sellers on that dateatidnhclude the
Disputed Real Properties (and the total area of lamitially purchased by the Company in 2014 amednto
82,000 M). Following a positive final outcome of the dispsitconcerning the Disputed Real Properties, thepaagm
purchased also the outstanding plots of land (isputed Real Properties) in August 2016, basedhensame
conditions that were already agreed with the Seile2012. The total purchase price for the undegphiReal Properties
that was settled by the Company until May 2014 wasl 65.6 million and the price paid for the remamiplots,
i.e. the Disputed Real Properties, in August 20h6unted to PLN 17.4 million.

In October 2016, the Company entered into a figed@ment concerning the purchase of the right gigiaal usufruct

of an undeveloped property located in P@zn@runwald district. The seller of the property tasained the final

planning permit (decyzja o warunkach zabudowy) édsby the mayor of the City of Poznawhich refers to an
investment involving the construction of a buildimgth residential, commercial and office space,usterground

parking garage and the necessary technical infictstie. The Company intends to build nearly 27Ctapents on the

property. The price of the right of perpetual usafrto the property was fixed at PLN 9.5 milliordanas increased by
applicable VAT. The full price was paid within tlerevorking days after the agreement was executed.

In October 2016, the Company entered also intaal fagreement concerning the purchase of the afperpetual
usufruct of the developed property located in Waarddrsus district. The territory of the propertydsvered by the
binding zoning master plan for postindustrial aradepted by the City Council of Warsaw. Accordingthe zoning
master plan, the property is located in an areh wibasic designation of use for multifamily resit development
and supplementary designation of use for servidgé® property is part of greater area, which is péghto be
purchased by the Company for development of mutiifa residential project with necessary infrasturet In the
entire project, after purchasing all real propertieat the Company is interested in, the Compatands to build over
150 apartments. The price of the right of perpetisalfruct to the property has been fixed at PLN6 rillion and was
increased by applicable VAT. The full price wasdgpay the Company on the day of execution of thesaation.
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The net profit attributable to the equity holdefstlee parent company for the year ended 31 Decer2b&6 was
PLN 64,531 thousand and can be summarized as fallow

For year ended
31 December
2016 2015
PLN
(thousands, except per share data)

Revenue 484,762 281,372
Cost of sales (366,072) (230,124)
Gross profit 118,690 51,248
Changes in the value of investment property - (474)
Selling and marketing expenses (8,083) (6,459)
Administrative expenses (22,197) (18,834)
Share of profit/(loss) from joint ventures (1,380) (678)
Other expense (3,354) (1,710)
Other income 876 3,329
Result from operating activities 84,552 26,422
Finance income 1,900 1,811
Finance expense (8,857) (7,903)
Net finance income/(expense) (6,957) (6,092)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 77,595 20,330
Income tax benefit /(expense) (12,497) (1,356)
Net profit/(loss) for the period before non-controling interests 65,098 18,974
Non-controlling interests (567) 376
Net profit/(loss) for the period attributable to

the equity holders of the parent 64,531 19,350
Net earnings per share attributable to

the equity holders of the parent (basic and dilutey 0.239 0.071
Revenue

Total revenue increased by PLN 203.4 million fromdNP281.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2@d
PLN 484,8 million for the year ended 31 Decembel&Owhich is primarily explained by the sale (insigle
transaction) of the Nova Krolikarnia project witlevenue of PLN 175.1 million (see page 17).

Total revenue excluding the sale of the Nova Kuadiika project increased by PLN 28.3 million (10.0%@m

PLN 281.4 million for the year ended 31 Decembel®® PLN 309.7 million for the year ended 31 Debenm2016,
which is primarily explained by an increase in apents delivered to customers in terms of area(gizer), as well as
a slight increase in the average selling pricenger
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Costof sales

Cost of sales increased by PLN 136.0 million frobeNP230.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2@d
PLN 366.1 million for the year ended 31 Decembet&Owhich is primarily explained by the sale of tNeva
Krélikarnia project with a cost of sale amounting®LN 117.9 million (see page 17).

Cost of sales excluding the sale of the Nova Kadlika project and before the write-down adjustnmieateased by
PLN 16.1 million (7.0%) from PLN 229.9 million dumg the year ended 31 December 2015 to PLN 246.omil
during the year ended 31 December 2016, whichimarily explained by an increase in apartmentsveedid to the
customers in terms of area size (if).m

Gross margin

Gross margin excluding the sale of the Nova Krdlika project and before write-down adjustment dgrihe year
ended 31 December 2016 was 20.6% compared to a gragin during the year ended 31 December 2015 &%,
which increase reflects a higher dynamics of reesrthan costs as mentioned above.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by PLNniilkon (25.1%) from PLN 6.5 million for the yeanded

31 December 2015 to PLN 8.1 million for the yeadedah 31 December 2016, which is primarily explaifigdthe

campaigns for new projects Nova Krolikarnia and $fiiaMoje, as well as increase in costs for retdtesagencies
spent on Moko project.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by PLN 3.4 mmillin7.9%) from PLN 18.8 million for the year end&t December
2015 to PLN 22.2 million for the year ended 31 Dmber 2016. The increase is primarily explained bg t
Management Board bonus which is calculated in pitapo to the profit before tax as well as the impa€ the
employee incentive plan adopted during February2@ar additional information see Note 35 of thenGolidated
Financial Statements).

Other expenses

Other expenses increased by PLN 1.6 million (96.%) PLN 1.7 million for the year ended 31 Decemb@l5 to
PLN 3.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2@ditich is primarily explained by increased mairtece expense
of the finished and unsold apartments as well agbrieased costs of settlement of VAT related tpesses in prior
years.

Other income

Other income decreased by PLN 2.4 million from P3.B million during the year ended 31 December 2015LN 0.9

million during the year ended 31 December 2016 ctvié primarily explained by reversal costs durihg year ended
31 December 2015 that were expensed in previousdsewith respect to reparation of defects in ohéhe Company’s
completed projects, whereas during the year endldde8ember 2016 no such reversal took place.

Result from operating activities

As a result of the factors described above, the g2my's operating result increased by PLN 58.2 aiillifrom an
operating profit of PLN 26.4 million for the yeanded 31 December 2015 to an operating profit of BAN million
for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Net finance income

Finance income and expenses are accrued and tagultals part of the cost price of inventory to #xtent this is
directly attributable to the construction of resitlal units. Unallocated finance income and expsmex capitalized are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

The table below shows the finance income and exgsebsfore capitalization into inventory and thealtdinance
income and expenses capitalized into inventory.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
PLN (thousands)

Total Amount Recognized as
amount capitalized profit or loss
Finance income 1,900 - 1,900
Finance expense (15,888) 7,031 (8,857)
Net finance (expense)/income (13,988) 7,031 (6,957)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
PLN (thousands)

Total Amount Recognized as
amount capitalized profit or loss
Finance income 1,811 - 1,811
Finance expense (17,314) 9,411 (7,903)
Net finance (expense)/income (15,503) 9,411 (6,092)

Net finance expenses before capitalization decdelgd®LN 1.5 million (9.8%) from PLN 15.5 millioruding the year
ended 31 December 2015 to PLN 14.0 million durlngytear ended 31 December 2016, which was a i&fstétcrease
in the average net debt position during the pefioch PLN 176.8 million during the year ended 31 Baber 2015 to
PLN 137.4 million during the year ended 31 Decen#ik®6.

Income tax benefit/(expense)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the indamexpense amounted to PLN 12.5 million, in corigoar to a
tax expense of PLN 1.4 million for the year endéd>®@cember 2015.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests comprise the share ofarity shareholders in profit and losses from subsidthat is not
100% owned by the Company. During the year endeDe&¥mber 2016, the minority shareholders shatbkdrprofit
amounted to PLN 567 thousand (negatively impactiqgity attributable to the holders of the pareas)compared to
share in loss amounting to PLN 376 thousand (p@sithpact) during the year ended 31 December 20&&.change
in the non-controlling interest is explained by tkgenue and income recognized from the Espresandllll projects
that were completed in May 2016 and December 2016.
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Exchange rate of Polish Zloty versus the Euro

Average Minimum Maximum Year end
PLN/EUR exchange rate exchange rate exchange rate exchange rate
2016 (12 months) 4.364 4.236 4.504 4.424
2015 (12 months) 4.184 3.982 4.358 4.262
Source: National Bank of Poland (‘NBP’)
Selected financial data EUR PLN

(thousands, except per share data and number of stes)
For year ended 31 December or as at 31 December

2016 2015 2016 2015

Revenues 111,082 67,250 484,762 281,372
Gross profit 27,198 12,249 118,690 51,248
Profit/(loss) before taxation 17,781 4,859 77,595 20,330
Net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to

the equity holders of the parent 14,787 4,625 64,531 19,350
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 3,511 7,402 15,324 30,968
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 719 (646) 3,137 (2,704)
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (11,214) 162 (48,936) 677
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (6,983) 6,917 (30,475) 28,941
Inventory 129,769 164,544 574,098 701,287
Total assets 168,040 205,266 743,411 874,844
Advances received 22,741 27,424 100,607 116,881
Long term liabilities 34,261 52,312 151,571 222,953
Short term liabilities (including advances received 51,981 45,160 229,964 192,470
Equity attributable to the equity holders of thequa 81,281 107,390 359,586 457,698
Share capital 5,054 5,054 20,762 20,762
Average number of equivalent shares (basic) 269,985,223 272,360,000 269,985,223 272,360,000
Net earnings per share (basic and diluted) 0.055 0.017 0.239 0.071

* Information is presented in EUR solely for pretsgion purposes. Due to the significant fluctuatafrthe Polish Zloty against the Euro over the
past years, the Statement of Financial Positioradid not accurately reflect the actual comparativencial position of the Company. The
reader should consider changes in the PLN / EURa&xge rate in 2016 comparing to 2015, when reviguliis data.

Selected financial data were translated from Phté iEUR in the following way:

(i) Statement of financial position data were skated using the period end exchange rate publighethe National Bank of Poland for the
last day of the period.

(ii) Statement of comprehensive income and casisftlata were translated using the arithmeticalrage of average exchange rates published
by the National Bank of Poland.
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The following table presents selected details ftbm Consolidated Statement of Financial Positiowlich material
changes had occurred.

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2016 2015

PLN (thousands)

Inventory 574,098 701,287

Advances received 100,607 116,881

Loans and borrowings 226,092 250,110
Inventory

The balance of inventory is PLN 574.1 million as 3ff December 2016 compared to PLN 701.3 milliono&s
31 December 2015. The decrease in inventory isguifyrexplained by the sale of the Nova Krélikarpiject with an
inventory value of PLN 113.6 million as well as to$ sales recognized for a total amount of PLN.84#illion. The

decrease is offset in part by the Group’s investmassociated with direct construction costs faotal amount of
PLN 149.3 million and by the increase in land agldted expenses for a total amount of PLN 68.3anill

Advances received

The balance of advances received is PLN 100.6aniblis of 31 December 2016 compared to PLN 1168 mis of
31 December 2015. The decrease is a result of vegerecognized from the sale of residential umitsaftotal amount
of PLN 309.7 million and is offset in part by adeas received from clients regarding sales of residleunits for a
total amount PLN 293.4 million

Loans and borrowings

The total of short-term and long-term loans anddowings is PLN 226.1 million as of 31 December 2@bépared to
PLN 250.1 million as of 31 December 2015. The daseein loans and borrowings is primarily explaibgdhe effect
of repayment of bank loans for a total amount oNPI00.0 million and repayment of bond loans footitamount of
PLN 23.7 million. The decrease is offset in partlwy effect of proceeds from bank loans net of bardeges for a total
amount of PLN 43.8 million and proceeds from boodanls, net of issue costs for a total amount of BBN) million.
Of the mentioned PLN 226.1 million, an amount ofNPB6.6 million comprises facilities maturing nodatthan
31 December 2017.

The maturity structure of the loans and borrowirgffects the Company’s recent activities relatedaods issued in
2013 through 2016 as well as the maturity of thekb®y loans that were obtained by the Company tarfte
construction costs of the projects developed byCibmpany.

The balance of loans and borrowings may be spiit three categories: 1) bond loans, 2) bankingdo&tated to
residential projects which are completed or undastruction and 3) loans from third parties.

Bond loans as at 31 December 2016 amounted to PAIAN62nillion (as at 31 December 2015: PLN 190.3iom)
comprising a loan principal amount of PLN 222.6limil plus accrued interest of PLN 1.8 million minuse-time costs
directly attributed to the bond issuances whichaarm®rtized based on the effective interest met®RidN(1.8 million).
For additional information see Note 28 of the Cdidsted Financial Statements.
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Debt and net debt position

As of 31 December 2016, the Company’s total delitaioks, bonds and third parties amounted to PLN12@&#llion
(31 December 2015: PLN 250.1 million). Taking imtccount the Company’s available cash position ab8tember
2016 amounting to PLN 69.1 million (31 December 20BLN 99.5 million), the net debt position of tG@mpany
amounted to PLN 157.0 million as at 31 Decembe62@1 December 2015: PLN 150.6 million).

Liquidity and capital resources

The Company funds its day-to-day operations pradtipfrom cash flows provided by its sales actiastias well as
from borrowings under several loan facilities, imihg bonds. The net cash inflow from operatingvaes has
enabled the Company to proceed with the developmgiis residential projects and purchasing newtsplif lands
whilst at the same time maintaining sufficient idjty for its day-to-day operations.

The following table sets forth the cash flow oroasolidated basis:
For the year ended
31 December
2016 2015

PLN (thousands)

Cash flow from/(used in) operating activities 15,324 30,968
Cash flow from/(used in) investing activities 3,137 (2,704)
Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (886) 677

32



Ronson Europe N.V.
Directors’ Report

Overview of cash flow results (cont’d)

Cash flow from/(used in) operating activities

The Company’s net cash inflow from operating atigi for the year ended 31 December 2016 amount®d. N 15.3
million which compares to a net cash inflow fromaperating activities during the year ended 31 Duasr 2015 of
PLN 31.0 million. The decrease in cash inflow impipally explained by:

- the settlement of the Nova Krélikarnia transactigith buy-back of shares amounting to PLN 140.9 iomill
during the year ended 31 December 2016 comparadhilcduring the year ended 31 December 2015;

- expenses for land purchases amounting to PLN 68l®mduring 2016 while these amounted to PLN 25.2
million during 2015;

- anet cash outflow used in trade and other reckigadnd prepayments amounting to PLN 32.3 milliarird
the year ended 31 December 2016 (including prepayofePLN 36.9 million related to acquisition ohl&in
Ursus district in Warsaw announced by the Companyainuary 2017) compared to a net cash inflow from
trade and other receivables and prepayments amgumté PLN 9.8 million during the year ended 31
December 2015, and

- a net cash outflow during the year ended 31 Dece@d&6 from advances received from clients regardin
sales of residential units in the amount of PLN.29illion, which was more than offset by revenue
recognized for a total amount of PLN 309.7 millioompared to a net cash inflow during the year ended
31 December 2015 from advances received in the an@fuPLN 299.2 million, which was offset in parg b
revenue recognized for a total amount of PLN 2&dilBon.

This effect was offset in part by:

- anet cash inflow from inventory amounting to PLB610 million during the year ended 31 December 2@%6
compared to a net cash outflow used in inventorpwarting to PLN 14.4 million during the year ended
31 December 2015.

Cash flow from/(used in) investing activities

The Company’s net cash inflow from investing adidéd amounting to PLN 3.1 million during the yeamnded
31 December 2016 compared to a net cash outflod ins@vesting activities amounting to PLN 2.7 maifi during the
year ended 31 December 2015. The increase in ecafilbvois primarily explained by:

- anet cash inflow from collateralized short-terrmkaeposits amounting to PLN 4.1 million during tear
ended 31 December 2016 compared to a net caslowutBed in collateralized short-term bank depasits
PLN 2.1 million during the year ended 31 DecemtErs2

Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities

The Company’s net cash outflow used in financingvdies totaled PLN 48.9 million during the yeandzd
31 December 2016 compared to a net cash inflodingt®LN 0.7 million during the year ended 31 Detem2015.
The decrease in cash inflow is primarily due to:

- arepayment of bond loans amounting to PLN 23.Haniduring the year ended 31 December 2016 cordpare
to a repayment of bond loans amounting to PLN hiilllon during the year ended 31 December 2015;

- the effect of proceeds from bank loans, net of bamkrges, amounting to PLN 43.8 million during trear
ended 31 December 2016 compared to PLN 132.5 millioing the year ended 31 December 2015;

- a payment of dividend amounting to PLN 21.8 milliduring the year ended 31 December 2016 compared to
PLN 10.9 million during the year ended 31 Decenfixis.

The above mentioned effects were offset in part by:
- arepayment of secured bank loans amounting to FRNO million during the year ended 31 December6201

compared to a repayment of secured bank loans a@mguio PLN 150.1 million during the year ended
31 December 2015;
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Employees

The average number of personnel employed by thep@oynand its subsidiaries — on a fulltime equivalessis —
during 2016 was 67 (2015: 67).

Research and development

The Company and its subsidiaries are not involneahly research and development activities.

Environmental protection

The Company, in conducting its business activitieglertakes to comply with all laws and regulaticegarding use of
land and protection of the natural environment. TQwnpany is not a party to any pending proceediegarding
potential environmental protection violations.

Quarterly reporting by the Company

As a result of requirements pertaining to Amos lufxevelopment and Energy Group Ltd. (‘A. Luzon Gxuthe

Company’s largest (indirect) shareholders, whoseeshare listed on the Tel Aviv stock exchange,fils¢ quarter
reports, semi-annual reports and third quarternte@oe subject to a full scope review by the Comgjsauditors. For
the Company itself, being domiciled in the Netheds and listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange, tiel\sémi-annual
report is subject to a review by the auditor. Thmmpany has agreed with A. Luzon Group that thescfistthe first
and third quarter auditors’ reviews will be fullgimbursed to the Company. The Company considermdpats first

and third quarter report provided with a reviewaegrom auditors a benefit to all of its shareleykl

As at 31 December 2016, the Groups' market cagatiadin was below the value of net assets. Althotigh,Company
strongly believes that this is a temporary situatdtue to many different factors, including low lidity of the
Company’s shares listed on WSE, Management tookoappte steps to review the Company’s accountietermine
if there is any additional write-down required aodnd no basis for it. Management verified that fimecast margin
potential in respect of the inventory is positiféerefore, no indicators for potential additiomapairment have been
identified.
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A. Completed projects

The table below presents information on the tagaidential units in the completed projects/stapas the Company
expects to sell and deliver:

Number of units delivered (*)

to be delivered (*)

Number of residential units expected

Units for
Sold until sale at Total units
Until 31 During the Total 31 31 expected
December  year ended 31 units December December to be Total
Project name Location 2015 December 2016 delivered 2016 2016 delivered project
Espresso Il & 11 Warsaw - 153 153 131 22 153 306
Moko Warsaw - 256 256 20 69 89 345
Panoramika If” Szczecin - 85 85 5 17 22 107
Kamienica Jeyce™ Pozna - 123 123 151 21 172 295
Miody Grunwald 1 & 1) Pozna 166 84 250 1 34 35 285
Naturalis 1,11 & 111 ¢ Warsaw 150 16 166 5 1 6 172
Sakurd™ Warsaw 479 16 495 3 17 20 515
Verdis®™ Warsaw 423 2 425 5 11 16 441
Tamka™ Warsaw 42 20 62 2 1 3 65
Impressid™ Wroctaw 172 25 197 7 2 9 206
Other (old) projects - 1 1 2 3 5 6
Total 1,432 781 2,213 332 198 530 2,743

(*) For the purpose of disclosing information a&#d to the particular projects, the word “sell” §bld”) is used, that relates to signing the preliaiy sale agreement
with the client for the sale of the apartment; wéees the word “deliver” (“delivered”) relates to theansferring of significant risks and rewards betownership of
the residential unit to the client.

(**) For information on the completed projects s@aisiness highlights during the year ended 31 Delser 2016 — B. Results breakdown by project” (pa2fe23).

B. Current projects under construction and/or onlsa

The table below presents information on projectsafbich completion is scheduled in 2017 and 2018 Tompany
has obtained construction permits for all projetégjes and has commenced construction.

Units sold  Units for sale Net Expected
until 31 asat31  Total saleable completion of

Project name Location Dec. 2016 Dec. 2016 units area (nf) construction
Chilli IV Poznai 6 39 45 2,900 2017
Vitalia | Wroctaw 29 110 139 7,200 2017
Panoramika [l Szczecin 14 108 122 5,800 2017
Mtody Grunwald Il Pozna 33 75 108 7,100 2017
City Link 1 Warsaw 264 58 322 14,700 2017
City Link 11 © Warsaw 95 94 189 8,800 2018
Espresso IV Warsaw 64 82 146 8,100 2018
Miasto Moje | Warsaw 39 166 205 10,900 2018
Total 544 732 1,276 65,500

(*) The project is presented in the Consolidafétiancial Statements under Investment in jointwess, the Company’s share in the project is 50%.
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B. Current projects under construction and/or onlsacont’d)

Chilli IV

Description of project

The fourth phase of the Chilli project is being eleped on a part of land strip of 5,508 focated in Tulce near
Pozna, and is a continuation of the Chilli I, Il and Ifrojects, which were completed in 2012, 2013 a@d42

respectively. The fourth phase of this project wiimprise 45 apartments units with an aggregater fipace of
2,900 .

Stage of development

The construction of the Chilli IV project commendadJune 2016, while completion is expected intthied quarter of
2017.

Vitalia |
Description of project
The first phase of this project will be developedphases on a land strip of 7,200 lmcated in Krzyki district in

Wroctaw at Jutrzenki Street. The first phase o frioject will comprise 2 three to four-storey, titdmily residential
buildings with a total of 139 apartments with ag@gate floor space of 7,206.m

Stage of development

The construction of the Vitalia | project commendadDecember 2015, while completion is expectedha third
quarter of 2017.

Panoramika IlI
Description of project

The third phase of the Panoramika project is beiengloped on a part of land strip of 5,80blatated in Szczecin at
Dunska Street, and is a continuation of the Panorarikad Il projects, which were completed in 2012 &916,
respectively. The third phase of this project wimprise 1 nine-storey, multi-family residentiallding with a total of
122 apartments and an aggregate floor space o® 580

Stage of development

The construction of the Panoramika Il project coameed in May 2016, while completion is expectedhia fourth
quarter of 2017.

Mtody Grunwald I
Description of project

The third and last phase of the Mtody Grunwald @cbjs being developed on a part of land strip,80@ nf located in
Grunwald district in Pozriaat Jeleniog6rska Street, and is a continuatiothefMtody Grunwald | and Il projects,
which were completed in 2014 and 2015, respectivighe third phase of this project will compriseig-storey, multi-
family residential buildings with a total of 104 @apments and 4 commercial units with an aggredate Space of
7,100 .

Stage of development

The construction of the Mtody Grunwald 11l projemmmenced in March 2016, while completion is expédh the
fourth quarter of 2017.
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B. Current projects under construction and/or onlsa(cont’d)

City Link land 1l
Description of project

The first and second (and last) phases of thifepr@re being developed on a land strip of 8,980acated in the
Wola district in Warsaw at Skierniewicka streeteTirst and second phase of this project will casgul six to ten-
storey, multi-family residential building with atéd of 301 apartments and 21 commercial units aittaggregate floor
space of 14,700 mand 1 seventeen-storey, multi-family residentiallding with a total of 184 apartments and 5
commercial units with an aggregate floor space,80@ nf.

Stage of development

The construction of the City Link | project commedcin April 2015, while completion is expected hetsecond
quarter of 2017. The pre-sales of the City Linktdbject commenced in April 2016, while the constiart commenced
in November 2016. Completion of the City Link llgpect is expected in the fourth quarter of 2018.

Espresso IV
Description of project

The fourth (and last) phase of the Espresso pragebeing developed on a land strip of 3,600latated in Wola
district in Warsaw at Jana Kazimierza Street, ané icontinuation of Espresso I, 1l and Il projeetkich were
completed in 2014, in May and in December 2016yeetvely. The fourth phase of this project willngprise a six-
eight-storey, multi-family residential building \uita total of 135 apartments and 11 commercial @amitsan aggregate
floor space of 8,100 m

Stage of development

The construction of the Espresso IV project comradnim March 2016, while completion is expected ha first
quarter of 2018.

Miasto Moje |
Description of project

The first stage of the Miasto Moje project is beieyeloped on a land strip of 12,708 located in the Biatgka
district in Warsaw at Marywilska Street. In May &)the Company completed the acquisition of altsgo the land
following a waiver to the pre-emption right by thrunicipality, the city of Warsaw. The first stagktlis project will
comprise 191 apartments and 14 commercial units avitaggregate floor space of 10,900 m

Stage of development

The construction of the Miasto Moje | project conmoed in June 2016 and the sales progress commenced
September 2016, while completion is expected irffiteequarter of 2018.

C. Projects for which construction work is planneéd commence during 2017

As the Company is aware of the increasing compaetitn the market, the Company has been carefulaoage the
number of new projects and the makeup of such gtoje order to best satisfy consumer demand. QU2BiL7, the
Company is considering the commencement of devedopnof the seven phases of three new projects, hwhic
management believes are well-suited to currentooust requirements, including smaller apartmentsmate
economical prices. Furthermore, in order to minanizarket risk, the Company’s management breaks dbevmew
projects into relatively smaller stages. In therdvad any market deterioration or difficulties wiskecuring financing by
the banks for the considered projects, managemawntunther delay some of those plans.
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C. Projects for which construction work is plannéd commence during 2017 (cont’d)

a) New Projects
Marina Miasto

The Marina Miasto project will be developed on adatrip of 8,100 rhlocated in Wroctaw at Na Grobli Street. The
project will comprise 151 units with an aggregdt®i space of 6,100 mThe Company is considering commencing
construction of this project during 2017.

Bulgarska

The Bulgarska project will be developed on a latiip f 6,700 m located in Poznaat Swierzawska Street. The
project will comprise 264 units with an aggregdt®ff space of 14,300 The Company is considering commencing
construction of this project during 2017.

Skierniewicka bis |

The Skierniewicka bis project will be developedatand strip of 7,200 friocated in the Wola district in Warsaw at
Skierniewicka street (nearby City Link project).elproject will comprise 372 units with an aggregéter space of
18,700 mM. The first stage is to comprise 263 units withaggregate floor space of 13,200.rithe Company is
considering commencing construction of the firshgd of this project during 2017.

b) New stages of running projects
Chilli vV

The Chilli V project is a continuation of the Chill- IV projects. The project will comprise 39 tmiwith an aggregate
floor space of 2,200 mThe Company is considering commencing constraaifcthis project during 2017.

Panoramika IV

The Panoramika IV project is a continuation of Bamoramika | - Il projects. The project will corng® 107 units with
an aggregate floor space of 5,708, fihe Company is considering commencing constroatibthis project during
2017.

Vitalia Il

The Vitalia Il project is a continuation of the ¥iia | project. The project will comprise 84 unitsth an aggregate
floor space of 4,700 mThe Company is considering commencing constraaifcthis project during 2017.

Miasto Moje Il

The Miasto Moje Il project is a continuation of thkasto Moje | project. The project will comprisdZ units with an
aggregate floor space of 8,006.Mhe Company is considering commencing constroaifcthis project during 2017.
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D. Value of the preliminary sales agreements signeith clients for which revenue has not
been recognized in the Consolidated Statement ain@rehensive Income

The current volume and value of the preliminaryesahgreements signed with the clients do not imphaet
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income arately but only after final settlement of the aacts with the
customers (for more details see under “A — Comgdlgt®jects” above on page 35). The table belowgmtssthe value
of the preliminary sales agreements executed wigh@ompany's clients in particular for units thatvé not been
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Congurgilie Income:

Value of the preliminary sales

agreements signed with clients in Completed / expected
Project name Location thousands of PLN completion of construction
Moko O Warsaw 13,543 Completed
Espresso Il & lIIY) Warsaw 48,459 Completed
Tamka" Warsaw 3,260 Completed
Impressid” Wroctaw 2,949 Completed
Verdis" Warsaw 2,303 Completed
Sakura"” Warsaw 1,674 Completed
Miody Grunwald I, 1) Pozna 405 Completed
Naturalis I, 1l & 111 © Warsaw 1,926 Completed
Kamienica Jeyce” Pozna 42,825 Completed
Panoramika If’ Szczecin 1,502 Completed
Other (old) projects 1,649 Completed
Subtotal completed projects 120,495
Mtody Grunwald 1117 Pozna 10,993 2017
Panoramika 1If” Szczecin 3,116 2017
Vitalia | © Wroctaw 8,987 2017
Chilli Iv @ Pozna 1,497 2017
Espresso " Warsaw 24,868 2018
Miasto Moje | Warsaw 11,792 2018
Subtotal ongoing projects 61,253
City Link | /™) Warsaw 98,114 2017
City Link 11 /™) Warsaw 41,249 2018
Subtotal project held by joint venture 139,363
Total 321,111

©" For information on the completed projects see ‘iBass highlights during the year ended 31 Deceridbé6 — B. Results breakdown by project” (pages 2)1-2
™ For information on current projects under constiibatand/or on sale, see under “B” above (pages 3%-3

) This project is presented in the Consolidated FgiahStatements under Investment in joint ventutess Company’s share in this project is 50%.

E. Main risks and uncertainties during 2017

While the improving market in 2014, 2015 and 20Xdeptially bodes well for the Company in 2017, theerall

economic situation and geopolitical situation inr@pe and in Poland and the ongoing uncertaintiethénhousing
market make it very difficult to predict with pre@n results for 2017. The level of developmenttled Polish
economy, the performance of the banking industrg aonsumers’ interest in new housing projects, al as

increasing competition in the market are considéodae the most significant uncertainties for timarcial year ending
31 December 2017.
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Additional information to the report

Major shareholders

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as of @te @f publication of this annual report (15 Febyu2017), the
following shareholders are entitled to exerciser@f of the voting rights at the General MeetingStfareholders in

the Company:

Shares

Shares issued:
Major shareholders:

Ronson Europe N.V.
(shares purchased for
redemption)

I.T.R. 2012 B.V®
I.T.R. Dori B.V.®

RN Residential B.V®

Metlife Otwarty
Fundusz Emerytaln{

Nationale Nederlanden
Otwarty Fundusz
Emerytalny®

@ | T.R.2012 B.V. is an indirect subsidiary of G#l€City Holdings N.V.
I.T.R. Dori B.V. is a subsidiary of Amos Luzon Déwgment and Energy Group Ltd.

@

Between 5%-10%.

Between 5%-10%

As of As of As of
15 February 2017 Change in 31 December 2016 Change in 31 December 2015
Number of shares / number of Number of shares / number Number of shares |
% of shares shares % of shares of shares % of shares
272,360,000 - 272,360,000 - , 362000
108,349,187 - 108,349,187 108,349,187 -
39.78% 39.78% 39.78%
- - - (87,449,187) 87,449,187
(32.11%) 32.11%
87,449,187 - 87,449,187 - 87,449,187
32.11% 32.11% 32.11%
20,900,000 - 20,900,000 (20,900,000) 41,800,000
7.67% 7.67% (7.67%) 15.35%
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Between 3%-5%. Between 3%-5% Between 3%-5%
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Between 5%-10%

®  On 14 November 2013, the shares in RN Residential Bere (indirectly, through the acquisition oktehares of RN Development Holding
B.V.) acquired by I.T.R. 2012 B.V. and Amos Luzoev@lopment and Energy Group Ltd., which due to tt@asaction increased indirect
shareholding in Ronson by 7.67% each. On 23 Decef2fiis5, the Company acquired all (20,900,000)esh#nat I.T.R. 2012 B.V. held
through RN Residential B.V. as well as all Comparshares held by I.T.R. 2012 B.V. directly. As atC3cember 2016 and as at the date of
publication of this report, Amos Luzon Developmant Energy Group indirectly controls 39.78% of @@mpany’s outstanding shares. It
may be expected that as of date of redemption &yCtbmpany of its shares, the indirect shareholdihdmos Luzon Development and
Energy Group in the Company may increase to 66 4 %direct result of the redemption.

@ Formerly Amplico Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny.

® Formerly ING Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny.

Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shal®s Supervisory Board members in the year ended
31 December 2016 and until the date of publicatiohthe report

As at 31 December 2016 and as at the day of pubdjgiis report Mr Amos Luzon held 78.04% of theugs and
voting rights in Amos Luzon Group and as a reshlis indirectly held a 31.04% interest in the Compa

Changes in the Supervisory Board in the year endddDecember 2016 and until the date of publication

of the report

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders hel@@m\pril 2016 approved the appointment of Mr Amasan as
member of the Supervisory Board for a term of fgaars. His appointment came into force as of the afathe
adoption of the resolution. Mr Luzon replaced MieAMientkavich, who stepped down as SupervisoryrBakrector

effective on the day of the Annual General Meetifi@hareholders (20 April 2016).
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Changes in the Management Board in the year endddiBcember 2016 and until the date of publication
of the report

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders hel@@wpril 2016 approved the appointment of Mr Roghiovizki
as member of the Management Board and managingtatirB for a term of four years. His appointmenineainto
force as of the day of the adoption of the resoitutMr Vishnovizki replaced Mr Yosef Shaked, whepgied down as
managing director B effective on the day of the AainGeneral Meeting of Shareholders (20 April 2016)

On 18 January 2017, Mr. Roy Vishnovizki submitted hesignation as member of the Management Boatd an
managing director B with immediate effect.

Indemnity for Management Board members and SupeovisBoard members

The Articles of Association of the Company provide an indemnification for all directors of the Cpany (article
42). The members of the Supervisory Board and Mamagt Board shall be reimbursed for (i) all reabtmaosts of
conducting a defense against claims based on ad&lures to act in the exercise of their duti@g,any damages or
fines payable by them as a result of an act ourito act in the exercise of their duties, andl @asonable costs of
appearing in other legal proceedings in which they involved as current or former directors of @@mpany. No
indemnification will be given to any director if itas been determined by a judgment which is nodosgbject to
appeal, that the act or failure to act is charamdras willful misconduct or gross negligence. dkattons to award the
indemnification in a specific case are to be disetbin the Annual Accounts of the Company. Adoptbthe Annual
Accounts will be considered to be approval of ste$olutions, unless the General Meeting of Shadehsldecides
otherwise.

Overview of the results during the three months edd31 December 2016

The Company’s net profit for the three months en8&dDecember 2016 was PLN 53,706 thousand and ean b
summarized as follows:

For the three months ended 31 December 2016 2015

. (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Revenue 282,197 118,775
Cost of sales (204,551) (91,560)
Gross profit/(loss) 77,646 27,215
Changes in the value of investment property - (474)
Selling and marketing expenses (2,252) (1,435)
Administrative expenses (7,938) (5,527)
Share of profit/(loss) from joint ventures 477) (351)
Other expenses (2,013) (367)
Other income 219 945
Result from operating activities 66,185 20,006
Finance income 377 530
Finance expense (2,270) (2,402)
Net finance income/(expense) (1,893) (1,872)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 64,292 18,134
Income tax benefit/(expresses) (10,636) (970)
Profit/(loss) for the period before non-controllinginterests 53,656 17,164
Non-controlling interests 50 121
Net profit/(loss) for the period attributable to
the equity holders of the parent 53,706 17,285
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Other

As of 31 December 2016, the Company has issuedagtgas for bank loans granted to subsidiaries atimguto
a total of PLN 2,527 thousand.

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had no litigatilams or liabilities exceeding in total 10% oétGroup’s equity.
The following net movements in the Group’s mainysmns took place during the year ended 31 Deced&6:

- an increase in the provision for deferred tax liibs of PLN 3,334 thousand (a decrease of PLN6Q,6
thousand during the year ended 31 December 2015).

Statement relating to the system of internal cortro

In line with best practice provision 11.1.4 of thHeutch Code and bearing in mind the recommendatiwinshe
Monitoring Committee Corporate Governance Code,Gbhepany issues a declaration about the effectssné the
system of internal control of the processes on ktte financial reporting is based.

In 2016, the Management Board assessed the effeetsg of the system of internal controls for financeporting.

During the investigation on which this assessmeas tased, no shortcomings were identified that npghsibly have
a material impact on the financial reporting. Oa tasis of the results of the above assessmerthanisk analyses
that were carried out at the Company within thenfavork of governance and compliance, the ManageBweatd is of

the opinion - after consulting with the Audit Contiteeé and with the approval of the Supervisory Boattat the

system of internal controls provides a reasonaldgrek of certainty that the financial reporting teams no

inaccuracies of material importance. An inhereatr@nt in how people and organizations work togeithar dynamic
world is that systems of internal control cannobville an absolute degree (though they can provideasonable
degree) of certainty as regards the prevention ateral inaccuracies in the financial reporting dne prevention of
losses and fraud.

In our view the system of internal controls, foalis® the financial reporting, functioned effectivelver the past year.
There are no indications that the system of infezaatrols will not function effectively in 2017.

Directors Representation statement

In conjunction with the EU Transparency Directive iacorporated in Chapter 5.3 of the Dutch Findn®larkets
Supervision Act (Wet op het financieel toezichg tManagement Board therefore confirms to the biegs &nowledge
that:

- the Annual Financial Statements for the year enBledecember 2016 give a true and fair view of theets,
liabilities, financial position and profits and foef the Company and its subsidiaries,

- the additional management information discloseth@nAnnual Report gives a true and fair view of @@mpany and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 and tke affairs during the financial year to which tleport relates, and

- the Annual Report describes the principal riskrigcihe Company. These are described in detailignDirector’s
Report.
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Representation concerning election of the Compangigitor

The Management Board confirms that the Company&tauhas been elected according to applicablesraled the
audit firm and its registered accountants engagetieé audit of the financial statements of Ronsaropge N.V. meet
the objectives to present an objective and indepeincéport. The agreement with the auditors wasesigon 2 August
2016. For information about agreed-upon engagenadritee Company’s auditor see Note 16 of the Companancial
Statements.

Financial risk management, objectives and policies

For information on the financial risk managemeijeatives and policies see Note 40 of the Constii&inancial
Statements.

The Management Board

Shraga Weisman Tomasz tapiski Andrzej Gutowski
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer algs and Marketing Director

Erez Yoskovitz

Rotterdam, 15 February 2017
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Independent auditor’s report
To: the shareholders and supervisory board of Ronson Europe N.V.

Report on the audit of the financial statements 2016 included in the
annual report

Our opinion

We have audited the financial statements 2016 of Ronson Europe N.V. (hereafter: the Company), based in Rotterdam,
the Netherlands. The financial statements include the consolidated financial statements and the company financial
statements.

In our opinion:
The accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Ronson Europe N.V. as
at 31 December 2016 and of its result and its cash flows for 2016 in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
The accompanying company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Ronson Europe N.V. as at
31 December 2016 and of its result for 2016 in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The consolidated financial statements comprise:
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016;
the following statements for 2016: the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows; and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The company financial statements comprise:
the company statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016;
the following statements for 2016: the company statements of profit or loss, changes in equity and cash flows; and
notes comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section
of our report.

We are independent of Ronson Europe N.V. in accordance with the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van
accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation with respect to
independence) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands. Furthermore we have complied with the
Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Materiality

Materiality PLN 3.700.000

Benchmark applied 0.5% of total assets

Explanation We believe that basing our materiality on total assets best reflects what is important for
the users of the financial statements, considering the nature of the entity’s business and
industry

as well as the entity’s current operations.
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We have also taken misstatements into account and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material for the
users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the supervisory board that misstatements in excess of PLN 185.000, which are identified during the
audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be reported on qualitative
grounds.

Scope of the group audit
Ronson Europe N.V. is at the head of a group of entities. The financial information of this group is included in the
consolidated financial statements of Ronson Europe N.V.

Our group audit mainly focused on significant group entities based on the relative size of the group entity on the total assets,
including the size of the work in progress, finished goods and outstanding finance positions. Significant group entities are also
determined based on specific risks of material misstatements. We have performed audit procedures ourselves at the standalone
figures of Ronson Europe N.V. and in joint operation with our local team in Poland, we performed full audit procedures for the
significant group entities. All significant group entities are located in Poland. We performed specific audit procedures at the other
group entities. In total these procedures represent 98 % of the group's total assets and 89% of revenues.

Assets Revenues

% . 10%

70%

80%

Full scope mm Specific scope No scope
By performing the procedures mentioned above at group entities, together with additional procedures at group level, we
have been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence about the group’s financial information to provide an
opinion about the consolidated financial statements.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the supervisory board. The key audit matters are
not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Inventory valuation, refer to note 20

Inventory consists of multi-family residential real estate projects We determined that inventory is periodically assessed by
under development or construction and is the most significant management of the Company and that the net realizable value
account in the consolidated financial statements of the Company.  assessment is based on correct data.

Inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

The cost of inventory includes, amongst others, land or leasehold We used our own EY real estate valuation specialists to assist

rights for land, construction costs, planning and design costs, us in obtaining an understanding of management’s analyses.
perpetual usufruct fees and real estate taxes, borrowing costs and  We evaluated the work of management, including the
professional fees directly attributable to the project and competence, capabilities and, where applicable, objectivity of
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construction overheads and other directly related costs.

The Company assessed internally the net realizable value of the
inventory and decreased the value when the net realizable value
was lower than the cost. The net realizable value calculation is
highly dependent on estimates like, amongst others, the
estimated sales prices per m2, the estimated construction costs
and the expected timing of sales of the units. Management
assessed possible

write-downs on inventory for each project separately, according to
the projection of revenues net from cost of sales.

Revenue Recoghnition, refer to note 3(b) and note 6

Revenue arising from the multi-family residential real estate
projects under development or construction contracts, represents
the majority of the Company’s total revenue. Revenue is
recognized by the Company when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the residential units have been transferred to the
buyer and when the revenue can be measured reliably.

The risks and rewards are considered as transferred to the buyer
when the residential units have been substantially constructed,
the occupancy permit for the property has been issued, the
apartment has been accepted by the customer (hand-over
protocol has been signed between the buyer and the Company)
and the full amount resulting from the sale agreement has been
paid by the buyer. The remaining risks are considered by the
Company’s Management as remote. Consequently, the proper cut-
off of revenues has been identified as a key audit matter.

management'’s specialists with respect to the net realizable
value assessment. We obtained an understanding of the net
realizable value assessment processes and considered the
internal controls in this process adequate in design.

Additionally, we performed substantive audit procedures by,
amongst others, extensively discussions with management of
the Company with respect to the net realizable value method
applied, the key assumptions used, including comparing these
assumptions to similar projects in the market and the actual
realized results of the net realizable value calculations on
individual projects.

We obtained an understanding of the sales process and
considered the internal controls in this process adequate in
design to mitigate the risk of incorrect and incomplete revenue
recognition, including proper cut-off of revenues.

Additionally, we performed substantive audit procedures by,
amongst others, detailed margin analyses, extensive tests of
underlying transactions to assess the correctness and
completeness of recognition of revenue, including proper cut-
off.

Sale of development project to a major shareholder and acquisition of own shares, refer to notes 20, 39, 43

On 23 December 2016, the Company sold one of its development
project (Nova Krélikarnia) to one of its principal shareholder with
settlement in cash and the Company’s own treasury shares which
are planned to be subsequently redeemed.

After redemption of these shares, the Company only has one major
shareholder, Luzon Group Ltd., whose interest will increase from
nearly 39,8% to about 66%.

Consequently, the accounting of the transaction i.e. recognition
and its presentation have been identified as a key audit matter.

We obtained an understanding of the process and underlying
agreements and assessed whether the transaction is properly
accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements.

The Company has taken into account IAS 2 and IAS 18 and
recorded the transfer of the project Nova Krélikarnia as a
separate line item as revenue. The cost related to the sold
project are disclosed separately as cost of goods sold in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The acquisition of the own shares is presented in the
shareholders’ equity.

We determined that the transaction is valued and accounted
for in accordance with the agreements made with the
shareholder and in accordance with the applicable reporting
standards.
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Report on other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains other information
that consists of:

Supervisory Board report,

The Directors’ report,

Other information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:
is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements,
contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our audit of the
financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains material misstatements.
By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the
Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is less than the scope of those performed in our audit of the
financial statements.

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the management
board’s report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information pursuant to Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Engagement

We were engaged by the Company’s supervisory board as the auditor of Ronson Europe N.V.
as of the audit for the year 2009 and have operated as statutory auditor ever since that date.

Description of responsibilities for the financial statements

Responsibilities of management and the supervisory board for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with EU-
IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, management is responsible for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks mentioned, management should prepare the
financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Management should disclose events and
circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial
statements.

The supervisory board is responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objective is to plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not have detected
all material errors and fraud.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified
misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in
accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements. Our audit included
e.g.,.
Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, designing
and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting, and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures.
Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Because we are ultimately responsible for the opinion, we are also responsible for directing, supervising and performing
the group audit. In this respect we have determined the nature and extent of the audit procedures to be carried out for
group entities. Decisive were the size and/ or the risk profile of the group entities or operations. On this basis, we
selected group entities for which an audit or review

had to be carried out on the complete set of financial information or specific items.

We communicate with the supervisory board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We provide the supervisory board with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the supervisory board, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these

matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, not communicating the matter is in the public interest.

Zwolle, 15 February 2017

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

Signed by M. Rooks
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Othe€omprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Revenue from the sale of residential projects 6 309,643 281,372
Revenue from the sale of the Nova Krolikarnia peoje 6,39 175,119 -
Revenue 484,762 281,372
Cost of sales of residential projects 7 (248,222) (230,124)
Cost of sales of the Nova Krélikarnia project 7,39 (117,850) -
Cost of sales (366,072) (230,124)
Gross profit 118,690 51,248
Changes in the value of investment property 16 - (474)
Selling and marketing expenses 8 (8,083) (6,459)
Administrative expenses 9 (22,197) (18,834)
Share of profit/(loss) in joint ventures 18 (1,380) (678)
Other expenses 11 (3,354) (1,710)
Other income 12 876 3,329
Result from operating activities 84,552 26,422
Finance income 13 1,900 1,811
Finance expense 13 (8,857) (7,903)
Net finance expenses (6,957) (6,092)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 77,595 20,330
Income tax benefit/(expense) 14 (12,497) (1,356)
Profit/(loss) for the year 65,098 18,974
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 65,098 18,974
Total profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:

equity holders of the parent 64,531 19,350
non-controlling interests 26 567 (376)
Total profit/(loss) for the year 65,098 18,974
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

equity holders of the parent 64,531 19,350
non-controlling interests 26 567 (376)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 65,098 18,974
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basidduted) 27 269,985,223 272,360,000
In Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Net earnings per share attributable to

the equity holders of the parent (basic and dilutejl 27 0.239 0.071

The notes on pages 54 to 119 are an integral path@se consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Assets

Non-current assets

Property and equipment 15 8,823 8,872
Investment property 16 8,743 8,743
Investment in joint ventures 18 744 17,438
Deferred tax assets 19 3,616 11,303
Total non-current assets 21,926 46,356

Current assets

Inventory 20 574,098 701,287
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 21 47,045 18,493
Income tax receivable 492 428
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 22 - 4,093
Loans granted to third parties 17 508 458
Loans granted to joint ventures 18 15,906 -
Receivables from former shareholder 39 9,900 -
Other current financial assets 23 4,480 4,198
Cash and cash equivalents 24 69,056 99,531
Total current assets 721,485 828,488
Total assets 743,411 874,844

The notes on pages 54 to 119 are an integral phittese consolidated financial statements.
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Ronson Europe N.V.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (cond)

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 20,762 20,762
Share premium 282,873 282,873
Treasury shares (140,854) -
Retained earnings 196,805 154,063
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 25 359,586 457,698
Non-controlling interests 26 2,290 1,723
Total equity 361,876 459,421
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Bond loans 28, 29 137,538 171,538
Secured bank loans 28, 30 1,941 42,099
Loans from third parties 28, 31 - 906
Share-based payment liabilities 35 978 630
Deferred tax liability 19 11,114 7,780
Total non-current liabilities 151,571 222,953

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables and accrued expenses 32 40,882 38,574
Bond loans 28, 29 85,053 18,759
Secured bank loans 28, 30 - 14,803
Loans from third parties 28,31 1,560 2,005
Advances received 33 100,607 116,881
Income tax payable 763 7
Provisions 34 1,099 1,441
Total current liabilities 229,964 192,470
Total liabilities 381,535 415,423
Total equity and liabilities 743,411 874,844

The notes on pages 54 to 119 are an integral phtttese consolidated financial statements.
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 Decemp@l5:

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Share Share Treasury Retained M Total

) - - - Total controlling o
In thousands of Polish Zlotys capital  premium shares  earnings int equity
(PLN) interests
Balance at 1 January 2015 20,762 282,873 - 145,607 449,242 2,099 451,341
Comprehensive income:
Profit/(loss) for the year ended
31 December 2015 - - - 19,350 19,350 (376) 18,974
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - 19,350 19,350 (376) 18,974
Dividend paid (see Note 25) - - - (10,894) (10,894) - (10,894)
Balance at 31 December 2015 20,762 282,873 - 153,06 457,698 1,723 459,421
Comprehensive income:
Profit/(loss) for the year ended
31 December 2016 - - - 64,531 64,531 567 65,098
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - 64,531 64,531 567 65,098
Dividend paid (see Note 25) - - - (21,789) (21,789) - (21,789)
Own shares acquired
(see Note 39) - - (140,854) - (140,854) - (140,854)
Balance at 31 December 2016 20,762 282,873  (140)854196,805 359,586 2,290 361,876

The notes on pages 54 to 119 are an integral patti@se consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

Profit/(loss) for the period 65,098 18,974
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period t@hcash used in operating activities

Settlement of the Nova Kroélikarnia transactiothwuy-back of shares 25,39 (140,854) -
Depreciation 9,15 987 706

Write-down of inventory 20 2,269 226
Decreasel/(increase) in the value of investmentestpp 16 - 474

Finance expense 13 8,857 7,903
Finance income 13 (1,900) (1,811)
Profit on sale of property and equipment 12 (70) (32)

Share of loss/( profit) from joint ventures 18 1,380 678
Share-based payment 35 348 (72)

Income tax benefit / (expense) 14 12,497 1,356
Subtotal (51,388) 28,402
Receivables from former shareholder 39 (9,900) -

Decreasel/(increase) in inventory 42 135,968 14,399
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivabléprepayments 42 (32,250) (9,834)
Decrease/(increase) in other current financialtasse (282) (1,476)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payableacanded expenses 2,308 (5,137)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 34 (342) 363

Increase/(decrease) in advances received (16,274) 17,868
Subtotal 27,840 44,585
Interest paid (13,077) (14,965)
Interest received 1,345 1,402
Income tax received/(paid) (784) (54)

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 15,324 30,968

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

Acquisition of property and equipment 15 (1,678) (155)
Proceeds from loans granted to third parties 17 - 1,039
Investment in joint ventures 18 (88) (1,559)
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 4,093 (2,062)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 810 33
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 3,137 (2,704)

Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Proceeds from bank loans, net of bank charges 30 43,803 132,453
Repayment of bank loans 30 (100,024) (150,125)
Proceeds from bond loans, net of issue costs 29 53,939 44,243
Repayment of bond loans 29 (23,684) (15,000)
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent 25 (21,789) (10,894)
Repayment of loans received from third parties 31 (1,181) -

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (48,936) 677
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (30,475) 28,941
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 99,531 70,590
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 24 69,056 99,531

The notes on pages 54 to 119 are an integral pattie@se consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Background and business of the Company

(@ Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’), a Dutch puldmmpany with its statutory seat in Rotterdam, the
Netherlands, was incorporated on 18 June 2007 rd@djistered office is located at Weena 210-212,dRdém,
the Netherlands. The Company (together with itsgsRddubsidiaries ‘the Group’), is active in the depment
and sale of units, primarily apartments, in mudtivily residential real-estate projects to individuastomers in
Poland.

The shares of the Company are traded on the Wasask Exchange since 5 November 2007.

As at 31 December 2016, 39.78% of the outstandireges are controlled by Amos Luzon Development and
Energy Group Ltd. (‘A. Luzon Group’), while anoth&iake of 39.78% is held by the Company for theppse

of redemption. The remaining 20.44% of the outstagndhares are held by other investors includingddale
Nederlanden Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny holding ketw 5% and 10% and Metlife Otwarty Fundusz
Emerytalny holding between 3% and 5% and of thetantling shares as of the date of this report.aly be
expected that as of date of redemption by the Compé its shares, the indirect shareholding of Arhagon
Development and Energy Group in the Company magase to 66.1% as a direct result of the redemgpiibe
number of shares held by the investors is equeiemumber of votes, as there are no privilegedeshiasued

by the Company.

A list of the companies from which the financiata are included in these Consolidated Financete8tents
and the extent of ownership and control are preskintNote 1(b).

(b)  The details of the Polish companies whose finansfatements have been included in these Consdlidate
Financial Statements, the year of incorporation tiedpercentage of ownership and voting rightsctliyeor
indirectly held by the Company as at 31 Decembé628@re presented below and on the following page.

The projects managed by the companies are in \asgtages of development ranging from being in toegss
of acquiring land for development to projects which completed or near completion.

Share of ownership & voting

Year of rights
Entity name incorporation at the end of

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

a. held directly by the Company :
1. Ronson Development Management Sp. z 0.0. 1999 100% 100%
2. Ronson Development 2000 Sp. z 0.0. 2000 100% 100%
3. Ronson Development Warsaw Sp. z 0.0. 2000 100% 100%
4. Ronson Development Investment Sp. z 0.0. 2002 100% 100%
5. Ronson Development Metropol Sp. z 0.0. 2002 100% 100%
6. Ronson Development Properties Sp. z 0.0. 2002 100% 100%
7. Apartments Projekt Sp. z o.@reviously Ronson Development Apartments Sp. 2 0.0 2003 100% 100%
8. Ronson Development Enterprise Sp. z 0.0. 2004 100% 100%
9. Ronson Development Company Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100% 100%
10. Ronson Development Creations Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100% 100%
11. Ronson Development Buildings Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100% 100%
12. Ronson Development Structure Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100% 100%
13. Ronson Development Pozn8p. z 0.0. 2005 100% 100%
14. E.E.E. Development Sp. z 0.0. 2005 100% 100%
15. Ronson Development Innovation Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100% 100%
16. Ronson Development Wroctaw Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100% 100%
17. Ronson Development Capital Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100% 100%
18. Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100% 100%
19. Ronson Development Construction Sp. z 0.0. 2006 100% 100%
20. City 2015 Sp. z 0.qpreviously named Ronson Development City Sp. 2 0.0 2006 100% 100%
21. Ronson Development Village Sp. z d'b. 2007 100% 100%
22. Ronson Development Conception Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100% 100%
23. Ronson Development Architecture Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100% 100%
24. Ronson Development Skyline Sp. z o.0. 2007 100% 100%
25. Continental Development Sp. z ogreviously Ronson Development Continental Sp.2)o. 2007 100% 100%
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Background and business of the Company (cont'd)
Share of ownership & voting
Year of rights
Entity name incorporation at the end of
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
b.  held directly by the Company (cont'd)
26. Ronson Development Universal Sp. z 6Jo. 2007 100% 100%
27. Ronson Development Retreat Sp. z o0.0. 2007 100% 100%
28. Ronson Development South Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100% 100%
29. Ronson Development Partner 5 Sp. z (ueviously Ronson Development West Sp. z 0.0.) 2007 100% 100%
30. Ronson Development Partner 4 Sp. z (eviously named Ronson Development East Sp..% 0.0 2007 100% 100%
31. Ronson Development North Sp. z o.0. 2007 100% 100%
32. Ronson Development Providence Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100% 100%
33. Ronson Development Finco Sp. z 0.0. 2009 100% 100%
34. Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100% 100%
35. Ronson Development Skyline 2010 Sp. z 0.0. w lilagjd 2010 100% 100%
36. Ronson Development Partner 3 Sp. z 0.0. 2012 100% 100%
b. held indirectly by the Company:
37 AGRT Sp. z o.0. 2007 100% 100%
38 Ronson Development Partner 4 Sp. z (u@viously named Panoramika Sp.k,) 2007 100% 100%
39 Ronson Development Sp z o.0. - Estate Sp.k. 2007 100% 100%
40 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Home Sp.k. 2007 100% 100%
41 Ronson Development Sp z 0.0. - Horizon Sp.k. 2007 100% 100%
42 Ronson Development Partner 3 Sp. z 0.0. - Sakufa Sp 2007 100% 100%
43 Ronson Development Sp z 0.0. -Town Sp.k. 2007 100% 100%
44 Destiny Sp. z 0.Qpreviously named Ronson Development Destiny $po2 2007 100% 100%
45 Ronson Development Millenium Sp. z 0.0. 2007 100% 100%
46 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - EEE 2011 Sp.k. 2009 100% 100%
47 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Apartments 201K Sp. 2009 100% 100%
48 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Idea Sp.k. 2009 100% 100%
49 Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. —Destit Bp.k. 100% 100%
(previously named Ronson Development Sp. z o.e@stiby 2011) Sp.k.) 2009
50 Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. - Enter@@4.1 Sp.k. 2009 100% 100%
51 Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. - Retfkt 3p.k. 2009 100% 100%
52 Ronson Development Partner 5 Sp. z 0.0. - Vitgh& .S 100% 100%
(Previously named Ronson Development Sp. z o.aoctaw 2011 Sp.k.) 200¢
53 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - 2011 Sp.k. 2009 100% 100%
54 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Gemini 2 Sp.k. 2009 100% 100%
55 Ronson Development Sp. z o.0. - Verdis Sp.k. 2009 100% 100%
56 Ronson Espresso Sp. z 0.0. 2006 82% 82%
57 Ronson Development Apartments 2010 Sp. z o.0. 2010 100% 100%
58 RD 2010 Sp. z 0.@previously named Ronson Development 2010 Sp. .} 0.0 2010 100% 100%
59 Retreat Sp. z 0.@previously named Ronson Development Retreat 2@1@ 8.0.) 2010 100% 100%
60 Enterprise 2010 Sp. z o@reviously Ronson Development Enterprise 2010z3po.) 2010 100% 100%
61 Wroctaw 2010 Sp. z 0.Q(previously Ronson Development Wroctaw 2010 Spoz)o 2010 100% 100%
62 E.E.E. Development 2010 Sp. z 0.0. 2010 100% 100%
63 Ronson Development Nautica 2010 Sp. z o0.0. 2010 100% 100%
64 Gemini 2010 Sp. z 0.@previously named Ronson Development Gemini 201(z%po.) 2010 100% 100%
65 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Naturalis Sp.k. 2011 100% 100%
66 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Impressio Sp.k. 2011 100% 100%
67 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Continental 2q1.k.S 2011 100% 100%
68 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Providence 2014 Sp 2011 100% 100%
69 Ronson Development Partner 2 Sp. z 0.0. - Capitil Bp. k. 2011 100% 100%
70 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - Architecture 28p.k. 2011 100% 100%
71 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - City 1 Sp.k. 2012 100% 100%
72 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - City 2 Sp.k. 2012 100% 100%
73 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - City 4 Sp.k. 2016 100% n.a.
74 Ronson Development Sp. z 0.0. - City 5 Sp.k. 2016 100% n.a.

(*) The Company has the power to govern the firgrasid operating policies of this entity and toaihtbenefits from its activities, whereas Kancelari

Radcy Prawnego Jarostaw Zubrzycki holds the legeltb the shares of this entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2. Basis of preparation and measurement

(a) Basis of preparation and statement of compliare
These Consolidated Financial Statements have Ipeepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (‘IFRS8’)ight of the nature of the Group’s activitiehetIFRSs
applied by the Group are not different from the $Rendorsed by the European Union, which are eféeftr
the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The simaware of the fact that IFRS 15 and IFRS 9chvlaire
effective for financial years beginning on or aftedanuary 2018, have been already endorsed dyutopean
Union. The Group is currently in the process oflgsia of quantitative and qualitative impact of skeotwo
standards, as well as of IFRS 16, which is noteyetorsed, on the Group’s consolidated financidestants.
IFRSs comprise standards and interpretations aedepy the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the International Financial Reportingterpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). The Company
Financial Statements have been prepared in acamedeith article 362.8 of the Netherlands Civil Code
The Consolidated Financial Statements were awbadrby the Boards of Directors of Ronson Europe. WV
15 February 2017. These Consolidated Financiaérsiants have been prepared on the assumption that th
Group is a going concern, meaning it will contirineoperation for the foreseeable future and willdide to
realize assets and discharge liabilities in thenabicourse of its operations.

(b)  Basis of measurement
The Consolidated Financial Statements have begpaped on the historical cost basis, except foestment
property which was measured at fair value. The odghused to measure fair values for the purpogeciare
the Consolidated Financial Statements are discusstgekr in Note 16 and Note 3(S).

(c) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of eawtity in the Group are measured using the cuyr@fiche
primary economic environment in which the entityemgies (the ‘functional currency’) being Polish ¥lo
(‘PLN"). Polish zloty is the presentation currenafythe consolidated financial statements of theuprand is
also the functional currency of the parent compafighough the Company has its statutory seat in the
Netherlands, it operates mainly in Poland. The Glidated Financial Statements are presented instls of
Polish Zloty, except when otherwise indicated.

(d)  Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements requirasagement to make judgments, estimates and assushiat
affect the application of accounting policies ahé teported amounts of assets, liabilities, thelaksire of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effihancial statements, and the reported amounitscoime and
expenses during the reported period. Actual resnéty differ from these estimates. Estimates ancerhyidg
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. iRegit0 accounting estimates are recognized ipdhnod in
which the estimate is revised. In particular, infation about significant areas of estimation, utadety and
critical judgments in applying accounting policifsat have the most significant effect on the amsunt
recognized in the financial statements, are desdrib the following notes:

. Note 16 — investment property

. Note 19 — utilization of tax losses

. Note 20 — inventory

. Note 34 — provisions

. Note 38 — commitments and contingencies

The Company conducts residential units projectsdeveloping activities in the dedicated SPVs. Toenpany
reflects in the Consolidated Financial Statemdmsatctivities and transactions related to sucheptsjbased on
the substance rather than legal form. Such traiesecare accounted for in accordance with 1AS 2 I&®1 18,
whereby inventory is sold and revenue should begeized after the criteria are met.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2. Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)

(d)  Use of estimates and judgments (cont’d)

Estimation of net realizable value for inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and eelizable value (NRV). NRV for completed inventqmoperty
(Finished goods) is assessed with reference toehadaditions and prices existing at the repordate and is
determined by the Group having taken suitable aateadvice and in the light of recent market tratisas.
NRV in respect of inventory property under condiarc (work in progress) is assessed with refereaaqaarket
prices at the reporting date for similar complgtegperty, less estimated costs to complete corigiruand less
an estimate of the time value of money to the datompletion.

Valuation of investment property

The fair value of the investment property is deiaead by independent real estate valuation expagsdon the
discounted cash flow approach. The determinatioth®ffair value of the investment property requites use
of estimates such as future cash flows from aqsetsh as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revestreams,
capital values of fixtures and fittings, any enwingental matters and the overall repair and conditb the

property) and discount rates applicable to thosetas

Deferred tax asset recognition

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unusetbsars and deductible temporary differences texent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be availatdgainst which the losses and deductible tempaliffarences
can be utilized. Significant management judgmengdglired to determine the amount of deferred &sets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing thedlevel of future taxable profits together withure tax
planning strategies.

Uncertain tax treatment

Regulations regarding VAT, corporate profits taxdasocial security contributions are subject togdient
changes. These changes result in there beinggitilet of reference and few established precedéatsmay be
followed. The binding regulations also contain uteiaties, resulting in differences in opinion redjag the
legal interpretation of tax regulations both betweg®vernment bodies, and between government badids
companies.

Tax and other settlements may be subject to itigpety administrative bodies authorised to impbsgh

penalties and fines, and any additional taxatiahilities calculated as a result must be paid twgetvith high
interest. The above circumstances mean that taxsexe is greater in Poland than in countries thakela more
established taxation system. Accordingly, the ant®sghown in the financial statements may changelater
date as a result of the final decision of the tatherities.

On 15 July 2016, amendments were made to the Tdin#&hce to introduce the provisions of Generali-Ant
Avoidance Rules (GAAR). GAAR are targeted to prévanigination and use of fictitious legal structsiget up

to avoid payment of tax in Poland. GAAR define tsasion as an activity performed mainly with a view
realising tax gains, which is contrary, under gieincumstances, to the subject and objective otalkdaw. In
accordance with GAAR, an activity does not bringpwbtax gains, if its modus operandi was false. Any
instances of (i) unreasonable division of an opemafii) involvement of agents despite lack of eanric
rationale for such involvement, (iii) mutually exsive or mutually compensating elements, as wefivd®ther
activities similar to those referred to earlier nigytreated as a hint of artificial activities sdijto GAAR. New
regulations will require considerably greater ju@ginin assessing tax effects of individual trarisast

The GAAR clause should be applied to the transastiperformed after clause effective date and & th
transactions which were performed prior to GAARusk effective date, but for which after the claefective
date tax gains were realised or continue to beseshl The implementation of the above provision eviable
Polish tax authority challenge such arrangemeratissesl by tax remitters as restructuring or reogggion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

()

Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)

The Group accounts for current and deferred taetasand liabilities based on the requirementsA&f 12
Income taxes, based on taxable profit (tax logsjaltle base, carry-forward of unused tax lossescang-
forward of unused tax credits, and tax rates, whdesidering the assessment of uncertainty relaiethx
settlements. If uncertainty exists as to whethat #n what extent tax authority will accept indivadutax
treatments of made transactions, the Group dissldkese settlements while accounting for uncestaint
assessment.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Notent¥4Note 19.

Basis of consolidation

These Consolidated Financial Statements comphisdiriancial statements of the Company and itsidisvges
as at 31 December 2016. Control is achieved wherGtloup is exposed, or has rights, to variablermstérom
its involvement with the investee and has the ghib affect those returns through its power over investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee ifl amly if, the Group has:

. power over the investee (i.e. existing rights tjige it the current ability to direct the relevadtivities
of the investee);

. exposure, or rights, to variable returns fromritgilvement with the investee;

. the ability to use its power over the investeeffec its returns.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controisnaestee if facts and circumstances indicate ttinete are
changes to one or more of the three elements dfalo€onsolidation of a subsidiary begins when @reup
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases wheGroup loses control of the subsidiary. Asdebilities,

income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired posiés of during the year are included in the codatdd
financial statements from the date the Group gamstrol until the date the Group ceases to corttiel
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other congnsive income (OCI) are attributed to the equitidars of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlimtgrests, even if this results in the non-conimgllinterests
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjugsrae made to the financial statements of subrgidido
bring their accounting policies into line with th&roup’s accounting policies. All intra-group asseisd
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash dloalating to transactions between members of ttoeiisare
eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidianyhout a loss of control, is accounted for aseaity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary,dtetognizes the related assets (including goodwdbilities,
non-controlling interest and other components afitygvhile any resultant gain or loss is recognizegrofit or
loss. Any investment retained is recognized atvaiue.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are pezbéor the same period as the financial stateroéparent.
The Group entities keep books of accounts in a@oarel with accounting policies specified in the Aguing

Act dated 29 September 1994 (‘the Accounting Autith subsequent amendments and the regulationsdssu
based on that Act (all together: ‘Polish Accounti&tandards’). Ronson Europe N.V. keeps the books of
accounts in accordance with accounting policiesuired by the Dutch law. These consolidated findncia
statements include a number of adjustments notidecl in the books of account of the Group entitigsich
were made in order to bring the financial statemertthose entities to conformity with IFRSs as@dd by
EU.

Where property is acquired, via corporate acqaisitor otherwise, management considers the suiestafithe
assets and activities of the acquired entity iredeining whether the acquisition represents theiiaten of a
business. Where such acquisitions are not judgdaetan acquisition of a business, they are notddeas
business combinations. Rather, the cost to acdh&ecorporate entity is allocated between the itiehte
assets and liabilities of the entity based on thelative fair values at the acquisition date. Adiagly, no
goodwill or additional deferred taxation arises.h@tise, acquisitions are accounted for as business
combinations.
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2. Basis of preparation and measurement (cont’d)

() Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
The accounting policies applied in the preparatainthe attached consolidated financial statememts
consistent with those applied in the preparatiothefconsolidated financial statements of the Grfouphe year
ended 31 December 2015 with the exception of thenaiments presented below. These changes were gpplie
in the attached consolidated financial statementsheir effective date and had no significant intpac the
disclosed financial information, did not apply tetGroup’s transactions, or the Group decided matpply a
newly introduced approach or model.

. Amendments arising from IFRS Improvements, 201022G%cle, including amendments to IFRS 2
Share-Based Paymeramendments to IFRS Business Combinationsnd amendments to IFRS 8
Operating Segmentamendments to IAS 1Broperty, plant and equipmesind IAS 38Intangible
assetsamendments to IFRS Fir Value Measuremerdnd amendments to IAS Related Party
Disclosures amendments to IFRS Financial Instruments: Disclosuresnd amendments to IAS 19
Employee benefit

. Amendments arising from IFRS Improvements, 201242G%cle, including amendments to IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinugzkr@tions amendments to IAS 3hterim
Financial Reporting

. Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38larification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciatiamd
Amortization

. Amendments to IAS Disclosure Initiative

. Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 4priculture: Bearer Plants

. Amendments to IFRS 1Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in Joint&ations

. Amendments to IAS 1Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributipns

.« Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS I28estment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception and

. Amendments arising from IFRS Improvements, 201242Q4%cle, including amendments to IFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosured amendments to IAS Einployee Benefits.

The Group has decided not to apply earlier anpdatad, Interpretation or Amendment that has besureis, but
has not yet become effective in light of the EUulagons.

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have beepliegp consistently in all periods presented in ¢hes
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(@)  Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translatethé respective functional currencies of the Group
entities at exchange rates prevailing at the dztése transactions using:

. the purchase or selling rate of the bank whoseicenare used by the Group — in case of foreign
currency sales or purchase transactions, as wethéncase as of the debt or liability payment
transactions;

. the average rate specified for a given currencyhyNational Bank of Poland as on the transaction
date, unless a customs declaration or other bindimgment indicates another rate — in case of other
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in ifprecurrencies are retranslated at the functional
currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the rémprtiate. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency &easlated using the exchange rates as at the ofaties
initial transactions.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(b)

(©)

Revenue

Revenues from the sale of residential units aregeized upon transfer to the buyer of the significa
risks and rewards of ownership of the residentidt (i.e. upon signing of the protocol of technical
acceptance and transfer of the key to the resmlentiit), after a valid building occupancy permésh
been obtained by the Group.

Advances received related to pre-sales of residlemtits, which represent deferred income, arerdede
when they do not meet the criteria to be recognagdevenue. When they subsequently meet these
criteria, they are recognized as revenue.

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments of the Groupmprise loans granted, trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, deposits, other cuiremtcial assets, loans and borrowings, and trae a
other payables. All financial assets are recogninéthlly at fair value plus, in the case of int@&nts

not at fair value through profit or loss, direc#ligributable transaction costs.

A financial instrument is recognized if the Grougcbmes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognizecifatoup’s contractual rights to the cash flows fribw
financial assets expire or if the Group transféws tinancial asset to another party without retagni
control or substantially all risks and rewards lué isset. Regular way purchases and sales of i@hanc
assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e. tieetlolgt the Group commits itself to purchase or thel
asset. Financial liabilities are derecognized & @roup’s obligations specified in the contractiexpor

are discharged or cancelled.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand amadl & integral part of the Group’s cash management
are included as a component of cash and cash déepiisdor the purpose of the statement of cashslow

Non-derivative financial instruments of the Group elassified into one of the following categories:

Category Statement of financial position item Measurement

Loans and receivables Short-term deposits Apeattcost method
Other current financial assets Amortized costhoe:
Loans granted to third parties Amortized costhrod
Cash and cash equivalent Amortized cost method
Trade and other receivables Amortized cost oukth

Other financial liabilities Bond loans Amortizedst method
Loans from others Amortized cost method

Trade and other payables and accrued expenses ortiaea cost method

Secured bank loans Amortized cost method

60



Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(©)

(d)
()

(ii)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarmésiets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These are cladsdg current assets, provided their maturity dags n
exceed 12 months after the reporting date. Loadsraceivables with maturities exceeding 12 months
from the reporting date are classified under nomesu assets. After initial measurement, loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortizei asing the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment. Gains and losses aregm®ized in the statement of comprehensive income
when the loans and receivables are derecognizeichpaired, as well as, through the amortization
process.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are measured at amedizost using the effective interest method.

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured dtless accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly atteble to the acquisition of the asset. The costetff
constructed assets includes the cost of matenmlsdaect labor, any other costs directly attritle¢ato
bringing the asset to a working condition for ittended use, and the costs of dismantling and remgov
the items and restoring the site on which they@rated.

When significant parts of property, plant and eqmept are required to be replaced in intervals, the
Group recognizes such parts as individual assetsspecific useful lives and depreciation, respetyi
Likewise, when a major inspection is performedcist is recognized in the carrying amount of tlaap
and equipment as a replacement if the recognitiberia are satisfied. All other repair and mairarce
costs are recognized in the statement of compréareimcome as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-lineibaser the estimated useful life of each comporént
an item of property and equipment.

The estimated useful life of property and equipmdapending on the class of asset, ranges fron¥ to
years. Leased assets are depreciated over thershbthe lease term and their useful lives. Landat

depreciated.

When parts of an item of property and equipmenthgifferent useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property gunipenent.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residualeslare reassessed at the reporting date, andeatljus
prospectively since the beginning of the followiyegr, if appropriate.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Leases

Leases in which the Group assumes substantiallpalfisks and rewards of ownership are classtgd
finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the lehasset is measured at an amount equal to the loiwer
its fair value and the present value of the minimaase payments.

Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at,cosluding transaction costs. Subsequently taahi
recognition, investment properties are stated at vfalue, which reflects market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains or losses arising from charigethe fair values of investment properties are
included in the statement of comprehensive incanthe period in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognized when eittesr have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and oture economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. The difference between the net disposategds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive indartiee period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property when there is a change in use. For a transfen f
investment property to owner occupied property,dbemed cost for subsequently accounting is the fai
value at the date of change in use. If owner o@migiroperty becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance i policy stated under property, plant and
equipment up to the date of change in use.

Inventories of residential units

Inventories consist of multi-family residential restate projects to individual customers.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost atdealizable value. The cost of inventories inekid

expenditure incurred relating to the constructiba project.

Costs relating to the construction of a projectiactuded in inventories of residential units akdios:

. costs incurred relating to projects or a phase pfagect which are not available for sale (work in
progress),

. costs incurred relating to units unsold associatitidl a project.

Project construction costs include:

a) land or leasehold rights for land,

b) construction costs paid to the general contraatddimg the residential project,

¢) planning and design costs,

d) perpetual usufruct fees and real estate taxesrataiuring the period of construction,

e) borrowing costs to the extent they are directlyitaitable to the development of the project (see
accounting policy (1)),

f) professional fees attributable to the developméthe project,

g) construction overheads and other directly relatesdsc

Inventory is recognized as a cost of sales in thtement of comprehensive income when the sale of
residential units is recognized.

Trade and other receivables and prepayment
Trade and other receivables are stated at amoritizgdess impairment losses.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

)
(i)

(ii)

Equity

Share capital

Share capital includes the proceeds received flarigsue of ordinary shares on the nominal value in
exchange for cash.

Share premium

Share premium includes the excess of proceedsvezt&iom the issue of shares over the nominal value
of shares.

Shares issuance costs are deducted from the stesnéum.

Treasury shares

Own shares that are reacquired (treasury shares)eapgnized at cost and deducted from equity. No
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on pluechase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Gsaupn
equity instruments.

Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impairedjtotive evidence indicates that one or more evesns

had a negative effect on the estimated future ftawls of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial assetasured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and thesgme value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tesfer impairment on an individual basis. The rermain
financial assets are assessed collectively in gréhgt share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognized in the statérnécomprehensive income.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal barrelated objectively to an event occurring affter
impairment loss was recognized. For financial assetasured at amortized cost the reversal is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financiakets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of immint. If any such indication exists then the assat'a
cash generating unit’'s recoverable amount is etitha

An impairment loss is recognized if the carryingoamt of an asset or a cash generating unit exdeeds
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash dienetmit is the greater of its value in use amsdféir
value less costs to sell. In assessing value inthseestimated future cash flows are discountqudsent
value using a pre-tax discount rate that refleatrsemt market assessments of the time value of ynone
and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods asessed at each reporting date for any indicattaats
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. Aniimpat loss is reversed if there has been a change
the estimates used to determine the recoverabler@man impairment loss is reversed only to theeakt
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceeddlrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impaimh&ss had been recognized.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(k)

o

(m)

(n)

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a pasent, the Group has a present legal or constructi
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and ipiobable that an outflow of economic benefitd td
required to settle the obligation. Provisions agtedmined by discounting the expected future chossf
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current marketssssents of the time value of money and the risksifip

to the liability.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the invenyt of properties which necessarily take a substhnt
period of time to get ready for their intended wsesale, are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective assets.

The interest capitalized is calculated using th@upls weighted average cost of borrowings after
adjusting for borrowings associated with specifavelopments. Where borrowings are associated with
specific developments, the amount capitalized exjtts# gross interest incurred on those borrowings.
Interest is capitalized as from the commencemeth@flevelopment work until the date of completion.
The capitalization of borrowing costs is suspendetthere are prolonged periods when development
activity is interrupted.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and defeasedQurrent tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates edaatesubstantively enacted at the reporting daie sy
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previowsseCurrent tax expense is calculated accordingxto
regulations in effect in the jurisdiction in whithe individual companies are domiciled.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balastveet method, for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilitieghaidcarrying amounts for financial reporting poses,
and for tax losses carried forward, except forittitgal recognition of assets or liabilities in @hsaction
that is not a business combination and that affeeither accounting nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates thakegpected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have dmmmrted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. A deferred tax asset is recognized onlyeacettient that it is probable that future taxablfits will

be available against which the asset can be wdiliaéeach reporting date deferred tax assetseaheced

to the extent that it is no longer probable that lated tax benefit will be realized. Deferrexl dasets
and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a ldgadnforceable right exists to set off current &ssets
against current income tax liabilities and the defé taxes relate to the same taxable entity amdadme
taxation authority.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings pares(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The
computations of the basic earnings per share degrdimed on the basis of the weighted average numbe
of shares outstanding during the year. The dil@achings per share are determined by adjusting the
statement of comprehensive income and the weightethge number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary skay which comprise share options granted and rights
obtain shares by employees.

64



Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(0)

(p)

(a)

Share options granted

Equity-settled transactions

The fair value of share options granted to manageéraad other employees as at the grant date is
recognized as an employee expense, with a corrdsmprincrease in equity recognized in retained
earnings, over the period during which the empleyescome unconditionally entitled to the optionse T
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted eztrétfile actual number of share options that vest.

Cash-settled transactions

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measaigally at fair value at the grant date. This faalue is
expensed over the period until the vesting datl wdtognition of a corresponding liability. Thehbliity
is re-measured to fair value at each reporting dptéo, and including the settlement date, withncfes
in fair value recognized in employee benefits exggen

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement ofdiabpositions comprise cash at banks and on hadd a
short-term deposits with an original maturity ofetd months or less, except for collateralized digpos

For the purpose of the consolidated statement ftasls, cash and cash equivalents consist of cadh an
short-term deposits as defined above, net of mudstg bank overdrafts.

Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement wéter the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of iheyenture. Joint control is the contractually eyt
sharing of control of an arrangement, which examtéy when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharintralo

Under the equity method, the investment in a je@ture is initially recognized at cost. The cangyi
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognimnges in the Group’s share of net assets of the jo
venture since the acquisition date. Upon makingraestment in an associate or joint venture, the
amount by which the costs of such investment extieedalue of the Group’s share in the net faiugal

of identifiable assets and liabilities of this éptis recognized as goodwill and included in theryiag
amount of the underlying investment.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Greughiare of the results of operations of the joartture.
Any change in OCI of joint ventures are presentegart of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there
has been a change recognized directly in the eqtiiye joint venture, the Group recognizes ity slud

any changes, when applicable, in the statementhahges in equity. Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group &edjaint venture are eliminated to the extent & th
interest in the joint venture.

The financial statements of the joint venture areppred for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bringtieeiating policies in line with those of the Group.
After application of the equity method, the Grougtetmines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in joint ventuke each reporting date, the Group determines véreth
there is objective evidence that the investmenhénjoint venture is impaired. If there is suchdevice,

the Group calculates the amount of impairment agdifference between the recoverable amount of the
joint venture and its carrying value, and then getees the loss as ‘Share of profit/(loss) of ajoi
venture’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of joint control over the joint ventutbe Group measures and recognizes any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference betwéke carrying amount of the joint venture uporslof
joint control and the fair value of the retainedaatment and proceeds from disposal is recognized i
profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(r

(s)

Employee benefits
Obligations for contributions to defined contritortipension plans are recognized as an expense in th
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Poland are requiveder applicable regulations, to pay, on a monthly
basis, social security contributions for the empkg/ future pension benefits. These benefits, aaugr

to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, are state plans amd characterized as defined contribution plans.
Therefore, the Company’s subsidiaries have no legial constructive obligation to pay future
pension benefits and their obligation is limitecbsyyment of contributions as they fall due.

Fair Value

The Group measures investment properties at faieva each balance sheet date. In addition, &ires

of financial instruments measured at amortized acstdisclosed in Note 36 and Note 37.

Fair value is the price that would be receivedeth @an asset or paid to transfer a liability in@derly
transaction between market participants at the uneasent date. The fair value measurement is based o
the presumption that the transaction to sell tisetagr transfer the liability takes place either:

- in the principal market for the asset or liability,

- in the absence of a principal market, in the mdstatageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market imeistccessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measlusing the assumptions that market participaotddv
use when pricing the asset or liability, assumihgt tmarket participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asakes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset lighest and best use or by selling it to anatienket
participant that would use the asset in its highestbest use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are apptefn the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximgite use of relevant observable inputs and miringiz
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value iiseasured or disclosed in the financial statemerds a
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, ddsed as follows, based on the lowest level input itha
significant to the fair value measurement as a &hol

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active mexler identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includétthiw Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or iidctly (i.e., derived from prices);

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that ar@t based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognizechanfinancial statements on a recurring basis, theu®s
determines whether transfers have occurred betweevels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input thasignificant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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4, Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d)
A number of new standards, amendments to standardianterpretations, insofar endorsed by the Eemop
Union, are not yet effective for the year endedd@tember 2016, and have not been applied in prapthiese
consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 9Financial Instrumentgissued on 24 July 2014) — effective for finangiaars beginning on or after
1 January 2018;

IFRS 14Regulatory Deferral Accountfissued on 30 January 2014) — The European Comumidss
decided not to launch the endorsement processsfriferim standard and to wait for the final stardd-
not yet endorsed by EU at the date of approvahes$é financial statements — effective for finangidrs
beginning on or after 1 January 2016;

IFRS 15Revenue from Contracts with Customé@ssued on 28 May 2014), including amendments to
IFRS 15Effective date of IFRS 1ftssued on 11 September 2015) - effective forrfoial years beginning
on or after 1 January 2018;

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 38le or Contribution of Assets Between an Investar its Associate
or Joint Venturgissued on 11 September 2014) - the endorsemeoégs of these Amendments has been
postponed by EU - the effective date was defemddfinitely by IASB;

IFRS 16Leases(issued on 13 January 2016) - not yet endorseBUyat the date of approval of these
financial statements - effective for financial y@aeginning on or after 1 January 2019;

Amendments to IFRS Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRSnéurance Contract§issued
on 12 September 2016) - not yet endorsed by EWeadate of approval of these financial statements -
effective for financial years beginning on or aftefanuary 2018;

Amendments to IAS 1Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealisedses(issued on 19 January
2016) - not yet endorsed by EU at the date of agraf these financial statements — effective foafficial
years beginning on or after 1 January 2017;

Amendments to IAS Disclosure Initiative(issued on 29 January 2016) - not yet endorseHUwt the
date of approval of these financial statementdect¥e for financial years beginning on or afteddnuary
2017,

Clarifications to IFRS 13Revenue from Contracts with Custom@ssued on 12 April 2016) - not yet
endorsed by EU at the date of approval of thesenfifal statements — effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2018;

Amendments to IFRS €Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payfmnsactiongissued on
20 June 2016) - not yet endorsed by EU at the afaapproval of these financial statements — eféector
financial years beginning on or after 1 January&A@inual Improvements ti¢-RS Standards 2014-2016
Cycle (issued on 8 December 2016) - not yet endorse&yat the date of approval of these financial
statements —Amendments to IFRS 12 are effectivéirfancial years beginning on or after 1 January720
while amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are effediivdinancial years beginning on or after 1 Jaguar
2018;

IFRIC Interpretation 22Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consii@na (issued on
8 December 2016) - not yet endorsed by EU at the afaapproval of these financial statements —ctiffe
for financial years beginning on or after 1 Januz0¥8;

Amendments to IAS 40transfers of Investment Propeifigsued on 8 December 2016) - not yet endorsed
by EU at the date of approval of these financiateshents — effective for financial years beginrmmgor
after 1 January 2018.

The Group has not early adopted any other stand#sfpretation or amendment that has been issuetsb
not yet effective.
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5.

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Segment reporting

The Group’s operating segments are defined as aepentities developing particular residential pcts,
which for the reporting purposes were aggregatelde &ggregation for reporting purpose is based on
geographical locations (Warsaw, Pozn@é/roctaw and Szczecin) and type of activity (depshent of
apartments and development of houses). Moreovetwio particular assets the reporting was basetypa of
income: rental income from investment property.

According to the Management Board’'s assessmentppleeating segments identified have similar ecocomi
characteristics. Aggregation based on the typesgélbpment within the geographical location hastsgaplied
since primarily the location and the type of depahent determine the average margin that can bzedabn
each project and the project’s risk factors. Cozrsid) the fact that the production process for tpants is
different from that for houses and considering féde that the characteristics of customers buyipgrtanents
slightly differ from those of customers interestacbuying houses, aggregation by type of develogmathin
the geographical location has been used for segrapatting and disclosure purposes.

Segment results, assets and liabilities includastdirectly attributable to a segment as well aséfithat can be
allocated indirectly based on reasonable critddiaallocated loss for the year comprises mainly heffide
expenses, unallocated assets comprise mainly eastid cash and cash equivalents and income taksasse
Unallocated liabilities comprises mainly income lizbilities and bond loans.

Data presented in the table below are aggregatégplyof development within the geographical lomatti

As at 31 December 2016

874,844

IFRS
Warsaw Poznan Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated _adjustments Total
Joint
Apartments Houses  venture Rental Apartments Houses Apartments Houses Apartments Houses
Segment
assets 334,363 31,762 110,71 8,743 137,117 - 76,271 328 68,313 7,725 - (94,062581,272
Unallocated
assets - - - - - - - - - - 62,139 - 62,139
Total assets 334,363 31,762 110,712 8,743 137,117 - 76,271 328 68,313 7,725 62,139 (94,062) 743,411
Segment
liabilities 79,117 819 99,50! - 49,051 - 6,188 - 5,278 - - (99,503) 140,453
Unallocated
liabilities - - - - - - - - - - 241,082 - 241,082
Total
liabilities 79,117 819 99,503 - 49,051 - 6,188 - 5,278 - 241,082 (99,503) 381,535
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) As at 31 December 2015
IFRS
Warsaw Poznai Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated  adjustments Total
Joint
Apartments  Houses _venture Rental Apartments  Houses Apartments  Houses Apartments  Houses

Segment
assets 439,016 33,357 53,43 8,743 136,475 - 73,065 - 71,173 7,736 - (35,998)89,610
Unallocated
assets - - - - - - - - - - 85,234 - 85,234
Total assets 439,016 33,357 53,436 8,743 136,475 - 73,065 - 71,173 7,736 85,234 (35,998)
Segment
liabilities 152,459 1,014 39,91 - 44,660 - 4,064 - 10,262 - - (39,919) 212,459
Unallocated
liabilities - - - - - - - - - - 202,964 - 202,86
Total
liabilities 152,459 1,014 39,919 - 44,600 - 4,064 - 10,262 - 202,964 (39,919) 415,423
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5. Segment reporting (cont'd)

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

IFRS
Warsaw Pozna Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated __adjustments Total
Joint

Apartments  Houses venture Rental Apartments Houses Apartments Houses Apartments Houses
Revenue 387,810 1,331 - 914 64,256 11,143 - 19,308 - - 484,762
Segment
result 110,506 (69) (1,120) 588 1,671 (1,238) (2,274) 43f1 (5) - (260) 107,656
Unallocated
result - - - - - - - - - - (23,104) - (23,104)
Result from
operating
activities 110,506 (69) (1,120) 588 1,671 (1,238)2,274) (143) (5) (23,104) (260) 84,552
Net finance
income/
(expenses) 89 3) 37 - 65 112 - - (1) (7,219) (37) (6,957)
Profit/(loss)
before tax 110,595 (72) (1,083) 588 1,736 (1,126R,274) (143) (6) (30,323) (297) 77,595
Income tax
expenses (12,497)
Profit/(loss)
for the year 65,098
Capital
expenditure 740 730 - - - - 50 - - - 158 - 1,678
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) For the year ended 31 December 2015

IFRS
Warsaw Pozna Wroctaw Szczecin Unallocated  adjustments Total
Joint

Apartments  Houses venture Rental Apartments  Houses Apartments  Houses Apartments  Houses
Revenue 225,942 - - 795 19,901 34,702 - 32 - - - 2823
Segment
result 44,750 (274) (859) 482 1,699 (664) 9) (167) 10)( - 181 45,129
Unallocated
result - - - - - - - - - (18,707) - (18,707)
Result from
operating
activities 44,750  (274) (859) 482 1,699 (664) 9)( (167) (10) (18,707) 181 26,422
Net finance
income/
(expenses) (315) (5) 9) - 34 (305) - (10) - (5,491) 9 (6,092)
Profit/(loss)
before tax 44,435  (279) (868) 482 1,733 969) 9) ( a77) (10) (24,198) 190 20,330
Income tax
expenses (1,356)
Profit/(loss)
for the year 18,974
Capital
expenditure - - - - - - - - - - 155 - 155
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6. Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Nova Krélikarnia (see note 39) 175,119 -
Moko 120,668 -
Espresso I, Il & llI 53,289 1,367
Kamienica Jeyce 36,518 -
Mtody Grunwald | & Il 27,739 12,475
Panoramika | & I 19,308 -
Impressio 11,143 34,702
Sakura 7,719 89,172
Tamka 21,414 48,041
Verdis 1,780 76,632
Naturalis I, Il & Il 5,465 7,879
Other 4,600 11,104
Total revenue 484,762 281,372

7. Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Nova Krdlikarnia (see note 39) 117,850 -

Moko 81,565 -

Espresso |, Il & llI 43,256 1,066
Kamienica Jgyce 33,875 -

Mtody Grunwald | & Il 27,233 12,195
Panoramika | & Il 19,113 -

Impressio 11,473 34,847
Sakura 6,802 77,887
Tamka 14,385 31,635
Verdis 1,412 56,420
Naturalis I, Il & Il 4,976 7,038
Other 1,863 8,810
Write-down of inventory 2,269 226

Total cost of sales 366,072 230,124

70



Ronson Europe N.V.
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. Selling and marketing expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Advertising 4,754 4,177
Brokerage fees 2,214 1,312
Other 1,115 970
Total selling and marketing expenses 8,083 6,459
Administrative expenses
For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note
Personnel expenses 10 16,976 13,912
External services 3,205 2,833
Materials and energy 580 612
Depreciation 590 706
Taxes and charges 152 77
Other 694 694
Total administrative expenses 22,197 18,834
Personnel expenses
For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note
Wages and salaries 13,879 11,711
Incentive plan linked to financial results 999 512
Share-based payment 35 348 (72)
Social security and other benefits 1,750 1,761
Total personal expenses 16,976 13,912
Average number of personnel employef 67 67

(*) All employees are employed in Poland.
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11. Other expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Maintenance expense of unsold units 1,404 921
Cost of repairs and defects 638 474
Expense for contractual penalties and compensation 182 84
Settlement of VAT related to expenses in prior gear 638 -
Write-down of trade receivablés 53 26
Cost of research and due diligence of new projects 115 36
Other expense 324 169
Total other expense 3,354 1,710

(*) For additional information see Note 21.

12. Other income

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Revenues from contractual penalties and compemsatio 228 2,663
Rental income from inventory 529 522
Net profit on sale of property and equipment 70 2 3
Other income 49 112
Total other income 876 3,329
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13. Finance income and expense

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Recognized in the

Total Amount statement of
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) amount capitalized comprehensive income
Interest on granted loans 584 - 584
Interest income on bank deposits 1,204 - 1,204
Other finance income 112 - 112
Finance income 1,900 - 1,900
Interest expense on financial liabilities (12,601 5,016 (7,585)
Commissions and fees (3,187) 2,015 (1,172)
Other finance expense (100) - (100)
Finance expense (15,888) 7,031 (8,857)
Net finance expense (13,988) 7,031 (6,957)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 Recognized in the

Total Amount statement of
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) amount capitalized comprehensive income
Interest on granted loans 714 - 714
Interest income on bank deposits 1,068 - 1,068
Other finance income 29 - 29
Finance income 1,811 - 1,811
Interest expense on financial liabilities (12p6 7,464 (6,598)
Commissions and fees (3,121) 1,947 (1,174)
Other finance expense (131) - (131)
Finance expense (17,314) 9,411 (7,903)
Net finance expense (15,503) 9,411 (6,092)
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14. Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Current tax

Current period 1,493 72
Taxation in respect of previous periods a7) 34
Total current tax expense/(benefit) 1,476 106

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 5,870 (3,896)
Tax losses utilized/(recognized) 5,151 5,146
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) 11,021 1,250
Total income tax expense/(benefit) 12,497 1,356

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Profit/(loss) for the year 65,098 18,974
Total income tax expense/(benefit) 12,497 1,356
Profit/(loss) before income tax 77,595 20,330
Expected income tax using the Polish tax rate (19%) 14,743 3,863
Tax effect of

Taxes in respect of previous periods a7 34

Non-deductible expenses, net 61 61

Movement in unrecognized deferred tax assets andasy

forward in Poland (2,323) 437
Tax benefit in connection with the organizatiorestructuring of

the Group in prior years (3,391) (3,115)
Tax assets transferred with Nova Krélikarnia teari®n 3,408

Other differences 16 76

Tax benefit for the period 12,497 1,356
Effective tax rate 16.11% 6.67%
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15. Property and equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Vehicles Equipment Building Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 January 1,372 1,976 8,645 11,993
Additions 155 1,523 - 1,678
Sales and disposals (222) (730) (87) (1,039)
Closing balance 1,305 2,769 8,558 12,632
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 642 1,189 1,290 3,121
Depreciation for the period 252 395 340 987
Sales and disposals (220) (73) (6) (299)
Closing balance 674 1,511 1,624 3,809
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 730 787 7,355 8,872
Closing balance 631 1,258 6,934 8,823
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Vehicles Equipment Building Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 January 1,509 1,932 8,645 12,086
Additions 111 44 - 155
Sales and disposals (248) - - (248)
Closing balance 1,372 1,976 8,645 11,993
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 638 1,029 995 2,662
Depreciation for the period 251 160 295 706
Sales and disposals (247) - - (247)
Closing balance 642 1,189 1,290 3,121
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 871 903 7,650 9,424
Closing balance 730 787 7,355 8,872

Impairment loss
In the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 Decezftiér the Group did not recognize any impairmess |

with respect to property and equipment.
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16. Investment property

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at 1 January 8,743 9,217
Sales - -

Change in fair value during the year - (474)

Balance as at 31 December, including: 8,743 8,743
Cost 4,058 4,058
Fair value adjustments 4,685 4,685

As at 31 December 2016, the investment propertydted property held for long-term rental yields aagbital
appreciation, and were not occupied by the Groune ifivestment property consists of two real estajects
located in Warsaw:

i) a plot of land (71, Gwialzista Street) and an office building with an agate usable floor space of
1,318 nf located on this plot that is leased to third partieder lease agreements with an indefinite term
subject to a three-month notice period for termara{“Bielany IP"),

i) one commercial (office) unit located at 57, KRvenue (in the Gemini | project), with a totalgrggate
usable floor space of 89°reased to third parties with an indefinite terrdi&ynéw IP”).

Investment property is valued at fair value deteedias at 31 December 2016 and as at 31 Decembgrb30
the Management. The investment property has besm alued by an independent appraiser, having an
appropriate recognized professional qualificatioased on current prices on an active market. Balhations
came up with similar results.

The Bielany IP was valued based on the discounssth dlow approach, including the assumption asnto a
annual discount rate of 7.5% (during a 6 year faseperiod), a capitalization exit yield of 7.5%mnanthly rate

of PLN 39 pem? and a long term vacancy rate of 5%. The assumptisrat the end of 2015 were very similar
as at the end of 2016.

The Ursynéw IP was valued on the basis of the mexstnt comparable transactions, involving salesiroflar
units in the Gemini | and Il projects.

If the yields used for the appraisals of investnanatperty on 31 December 2016, had been 100 basgissp
higher than was the case at that time, the valubeofnvestments would have been 12% lower (31 Déee
2015: 12% lower). In this situation, the Compangtsareholders’ equity would have been PLN 1.0 nmillio
lower (31 December 2015: PLN 1.0 million lower).

The continued instability in the financial marketuses volatility and uncertainty in the world’pital markets
and real estate markets. There is a low liquidityel in the real estate market and transactionmetuhave
significantly reduced, resulting in a lack of ctgras to pricing levels and market drivers. As sule there is
less certainty with regard to valuations and mankaties can change rapidly due to the current marke
conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 201%etital income from investment property amounted to
PLN 914 thousand and PLN 795 thousand, respegtivel

The investment property is currently occupied.
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17. Loans granted to third parties

The table below presents the movement in loangepan third parties:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Opening balance 458 1,623
Loans repaid - (1,039)
Interest repaid - (248)
Accrued interest 50 122
Total closing balance 508 458
Closing balance includes:
Current assets 508 458
Non-current assets - -
Total closing balance 508 458

The loans are granted to one of the shareholdeRoason Espresso Sp. z 0.0. as at 31 December &l 6
31 December 2015 the loans bear a variable ratd .66 and 10.7% (variable interest is charged baseitie
latest interest rate as charged on the constructidtit/loan granted by the banks to the Groupiaadased by

7%, and updated at the beginning of each quartspectively.

For securing the repayment of the loan, the Comeiys a pledge on the partner’'s share in RonspneEso
Sp. z 0.0. as well as on a part of the loans gdamyethe partner to Ronson Espresso Sp. z 0.0.

18. Investment in joint ventures

As at 31 December

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2016 2015
Loans granted 22,485 21,359
Share in net equity value of joint ventures (5,835) (3,921)
The Company's carrying amount of the investment 8,650 17,438
Presented as Loans granted to joint ventures (uuassets) (15,906) -

Investment in joint ventures 744 17,438

Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures

The Investment in joint ventures comprise the Cam{sa50% interest in the joint ventures companiesasdn
IS sp. z 0.0. and in Ronson IS Sp. z 0.0. Sp.kth Bont ventures are involved in the developmemd aale of
residential units in Warsaw. The investments intj@entures are accounted for using the equity atkih these

Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pursuant to the Project Support Agreement, the @ompgreed to provide financial support to Ronsbmlits
performance of the project to the amount equalalaes of secured receivables (i.e. the Bank’s retsés with

respect to Ronson IS under the Loan Facility Agresinibetween Ronson IS Sp. z 0.0. Sp.k. and Bargk&ol
Kasa Opieki S.A. assuming a loan facility in taatount of no more than PLN 140,488 thousand).
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18.

Investment in joint ventures (cont'd)

Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures (cont’d)

The table below present the movements in the sharet equity value of joint ventures.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Opening balance (1,892) (1,214)
Share of profit/(loss) in joint ventures

Net result from joint ventures during the period (1,914) (1,271)
Offsetting net results of the joint ventures wittercompany interest during

the period 534 593

Total share of profit/(loss) in joint ventures ,380) (678)
Total net results of the joint ventures that weffeet with intercompany

interest as at the end on the period (2,563) (2,029)
Total closing balance (5,835) (3,921)
Summarised financial information of the joint veretsiis presented below.

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Assets
Inventory 86,466 48,63
Cash and cash equivalents 2,663 2,34:
Other current assets 21,583 2,45¢

Liabilities
Long-term loans from shareholders
Other current liabilities

(46,191) (47,819
(76,191) (13,458

Equity

(11,670)

(7,841

Company share

(5,835)

(3,921
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18. Investment in joint ventures (cont'd)
Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures (cont’d)
The summarised statement of comprehensive incoméddoint ventures in aggregate is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Administrative expenses (2,102) (615)
Selling and marketing expenses (706) (732)
Other income/(cost) 11
Finance income 49 6
Finance expense (1,080) (1,200)
Profit/(loss) before taxation (3,828) (2,541)
Income tax benefit/(expense) - -
Profit for the year (continuing operations) (3,828) (2,541)
Total comprehensive income for the year (continuing@perations) (3,828) (2,541)
The Company’s share of profit/(loss) for the year 1,914) (1,271)

Loans granted to the joint ventures

The table below present the movements in the Igeansted to the joint ventures.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Opening balance 19,330 17,236
Loans granted 500 5,000
Loans repaid (412) (3,441)
Accrued interest 1,068 1,185
Interest paid (30) (57)
Offsetting accrued interest with net results ofjthiat ventures during
the period (534) (593)
19,922 19,330
Total net accrued interest that were offset wehnesults of the joint
ventures as at the end on the period 2 563 2,029
Total closing balance 22,485 21,359

As at 31 December 2016 and as at 31 December P@lldns bear a variable rate of 6.1% and a varietie

of 6.9% (variable interest is charged based ondtest interest rate as charged on the constructiedit/loan
granted by the banks to the Group and increaseéd%yand updated at beginning of each calendar ,year)
respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, from the total amount a@h#ogranted to joint ventures (amounting in total t
PLN 22,485 thousand) loans in the aggregate amouRLLN 15,906 thousand are maturing no later than 3
December 2017. The short term loans granted t¢ y@intures cannot be regarded as a part of thestmesnt in
joint ventures and are presented in the Consolid&tatement of the Financial Statement under cuagsets as
Loans granted to joint ventures. This change imm@aash item and has no impact on the presentatitime
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow.
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19.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as at the mgigand end of the financial periods are attriblgdo the

following:

Recognized in

the statement of

Opening balance

comprehensive

Closing balance

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 January 2016 income 31 December 2016
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carry forward 10,356 (5,151) 5,205
Accrued interest 7,507 (6,539) 968
Accrued expense 564 (98) 466
Write-down of work in progress 1,928 334 2,262
Other 143 (143) -
Total deferred tax assets 20,498 (11,597) 8,901
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between tax base and carrying valuewrtory 14,374 (486) 13,888
Accrued interest 1,104 (136) 968
Fair value gain on investment property 890 - 890
Other 607 46 653
Total deferred tax liabilities 16,975 (576) 16,399
Total deferred tax benefit (see Note 14) 11,021
Deferred tax assets 20,498 8,901
Deferred tax liabilities 16,975 16,399
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities fatividual
companies (9,195) (5,285)
Deferred tax assets reported in the
statement of financial position 11,303 3,616
Deferred tax liabilities reported in the
statement of financial position 7,780 11,114
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19. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’'d)

Recognized in
the statement of

Opening balance comprehensive Closing balance
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 January 2015 income 31 December 2015
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carry forward 15,502 (5,146) 10,356
Accrued interest 5,007 2,500 7,507
Accrued expense 442 122 564
Write-down of work in progress 2,341 (413) 1,928
Other 488 (345) 143
Total deferred tax assets 23,780 (3,282) 20,498
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between tax base and carrying valuearntory 16,811 (2,437) 14,374
Accrued interest 629 475 1,104
Fair value gain on investment property 980 (90) 890
Other 587 20 607
Total deferred tax liabilities 19,007 (2,032) 16,975
Total deferred tax benefit (see Note 14) 1,250
Deferred tax assets 23,780 20,498
Deferred tax liabilities 19,007 16,975
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities fatividual
companies (9,567) (9,195)
Deferred tax assets reported in the
statement of financial position 14,213 11,303
Deferred tax liabilities reported in the
statement of financial position 9,440 7,780

Realization of deferred tax assets

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax sgeanagement considers whether it is more likey not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets ndtl be realized. The ultimate realization of defdrtax assets

is dependent upon the generation of future tax@ideme during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management consitteesscheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities
projected future taxable income, and tax planningtegies in making this assessment. In order Ity faalize

the deferred tax asset (before offsetting agaieftrded tax liability), the Group will need to geate future
taxable income of approximately PLN 46,847 thodsd@ased upon the level of historical taxable inecand
projections for future taxable income over the @asi in which the deferred tax assets are dedugtible
management believes it is more likely than not tiwat Group will realize the benefits of these deitile
differences. The amount of the deferred tax as#éthnis considered realizable, could however beiced in
the near term if estimates of future taxable incalmeng the tax loss carry-forward period are reglic

Tax losses in Poland are required to be utilizethiwi5 years following the period in which they giriated,

subject to the limitation that a maximum of 50%wé loss carry-forward can be used in one year.ldsses in
the Netherlands are required to be utilized withiyears following the period in which they origiedt
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19. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (cont’'d)

Tax losses carry forward

As at 31 December 2016 2015

Recognized Unrecognized  Total tax Recognized Unrecognized  Total tax
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) tax losses tax losses losses tax losses tax losses losses
Tax loss 2011 carried forward - - - 7,188 3,032,220
Tax loss 2012 carried forward - 2,831 2,831 5,880 1,276 7,156
Tax loss 2013 carried forward 86 984 1,070 1,978 ,199 3,177
Tax loss 2014 carried forward 20,757 150 20,907 s 8,261 39,436
Tax loss 2015 carried forward 6,554 87 6,641 8,282 3,797 12,079
Tax loss 2016 carried forward - 143 143 -
Total tax losses carried forward 27,397 4,195 31,89 54,503 17,565 72,068

The deferred tax assets on tax losses carriedafdrexpire in the following years:
As at

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 31 December 2016

2017 -
2018 70
2019 3,993
2020 1,142
2021 -
After 2021 -
Total deferred tax asset in respect of tax losseartied forward 5,205
Movement in unrecognized deferred tax assets on tdasses carried forward
Unrecognized deferred tax assets on tax losseieddorward in Poland are presented in the tablevine
Balance 1 Balance 31 Tax Balance 31
January Tax losses Additions/ December losses Additions/ December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2015 expired (Realizations) 2015 expired (Realizations) 2016
Tax losses 3,622 (722) 437 3,337  (217) (2,323) 797
Total 3,622 (722) 437 3,337 (217) (2,323) 797

In addition, the Company is not recognizing defértax assets on tax losses carried forward in tthétlands.
The accumulated Dutch tax losses available foryctmmward as per 31 December 2016 are estimatdaketo
PLN 8,277 thousand (2015: PLN 7,420 thousand).

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to thergxteat it is more likely than not that future thle profits will
be available against which the asset can be wulilidarecognized deferred tax assets relate priynaritax loss
carry-forwards, which are not considered probablealization prior to their expiration.

The Company did not recognize the entire defera@dasset at consolidation level resulting from dbntions
as the recoverability of such assets is uncerfaital unrecognized deferred tax assets as at 3&rblger 2016

are estimated to be PLN 10,175 thousand (31 Dece?d&: PLN 15,587 thousand).

Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities
There are no unrecognized deferred tax liabilities.
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20. Inventory

For the year ended 31 December 2016:

Sale of project Transferred

Opening balance to (former) to finished Closing balance
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 January 2016  shareholder (*) units Additions 31 December 2016
Land and related expense 342,699 (88,549) (61,644) 68,345 260,851
Construction costs 154,067 (18,755) (232,849) 321, 51,783
Planning and permits 22,629 (2,513) (11,037) 5,358 14,437
Borrowing cost$™ 65,533 (2,567) (28,855) 7,031 41,142
Other 5,261 (1,221) (4,481) 3,246 2,805
Work in progress 590,189 (113,605) (338,866) 233,300 371,018

Recognized in

Transferred the statement of

Opening balance from workin ~ comprehensive
income 31 December 2016

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 January 2016 progress

Closing balance

Finished goods 122,511 - 338,866

(245,795)

215,582

Revaluation write-down recognized in
statement of comprehensive income

Opening balance 1

Closing balance

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2016 Increase Utilization 31 December 2016
Write-down (11,413) (2,269) 1,180 (12,502)
Total inventories at the
lower of cost or net
realizable value 701,287 574,098
*) See Note 39
**) Borrowing costs are capitalized to the valakinventory with 6.51% average effective capitlan interest rate.
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20. Inventory (cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2015:

Opening balance  Transferred to Closing balance
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 January 2015 finished units Additions 31 December 2015
Land and related expense 393,499 (75,985) 25,185 2,692
Construction costs 155,134 (181,220) 180,153 4,0
Planning and permits 27,317 (10,195) 5,507 22,629
Borrowing costs’ 82,639 (26,517) 9,411 65,533
Other 5,381 (3,695) 3,575 5,261
Work in progress 663,970 (297,612) 223,831 590,189

Recognized in the

Transferred statement of
Opening balance from work in comprehensive Closing balance
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 January 2015 progress income 31 December 2015
Finished goods 55,209 297,612 (230,310) 122,511

Revaluation write-down recognized in
statement of comprehensive income

Opening balance 1 Closing balance 31
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) January 2016 Increase Utilization December 2016
Write-down (12,678) (226) 1,491 (11,413)
Total inventories at the lower
of cost or net realizable value 706,501 701,287

(*) Borrowing costs are capitalized to the valuerfentory with 6.38% average effective capitalmainterest rate.

Write-down revaluating the inventory:

The company internally assessed the net realizathle of the inventory and decreased the value wihemet
realizable value was lower than the cost amountiémw of the situation in the property market inigéhthe
Group operates, during the year ended 31 DecenBs and 31 December 2015 the Group performed an
inventory review with regard to its valuation totmealizable value based on the most reliable ewide
available to the Group. As a result, during theryeaded 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2016y thgp
made a write-down adjustment of PLN 2,269 thousar a write-down adjustment in the total amount of
PLN 226 thousand, respectively, which is includedpart of cost of sales in the Consolidated Stat¢éroé
Comprehensive Income. The Group examined a possitile-down on inventory for each project sepasatel
according to the projection of revenues net of obsales.

The valuation of Inventory is as follows:

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Valued at cost 477,237 587,911
Valued at net realizable value 96,861 113,376
Total inventory 574,098 701,287
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20. Inventory (cont'd)

For information about future commitments to the eyah contractor for construction services related t
inventory construction, see Note 38.

For information about the balance sheet value wéritory used to secure banks loans and bond |aaies <C
and F, see Note 28.

21. Trade and other receivables and prepayments

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Value added tax (VAT) receivables 6,906 11,427
Trade and other receivables 2,095 2,384
Prepayments 1,144 984
Advances for land purchaSk 36,900 3,698
Total trade and other receivables and prepayments 47,045 18,493

(*) For additional information see note 44.
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, thapGrad no allowance for doubtful debts.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 Omaedd15, the Group wrote down an amount of PLN 53
thousand and PLN 26 thousand, respectively awezable debts included in trade and other reckigab

22. Short-term bank deposits — collateralized

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Deposits collateralized for securing the repaynoéimterest related to the

credit facilities provided to the Group - 34
Deposits for guaranteeing payments to the locdlaiites - 4,059
Total short-term bank deposits — collateralized - 4,093

For information about the fair value of short-tdsamk deposits - collateralized see Note 36.
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23.

24.

25.

Other current financial assets

Other current financial assets comprise escrow watsoonly. The regulations related to the activfythe
residential developers, which came into force oM\g8al 2012, imposed on all residential developer®oland an
obligation to open an escrow account for all cusiapurchasing residential units during the constm period.
According to these regulations, all amounts paidhgycustomers have to be paid directly to theosaccount.
The developer is entitled to receive the money amge certain conditions — related mainly to pregref the
construction process — are met or the upon thefesanf ownership of the apartment to the customer.

As long as the money is kept in the escrow accdbetCompany is neither entitled to any benefits, can it
dispose of the cash in any way.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bankndmehd and short-term deposits freely availabletfie
Group. Cash at bank comprises of overnight depdsiésshort-term deposits have an original maturityying
from one day to three months.

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Cash at bank and in hand 55,357 85,180
Short-term deposit 13,699 14,351
Total cash and cash equivalents 69,056 99,531

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates basedaily bank deposit rates. As at 31 Decembel6 241id

31 December 2015 the Group held in saving accoamtsunting to PLN 44,761 thousand and PLN 75,955
thousand, respectively. As at 31 December 20163dnBecember 2015 the saving accounts that earrestte
rates varying between 1.75% - 1.95% and 1.75%59%,3espectively.

Short-term deposits have a duration varying betwa®n day and three months depending on the imneediat
cash requirements of the Group. As at 31 Decemb&6 2and 31 December 2015, they earn interest at the
respective short-term deposit rates varying betvie®¥ - 3.2% and 1.9% - 3.2%, respectively.

For information about the fair value of cash anshcequivalents see Note 36.

For information about the pledge over cash and easivalents see Note 30.

Shareholders’ equity

1)  Share capital

The authorized share capital of the Company cansis800,000,000 shares of EUR 0.02 par value €Huod.
number of issued and outstanding ordinary shareg 8§ December 2016 amounted to 272,360,000 (3% at
December 2015: 272,360,000 shares), while as ab&ember 2016 the number of shares in circulation
amounted to 164,010,187 (as at 31 December 20153&0,000 shares). The number of outstanding shares
equals the number of votes, as there are no gyedehares issued by the Company.

Shares held by the Company in treasury have nagati dividend rights.

There are no restrictions regarding dividend payséature dividends may be proposed and paid.

86



Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25.

26.

Shareholders’ equity (cont’d)
2) Dividend

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a diviégenadunting to PLN 21,789 thousands total or PLN &8
ordinary share, was distributed. During the yeateein31 December 2015, a dividend amounting to PQJ8M
thousands total or PLN 0.04 per ordinary share,distsibuted to the Company’s shareholders.

In addition, it will be proposed to the upcomingttwrdinary General Meeting of Shareholders on Xdia
2017 to approve an interim dividend of PLN 14.8liail equal to PLN 0.09 per share with an ex-dividielate
of 17 March 2017 and a dividend payment date d128ch 2017.

3) Treasury shares

On 23 December 2016, the Company acquired 108,84%Qvn shares from one of its principal sharehalder
I.T.R 2012 B.V., for PLN 1.30 per share amountiogttotal price of PLN 140,854 thousand. Referénceade
to Note 39.

All of the treasury shares shall be redeemed diFetyyuary 2017.

Non-controlling interests

Movements in non-controlling interests during tleayended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2035 are
follows:

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Opening balance 1,723 2,099
Comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to nomiodiing interests 567 (376)
Closing balance 2,290 1,723

Summarised financial information of Ronson Esprelg. z 0.0. is presented below:

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Assets

Property and equipment 144 249
Inventory 63,427 63,724
Cash and cash equivalents 3,980 1,082
Other current assets 3,245 3,074
Liabilities

Long-term loans from shareholders (8,703) (24,840)
Secured bank loans (2,531) (16,593)
Advances received (47,382) (25,029)
Other current liabilities (9,330) (6,056)
Equity 2,850 (4,389)
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26. Non-controlling interests (cont'd)

The summarised statement of comprehensive incomednson Espresso Sp. z 0.0. in aggregate is lasviol

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Revenue 53,289 1,367
Cost of sales (38,947) (1,066)
Gross profit 14,342 301
Administrative expenses (1,934) (885)
Selling and marketing expenses (1,139 (986)
Other income/(expenses) (207) 173
Finance income 114 69
Finance expense (1,087) (1,807)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 10,089 (3,135)
Income tax benefit/(expense) (2,850) 275
Profit/(loss) for the year (continuing operations) 7,239 (2,860)
Total comprehensive income for the year (continuig

operations) 7,239 (2,860)

27. Net earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculateliviiiing net profit/(loss) attributable to equitglbers of the
parent company for the year by the weighted avernameber of ordinary shares outstanding and in tzAtmn
during the year. Diluted earnings per share amaargsalculated by dividing the net profit/(lostyibutable to
equity holders of the parent company for the yegmrthe weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted ayenaumber of ordinary shares that would be issued o
conversion of all the dilutive instruments into imaty shares, no such instruments exists as ate&kmber
2016 and 2015.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic):

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015

Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holderstbé parent

companyin thousands of Polish Zlotys) 64,531 19,350
Balance at beginning of the period 272,360,000 , 352,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) 269,985,223 272,360,000
Basic earnings per sharein Polish Zlotys) 0.239 0.071

There have been no other transactions involvingnargl shares between the reporting date and the afat
completion of these Consolidated Financial Stateémyezxcept for the cancellation of 108,349,187 ehdhat
were held in treasury by the Company as at 31 Dbeer2016, which redemption is expected during Fatyru
2017.
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28. Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2016 2015

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Bond loans 29 222,591 190,297
Secured bank loans 30 1,941 56,902
Loans from third parties 31 1,560 2911
Total loans and borrowings 226,092 250,110

Information about the contractual terms of the @isunterest-bearing loans and borrowings is preskm the

table below. For more information about the GrowgxXposure to interest rate, see Note 40.

Loans as at 31 December 2016:

Nominal Year of Accrued Charges Carrying
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interest rate maturity Capital interest and fees value
Bond loans series C PLN Wibor + 3.75% 2017 83,500 216 (255) 83,461
Bond loans series F PLN Wibor + 3.50% 2018 22,116 132 (196) 22,052
Bond loans series G PLN Wibor + 4.25% 2018 12,000 123 (64) 12,059
Bond loans series H PLN Wibor + 4.25% 2018 5,000 32 (28) 5,004
Bond loans series | PLN Wibor + 4.00% 2019 10,000 252 (73) 10,179
Bond loans series J PLN Wibor +3.60% 2019 15,500 165 (178) 15,487
Bond loans series K PLN Wibor + 3.60% 2019 4,500 10 (54) 4,456
Bond loans series L PLN Wibor + 3.50% 2018 15,000 7 (106) 14,901
Bond loans series M PLN Wibor + 3.65% 2020 10,000 191 (154) 10,037
Bond loans series N PLN Wibor +3.60% 2019 10,000 159 (166) 9,993
Bond loans series O PLN Wibor + 3.50% 2019 10,000 121 (151) 9,970
Bond loans series P PLN 5.25% 2020 10,000 62 (173) 9,889
Bond loans series Q PLN Wibor + 3.50% 2020 15,000 337 (234) 15,103
Subtotal (Bond loans) 222,616 1,807 (1,832) 222,591

Wibor +
Bank Loans PLN 2.5%-2.9% 2018 2,679 18 (756) 1,941
Subtotal (Bank ) 2,679 18 (756) 1,941
Loans from non-controlling
interest granted to consolidated
subsidiaries PLN 6.516h 2017 1,556 4 - 1,560
Subtotal (others) 1,556 4 - 1,560
Total 226,851 1,829 (2,588) 226,092

(*) Interest based on the latest interest rate harged on the construction credit/loan granted Iy banks to the Group and increased by 2%, and tepdat

the beginning of each quarter.
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Loans as at 31 December 2015:

Nominal Year of Accrued  Charges Carrying
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Currency interest rate maturity Capital interest and fees value
Bond loans series C PLN Wibor + 3.75% 2017 83,500 215 (817) 82,898
Bond loans series D PLN  Wibor + 4.55% 2016 15,550 43 (97) 15,496
Bond loans series E PLN  Wibor + 4.55% 2016 2,250 64 a7) 2,297
Bond loans series F PLN Wibor + 3.5% 2018 28,000 167 (338) 27,829
Bond loans series G PLN Wibor + 4.25% 2018 12,000 124 (124) 12,000
Bond loans series H PLN  Wwibor + 4.25% 2018 5,000 31 (53) 4,978
Bond loans series | PLN Wibor + 4% 2019 10,000 251 (138) 10,113
Bond loans series J PLN Wibor + 3.6% 2019 15,500 165 (256) 15,409
Bond loans series K PLN Wibor + 3.6% 2019 4,500 9 (76) 4,433
Bond loans series L PLN Wibor + 3.5% 2018 15,000 4 (160) 14,844
Subtotal (Bond loans) 191,300 1,073 (2,076) 190,297

Wibor +
Bank Loans PLN 2.5%-2.8% 2016 15,039 - (241) 14,798
Bank Loans PLN 2%(23;% 2017 38,940 - (279) 38,661
Bank Loans PLN Wzl?s;;f 2018 3,589 5 (151) 3,443
Subtotal (Bank ) 57,568 5 (671) 56,902

Loans from non-controlling

interest granted to consolidated

subsidiaries PLN 6.16% 2016 1,885 120 - 2,005
Loans from non-controlling

interest granted to consolidated

subsidiaries PLN 6.1 2017 852 54 - 906
Subtotal (others) 2,737 174 - 2,911
Total 251,605 1,252  (2,747) 250,110

(*) Interest based on the latest interest rate harged on the construction credit/loan granted g banks to the Group and increased by 2%, and tepdzt
the beginning of each quarter.
Balance sheet value of assets used to secure logteived from banks and bond loans series C and F:

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Inventory 284,617 495,940
Other 14,663 14,839
Balance sheet value of pledged assets 299,280 510,779
Amount of loans and borrowings 90,406 167,532
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29.

Bond Loans
The table below presents the movement in Bond loans

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL

Opening balance 190,297 159,749
Repayment of bond loans (23,684) (15,000)
Proceeds from bond loans 55,000 45,000
Issue cost (1,061) (757)
Issue cost amortization 1,303 1,157
Accrued interest 11,861 10,611
Interest repayment (11,125) (10,463)
Total closing balance 222,591 190,297

Closing balance includes:

Current liabilities 85,053 18,759
Non-current liabilities 137,538 171,538
Total closing balance 222,591 190,297

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Comjzagd 10,000 series M bonds (total nominal value
PLN 10,000 thousand), 10,000 series N bonds (taialinal value of PLN 10,000 thousand), 10,000 se@e
bonds (total nominal value of PLN 10,000 thousat@)P00 series P bonds (total nominal value of RIONOO
thousand)and 15,500 series Q bonds (total nomaiakvof PLN 15,500 thousand).

As at 31 December 2016 and as at 31 December 20dd/anants on bond loans are met.

Series C

On 14 June 2013, the Company issued 83,500 sermn@s with an aggregate nominal value of PLN 83,50
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®d . 1 thousand and is equal to its issue price.sEnes C
bonds shall be redeemed on 14 June 2017 at nowshad. The bonds carry an interest rate composadbaise
rate equal to 6 months Wibor plus a margin of 3.75%erest is payable semi-annually in June andebder
until redemption date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 14 Jurie’ 20 case of the occurrence of certain events raoye
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetite Company, including the obligation to maintéi
financial ratios at certain levels, restrictionsiomestments in land having an unregulated statdsrastrictions
on related party transactions.

The series C bonds are secured by joint mortgage WLN 100,200 thousand established by the Conipany
Polish subsidiaries. Moreover, the ratio betweenviilue of the pledged properties and the totalinainvalue

of the Bonds issued shall not decrease below 90%.

91



Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29.

Bond loans (cont’d)

Series F

On 20 May 2014, the Company issued 280,000 seribsriels with a total nominal value of PLN 28,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®.t 100 and is equal to its issue price. In Noven#fd 6,
the Company repurchased (in order of redemptiond@B series F bonds. As a result, the total nunaber
outstanding bonds series F as at 31 December 2@a6rded to 221,600. The remainder of series F behdhl
be redeemed on 20 May 2018. The bonds carry arestteate composed of a base rate equal to 6 muvither
plus a margin of 3.5%. Interest is payable semizatiy in May and November until redemption date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’'s request to be made prior to 20 May8201 case of the occurrence of certain events raoye
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetite Company, including the obligation to maintés
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series F bonds are secured by a mortgage RBpNo42,000 thousand established by one of the Cagipa
Polish subsidiaries on the plots situated in Waraa@kierniewicka Street.

Series G

On 30 April 2014, the Company issued 120,000 se@esonds with a total nominal value of PLN 12,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®i_td 100 and is equal to its issue price. The sé&id®nds
shall be redeemed on 30 January 2018. The bondg aarinterest rate composed of a base rate equal t
6 months Wibor plus a margin of 4.25%. Interegtagable semi-annually in April and October untdeenption
date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 30 Jan2@ty, in case of the occurrence of certain eveoisring a
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetite Company, including the obligation to maintés
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series G bonds are not secured.

Series H

On 23 May 2014, the Company issued 50,000 seriesrids with a total nominal value of PLN 5,000 themck
The nominal value of one bond amounts to PLN 1aDiarequal to its issue price. The series H bohddl be
redeemed on 23 February 2018. The bonds carrytaregt rate composed of a base rate equal to 6hsont
Wibor plus a margin of 4.25%. Interest is payalelmisannually in May and November until redempti@ted

The terms and conditions of the issuance of thedddnclude provisions regarding early redemptioraat
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 23 Fepr@i8, in case of the occurrence of certain eveotsring

a number of obligations and restrictions applicablehe Company, including the obligation to maimtés
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series H bonds are not secured.
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Bond loans (cont’d)

Series |

On 23 January 2015, the Company issued 100,008ssktonds with a total nominal value of PLN 10,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amouni®_t$ 100 and is equal to its issue price. The sérEsds
shall be redeemed on 25 January 2019. The bondg &arinterest rate composed of a base rate equal t
6 months Wibor plus 4% margin. Interest is payaelmi-annually in January and July until redemptiate.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of therids include provisions regarding early redemptora
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 25 Jan2@tQ in case of the occurrence of certain evemigring a
number of obligations and restrictions applicaletie Company, including the obligation to maint#m
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series | bonds are not secured.

Series J

On 21 April 2015, the Company issued 15,500 sedidsonds with a total nominal value of PLN 15,500
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amounf3Ld 1,000 and is equal to its issue price. Theesedi
bonds shall be redeemed on 19 April 2019. The boady an interest rate composed of a base ratal égu
6 months Wibor plus 3.6% margin. Interest is pagaami-annually in April and October until rederoptdate.
The terms and conditions of the issuance of thentd$ include provisions regarding early redemptora
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 19 ApBil2 in case of the occurrence of certain eventeroy a
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetie Company, including the obligation to maint#m
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series J bonds are not secured.

Series K

On 18 June 2015, the Company issued 45,000 serem#s with a total nominal value of PLN 4,500 thad.
The nominal value of one bond amounts to PLN 1GDiarequal to its issue price. The series K bomddl be
redeemed on 18 June 2019. The bonds carry anshiate composed of a base rate equal to 6 monibsrW
plus 3.6% margin. Interest is payable semi-annualBune and December until redemption date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of theoKdb include provisions regarding early redemptbra
bondholder’'s request to be made prior to 18 Juri® 20 case of the occurrence of certain events raoyea
number of obligations and restrictions applicaletie Company, including the obligation to maint#m
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series K bonds are not secured.

Series L

On 29 December 2015, the Company issued 15,008sskerbonds with a total nominal value of PLN 15,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®Lid 1,000 and is equal to its issue price. Theeselki
bonds shall be redeemed on 28 December 2018. Tidskmarry an interest rate composed of a basesqaiz!

to 6 months Wibor plus 3.5% margin. Interest isgidg semi-annually in June and December until rextiem
date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of theohdb include provisions regarding early redemptora
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 28 Dece@d&8 in case of the occurrence of certain eveoxsring

a number of obligations and restrictions applicablehe Company, including the obligation to maimtas
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series L bonds are not secured.
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Bond loans (cont’d)

Series M

On 25 February 2016, the Company issued 10,00@ss&tibonds with a total nominal value of PLN 10,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amounfLfd 1,000 and is equal to its issue price. TheeseM
bonds shall be redeemed on 25 February 2020. Tigshzarry an interest rate composed of a baseqai@ to

6 months Wibor plus 3.65% margin. Interest is péyalemi-annually in February and August until redéan
date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of theawdb include provisions regarding early redemptbra
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 25 Felpr2@20 in case of the occurrence of certain evemisring a
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetie Company, including the obligation to maintém
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series M bonds are not secured.

Series N

On 17 March 2016, the Company issued 10,000 sé&tié®nds with a total nominal value of PLN 10,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amountLfd 1,000 and is equal to its issue price. TheeseN
bonds shall be redeemed on 14 September 2019.drus lzarry an interest rate composed of a baseqata

to 6 months Wibor plus 3.60% margin. Interest iygide semi-annually in March and September until
redemption date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of theoNdb include provisions regarding early redemptbra
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 14 Septe®019 in case of the occurrence of certain evamisring

a number of obligations and restrictions applicablehe Company, including the obligation to maimtas
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series N bonds are not secured.

Series O

On 8 April 2016, the Company issued 10,000 serieboBds with a total nominal value of PLN 10,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®Lfd 1,000 and is equal to its issue price. Theese@®
bonds shall be redeemed on 8 April 2019. The baads/ an interest rate composed of a base ratd &mua
6 months Wibor plus 3.50% margin. Interest is péyaemi-annually in April and October until redeiopt
date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of theofidb include provisions regarding early redemptbra
bondholder’'s request to be made prior to 8 April20n case of the occurrence of certain events rauyea
number of obligations and restrictions applicaletie Company, including the obligation to maint#m
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series O bonds are not secured.

Series P

On 18 August 2016, the Company issued 10,000 séribsnds with a total nhominal value of PLN 10,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amounBLfd 1,000 and is equal to its issue price. Theeser
bonds shall be redeemed on 18 August 2020. Thesboady an interest rate of 5.25%. Interest is pkya
quarterly in February, May, August and Novembeil uatlemption date.

The terms and conditions of the issuance of theofd® include provisions regarding early redemptora
bondholder’s request to be made prior to 18 Aug020 in case of the occurrence of certain evenisrany a
number of obligations and restrictions applicaldetie Company, including the obligation to maint#m
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series P bonds are not secured.
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Bond loans (cont’d)

Series Q

On 29 July 2016, the Company issued 15,000 seridsoi@ls with a total nominal value of PLN 15,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®Lfd 1,000 and is equal to its issue price. Theese@
bonds shall be redeemed on 29 July 2020. The beaudg an interest rate composed of a base ratd émua
6 months Wibor plus 3.50% margin. Interest is p&yabmi-annually in July and January until redemptiate.
The terms and conditions of the issuance of theo@db include provisions regarding early redemptbra
bondholder’'s request to be made prior to 29 JuB02id case of the occurrence of certain events rauyea
number of obligations and restrictions applicaletie Company, including the obligation to maint#m
financial ratios at certain levels and restrictionsrelated party transactions.

The series Q bonds are not secured.

Bond loans repaid during the year ended 31 Decemb&016:

On 14 June 2016, the Company repaid all outstarialimgls series D (15,550 bonds with total nomindle/af
PLN 15,550 thousand) in date of their maturity.|&wlng this repayment, the total number of outstagd
bonds series D amounted to nil.

On 15 July 2016, at the date of their maturity, @@mpany repaid all outstanding bonds series BB@tbnds
with total nominal value of PLN 2,250 thousand)ll&wing this repayment, the total number of outsliag
bonds series E amounted to nil.

On 21 November 2016, an early redemption of 58,d0@tanding bonds series F took place, with al tota

nominal value of PLN 5,840 thousand. Following th&ly redemption, the total number of outstandingds
series F amounted to 221,600, with a nominal vafueLN 22,160 thousand.
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29.

Bond loans (cont’d)
Financial ratio covenants:

Series C:

Based on the bonds conditions, in each reportimgpgehe Company shall test the ratio between Nt do
Equity (hereinafter “Ratio” or “Net Indebtednessti@g. The Ratio shall not exceed 60% however ifidg the
Reporting Period the Company paid dividend or penéxl any buy-out of its treasury shares then theR&all
not exceed 50%.

The Net Indebtedness Ratio is a non-GAAP Finardigdsure and is calculated according to formulasigeal
below

Net debt -shall mean the total consolidated balance shdeé\af loans and borrowings less the consolidated
value of cash and cash equivalents and short-tank deposits - collateralized.

Equity -shall mean the consolidated balance sheet valtreafquity attributable to equity holders of ttaegnt,
less the value of the intangible assets (excludimg financial assets and receivables), includireciically (i)
the intangible and legal assets, goodwill andtfi§ assets constituting deferred income tax deedebg the
value of the provisions created on account of therded income tax, however, assuming that thenbalaf
those two values is positive. If the balance ofessnd provisions on account of deferred incomeiga
negative, the adjustment referred to in item (iipze shall be zero.

Reporting period starting from the second quarter of 2013 — mehagjtiarterly reporting period with respect
to which the Group Net Indebtedness Ratio will bstad, while a “Reporting period” shall mean a king
reporting period, i.e. each calendar quarter.

The table presenting the Net Indebtedness Rati e end of the Reporting period:

As at 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2016
Net debt 159,563
Equity 359,586
Net Indebtedness Ratio 44.4%

Series F and H:

Based on the conditions of bonds F and H in eggbrtiag period the Company shall test the ratiblef debt to
Equity (hereinafter “Net Indebtedness Ratio”). Ruegio shall not exceed 80% on the Check Date.

The Net Indebtedness Ratio is a non-GAAP Finandiedsure and is calculated according to formulasigeal
below:

Net debt -shall mean the total consolidated balance sheleievaf all interest bearing liabilities less the
consolidated value of cash and cash equivalents.

Equity -shall mean the consolidated balance sheet valtieeafquity.

Check date +4ast day of each calendar quarter.

The table presenting the Net Indebtedness Rat e end of the Reporting period:

As at 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2016
Net debt 159,563
Equity 361,876
Net Indebtedness Ratio 44.1%
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29. Bond loans (cont’'d)

Financial ratio covenants (cont'd):
Series G, |, J,K, L, M, N, O, P and Q:

Based on the conditions of bonds G, I, J, K, LN\MQO, P, and Q in each reporting period the Comsnajl test
the ratio of Net debt to Equity (hereinafter “Netlebtedness Ratio”). The Ratio shall not exceed 80%he
Check Date.

The Net Indebtedness Ratio is a non-GAAP Finadidsure and is calculated according to formulasigeal
below:

Net debt —shall mean the total consolidated balance sheleievaf all interest bearing liabilities less the
consolidated value of cash and cash equivalentsessccash paid by Company’s clients blocked teanigron

the escrow accounts servicing ongoing projects #rat under construction (presented in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet un@¢her current financial assets).

Equity —shall mean the consolidated balance sheet valtleeafquity.

Check date +fast day of each calendar quarter.

The table presenting the Net Indebtedness Rati e end of the Reporting period:

As at 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2016
Net debt 155,083
Equity 361,876
Net Indebtedness Ratio 42.9%

In addition to the above, based on the conditidrt®ads G, in each reporting period the Companyl $#st the
Net debt to Inventory Ratio (hereinafter “Net Débtinventory Ratio”). The Ratio shall not exceed®06n the
Check Date.

The Net Debt to Inventory Ratio is non-GAAP FinaicdMeasure and is calculated according to formulas
provided below:

Net debt -shall mean the total consolidated balance sheleievaf all interest bearing liabilities less the
consolidated value of cash and cash paid by Compatignts blocked temporarily on the escrow act¢sun
servicing ongoing projects that are under constracpresented in the Company’s consolidated balaheet
underOther current financial assets).

Inventory -shall mean the consolidated balance sheet valubeofnventory of the Company less advances
received from the customers.

Check date +4ast day of each calendar quarter.

The table presenting the Net Debt to Inventorydras at the end of the Reporting period:

As at 31 December
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 2016
Net debt 155,083
Inventory 473,491
Net Debt to Inventory Ratio 32.8%
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30.

Secured bank loans

The table below presents the movement in Secunekl lbans:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL
Opening balance 56,902 73,704
New bank loan drawdov 45,134 133,383
Bank loans repayments (100,024) (150,125)
Bank charges (1,331) (930)
Bank charges amortization 928 870
Accrued interest/(interest repayment) on bankdpaet 13 -
Bank charges allocated to Nova Krélikarnia (seie 139) 319 -
Total closing balance 1,941 56,902
Closing balance includes:

Current liabilities - 14,803

Non-current liabilities 1,941 42,099
Total closing balance 1,941 56,902

For information related to unutilized bank loaniliies see Note 38.
For information related to new bank loans drawnisete 43.

Covenants on secured bank loans:

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company hasreached any loan covenant, which would expose th
Company for risk of obligatory and immediate repayinof any loan and has been able to extend altiegp

loan facilities.
For the bank loans the following collateral was gign:

* Ordinary and floating mortgages on Inventory, se¢eN20.

» Pledge over bank accounts which are presentecittimsolidated Statement of Financial Position ashC

and cash equivalents up to the amounts/installnrdirésamounting to PLN 3,115 thousand and PLN 5,246
thousand as at 31 December 2016 and 31 Decembgy i23@pectively.

Deposits guarantee for interest on loans, see Rihte

Assignment of receivables arising from insurancesagent and from the agreements concluded with
clients.

Subordination agreement on loans from related gmarti

Blank promissory note drawn by particular subsilieempanies with a promissory note declarationap t
the amount of the loan plus interest.

Advance payments of dividends by the borrowerd fuitirepayment of loans are not allowed.
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31.

32.

Loans from third parties

The table below presents the movement in Loans frimd parties:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Opening balance 2,911 2,737
Capital repayment (1,181) -
Interest repayment (336) -
Accrued interest 166 174
Total closing balance 1,560 2,911
Closing balance includes:
Current liabilities 1,560 2,005
Non-current liabilities - 906
Total Closing balance 1,560 2,911
For additional information, see Note 28.
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses
As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)
Trade payables 17,241 17,468
Guarantees for construction work 3,081 4,601
Accrued expenses 18,027 8,220
Value added tax (VAT) and other tax payables 1,911 7,656
Non-trade payables 622 629
Total trade and other payables and accrued expenses 40,882 38,574

Trade and non-trade payables are non-interestrigeand are normally settled on 30-day terms.
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33.

34.

Advances received

Advances received consist of customer advancesoftstruction work in progress (deferred revenue) an

comprise customer advances for the following prsjec

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Moko 7,446 46,564
Kamienica Jgyce 34,719 22,509
Vitalia | 1,851 -
Miasto Moje | 1,156 -
Espresso I, Il & llI 40,989 25,029
Espresso IV 6,393 -
Verdis 283 1,317
Sakura 884 931
Tamka 567 1,348
Naturalis 1,1l & 11l 522 302
Mtody Grunwald | & Il 383 11,516
Mtody Grunwald 111 2,473 -
Panoramika | & Il 769 4,540
Panoramika Ill 883 -
Impressio 678 2,493
Chilli IV 325 -
Other 286 332
Total 100,607 116,881
For information about contingent receivables fragmed contracts with clients, see Note 38.

Provisions

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,441 1,078
Increase/(decrease) (342) 363
Balance at the end of the year 1,099 1,441

As at 31 December 2016, the provision included etqubnecessary costs of guarantees for construstioks
amounting to PLN 1,099 thousand, whereas as ate®@kmber 2015, the provision included expected sacgs

costs of guarantees for construction works amogrtrPLN 1,441 thousand.
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35. Share-based payments

In February 2014 the Company implemented a long+-tiecentive plan (the ‘Plan’), addressed to setbéey
employees, which is based on the price performaftke Company’s shares (the “Phantom Stock PlaDh).

24 March 2016, the Company executed annexes t@hhatom Stock Plan as approved by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company’s Supervisory Board. Tharffom Stock Plan including annexes, which does not
assume any new issue of shares and which willestitrin any new shares supply is based on thewviolg key
assumptions and includes the settlement mecharsistastribed below:

i. the exercise price of one option under the RiranBtock Plan is PLN 1.60 which price shall be sifjd by
dividends paid out by the Company during vesting exercise periods. The adjustment mechanism apgtily
to options that are not exercised as of date afldhd payment (being the basis for adjustment)agmdies until
the last day of exercise period;

ii. the total number of options is 3,381,250 (whistthe equivalent of approximately 1.2% of the @amy’s
total number of shares), and the allocation ofa#tito particular employees was made by way ofparsge
decision of the remuneration committee of the Rezmation Committee;

iii. benefits were aggregated among the selected@mes (of the Company or of its subsidiaries) \dined
the Phantom Stock Plan through the end of 201&hath (a) 40% was awarded as of the date of thesidecof
the Remuneration Committee approving the PhantaokS®lan, (b) 20% as of the end of 2014, (c) 25%fas
the end of 2015 and (d) 20% as of the end of 2016;

iv. employees participating in the Phantom StodnRhaintain the right to exercise their optionsluhé end of
June 2019, or within 18 months since departurb@&mployee, depending which occurs first;

v. upon the exercise of the options, the Comparilypay the option holder the amount in cash eqoathe
difference between the exercise price and the wumearket price of the shares in the Company (“€ntrr
Market Price”) allocated to a particular employeption holder);

vi. the Current Market Price will be calculatedthe average trading price of the shares duringptkeeding
calendar month, whereby the average trading phieé be determined by calculating the total turnmoxedue in
PLN of all of the shares in the Company tradedrduthat period divided by the total number of sharaded
during such period (however, if the total valuetioé overall turnover in any particular month is &whan
PLN 100 thousand, then the Current Market Pricdl bleacalculated on the basis of the most recentrwonth
market average);

vii. in the event that the free float is less tHa0% of all the outstanding shares in the Compamg,Gurrent
Market Price will be established by a reputableiaibn company based on a comparable valuatiorons&n’s
peer companies listed on the Warsaw Stock Exch@raged on P/E and P/BV multiples);

viii. an option holder shall be entitled to subraipayment request during the first five working slay each
calendar month, provided that all employees musénke any trading restrictions related to the patehase of

the Company’s shares by Management and Supervigmayd members and key management under applicable
regulations, especially with respect to the obsweaf closed periods.

Based on the approval of the Supervisory Board)®2000 options were granted in February 2014 to key
employees, including the Management Board membérgapinski and Mr Gutowski, whereas in March 2016,
676,250 new options added to the plan, of which,237 were allocated to Mr tagski and 168,750 were
allocated to Mr Gutowski, while 270,000 options atlocated to other key employees of the Comp#rgsé
who joined the incentive plan in February 2014).

Out of the total 3,381,250 options granted, 1,187,6ptions have been allocated to Tomasz askii and
843,750 options to Andrzej Gutowski while the reniag 1,350,000 options have been allocated to dtbgr
employees of the Company. Of the total 3,381,5Gbop 40%, i.e. 1,352,500 options, were grantedwasted
on 3 February 2014.
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35. Share-based payments (cont’d)

As at 31 December 2016, the total number of optgmasted is 3,381,500, the weighted average fdirevaf
these options using the Black-Scholes valuationehadapproximately PLN 0.29 per option. The sigaifit
inputs into the model were a weighted average sheoe of PLN 1.6, the exercise price mentionedvabo
volatility of 35%, dividend yield of 5%, an optidifie of 1.25 years and an annual risk free rat6%f

The value of these options, as at 31 December 2@#631 December 2015, amounting to PLN 978 thousand
and PLN 630 thousands, respectively, has beendadlun the Company’s consolidated balance sheetrund
Share based payment liabilities. The change ivahee of the options for the year ended 31 Decer2b&6 and

31 December 2015, resulting from vesting of thessgient tranches as well as changes in the inptatghe
Black-Scholes valuation model, amounting to PLN 3d8&usand (positive) and PLN 72 thousand (negative)
respectively is recognized in employee benefiteazp (see Note 10).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no optiene exercised.

36. Fair value estimation of financial assets anddbilities

The fair values of financial assets and liabilitiegyether with the carrying amounts shown in tlimgolidated
Statement of Financial Position, are as follows:

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Category Note 31 De?esmat:er 2016
Carrying amount Fair value
Assets:
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables 21 38,995 38,995
Loans granted to third parties Loans and receivables 17 508 523
Other current financial assets Loans and receivables 23 4,480 4,480
Cash and cash equivalents Loans and receivables 24 69,056 69,056
Liabilities:
Bond loans Other financial liabilities 28 222,591 223,478
Secured bank loans Other financial liabilities 28 1,941 1,926
Loans from third parties Other financial liabilities 28 1,560 1,587
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses Other financial liabilities 32 38,971 38,971
Unrecognized profit/(loss) (884)
As at
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Category Note 31 December 2015
Carrying amount Fair value
Assets:
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables 21 6,082 6,082
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized Loans and receivables 22 4,093 4,092
Loans granted to third parties Loans and receivables 17 458 471
Other current financial assets Loans and receivables 23 4,198 4,198
Cash and cash equivalents Loans and receivables 24 99,531 99,531
Liabilities:
Bond loans Other financial liabilities 28 190,297 192,405
Secured bank loans Other financial liabilities 28 56,902 57,062
Loans from third parties Other financial liabilities 28 2,911 2,943
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses Other financial liabilities 32 30,918 30,918
Unrecognized profit/(loss) (2,288)
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36.

37.

Fair value estimation of financial assets andabilities (cont’d)

Estimation of fair values

The following methods and assumptions were use@stimate the fair value of each class of financial

instruments:

» trade and other receivables, cash and cash eguigalether current financial assets and trade dhero
payables: the carrying amounts approximate faume/élecause of the short maturity of these instrasnen

» short-term bank deposit — collateralized : the ¥ailue is estimated by discounting the future déshs of
each instrument using discount rates offered toGheup for similar instruments of comparable maiesi
by the Group’s bankers;

» loans and borrowings: the fair value is estimatgddiscounting the future cash flows of each ins&am
using discount rates offered to the Group for @imihstruments of comparable maturities by the @Giou
bankersThe own non-performance risk as at 31 December 2@Kcassessed as insignificant.

Interest rates used for determining fair value
The interest rates used to discount estimated ftasis (PLN denominated), where applicable, are tase
WIBOR plus/minus margin as at 31 December 20163nBecember 2015 and are as follows:

As at 31 December 2016 2015
Loans and borrowings 4.5-5.3% 4.1-5.3%
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized 1.3% 59%i.

Fair value measurement hierarchy

The table below provides the fair value measurerhimtirchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities:
» Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active marker identical assets or liabilities;

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includéithivv Level 1 that are observable for the assdiadmility,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectlye(i. derived from prices);

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that aue based on observable market data (unobserirghlés).

Quantitative disclosures fair value hierarchy for assets as at 31 December 2016:
Fair value measurement using:

Quoted prices in Significant Significant

Date of active markets ~ observable inputs  unobservable inputs
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) valuation (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value:
Investment property 31-Dec-16 - - 8,743
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
Loans granted to third parties 31-Dec-16 - 523
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
Bond loans 31-Dec-16 - 223,478 -
Secured bank loans 31-Dec-16 - 1,926 -
Loans from third parties 31-Dec-16 - 1,587

During 2016, there have been no transfers betweegglll and Level 2.
For information related additional information abthe significant unobservable inputs (level 3) Bete 16.
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38. Commitments and contingencies

Investment commitments:

The amounts in the table below present unchargedsiment commitments of the Group in respect of
construction services to be rendered by the generdtactors:

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Panoramika Il 12,171 -

Chilli IV 6,490 -

Miasto Moje 1) 33,114 -

Vitalia | 10,319 25,350
Espresso IV 23,301 -

Mtody Grunwald 111 15,450 -

Espresso Il - 3,409

Espresso lli - 22,890

Moko | - 8,115

Moko Il - 16,293

Kamienica Jeyce | - 15,461

Kamienica Jgyce I - 20,004

Panoramika Il - 9,466

Total 100,845 120,988

O The Company signed a construction agreement wigiereeral contractor for the Miasto Moje Il projeatrfa total amount of PLN 26,507 thousand.

The construction of this project is planned to camaoe during the 2017.

Unutilized construction loans:

The table below presents the list of the constomctioan facilities, which the Company arranged ifor
conjunction with entering into loan agreements wite banks in order to secure financing of the tonton
and other outstanding costs of the ongoing projeth® amounts presented in the table below inchie
unutilized part of the construction loans availaol¢he Company:

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Miasto Moje | 36,252 -
Espresso Il - 9,615
Espresso Il - 20,374
Espresso IV 31,391 -
Mtody Grunwald Il - 7,450
Mtody Grunwald Il 23,130 -
Moko I-11 - 6,391
Kamienica Jeyce | - 22,026
Kamienica Jeyce | - 24,938
Panoramika Il - 12,703
Vitalia | 27,949 -
Total 118,722 103,497
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38. Commitments and contingencies (cont’d)

Contingent liabilities:

The Company provided financial support to Ronson(J¥ in which the Company holds 50%) in its
performance of the project (City Link) to the ambw@agual to value of secured receivables (i.e. thakB
receivables with respect to Ronson IS under thenlkgility Agreement between Ronson IS sp. z @d. &ind
Bank Polska Kasa Opieki S.A. assuming a loan fgditi total amount of no more than PLN 140.5 miljoAs

at 31 December 2016, the balance of the loan stggpdry the mentioned guarantee amounts to PLN 2.5
million.

Contingent receivables - contracted sales not yeécognized:

The table below presents amounts to be received fhe customers having bought apartments from Ronso
subsidiary companies and which are based on thee\@afl the sale and purchase agreements signectheith
clients until 31 December 2016 after deduction aympents received at reporting date (such paymegitgyb
presented in the Consolidated Statement of FinBRoisition as Advances received):

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Moko 6,161 49,273
Tamka 2,662 4,251
Kamienica Jgyce 8,112 29,935
Espresso I, Il & llI 8,372 47,977
Sakura 790 2,436
Verdis 2,035 948
Impressio 2,276 3,271
Mtody Grunwald | & Il 22 7,429
Mtody Grunwald 111 8,520 -

Panoramika Il 733 8,176
Panoramika Il 2,234 -

Espresso IV 18,475 -

Naturalis I, 1l & llI 1,404 2,502
Vitalia 7,156 -

Chilli IV 1,173 -

Miasto Moje 10,672 -

Other (old) projects 811 1,708
Total 81,608 157,906
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39.

Related parties

Parent company

The Company enters into various transactions wétisubsidiaries and with its directors and exeeutifficers.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Compasyalso entered into a transaction with one of it
(former) major shareholders, Global City Holding¥/., involving a sale of a development project anduy-
back of own shares. The transaction which was coled on 23 December 2016 is described in this neltaw.

As at 31 December 2016, 39.78% of the outstandirges are controlled by Amos Luzon Development and
Energy Group Ltd. (‘A. Luzon Group’), while anoth&tiake of 39.78% is held by the Company for theppse
of redemption. The remaining 20.44% of the outsitagndhares are held by other investors includingddale
Nederlanden Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny holding lkeetw 5% and 10% and Metlife Otwarty Fundusz
Emerytalny holding between 3% and 5% and of thetaotling shares as of the date of this report.aly be
expected that as of date of redemption by the Compéits shares, the indirect shareholding of Arhagon
Development and Energy Group in the Company magase to 66.1% as a direct result of the redemption

For a list of subsidiaries reference is made tceNdb).

The main related parties’ transactions arise on:

» transactions with key management personnel;

» loans granted to related parties;

» Sale of a development project to and acquisitioovarf shares;
+ other.

Outstanding balances with related parties as d&dember 2016 and as at 31 December 2015 are wedecu
interest free (except for loans granted to thetjeenture Ronson IS sp. z 0.0. Sp.k.) and settlémecurs in
cash. The Group did not record any impairment oéirables relating to amounts owed by related gsuiiti
either year. This assessment is undertaken eaahcfal year through examining the financial positaf the
related party and the market in which the relatadypoperates. All transactions with related partieere
performed based on market conditions.

Sale of a development project to and acquisition aiwn shares from a major shareholder

On 23 December 2016, the Company sold to one qdriteipal shareholders, I.T.R 2012 B.V. (“ITR 2012
certain shares in project companies and propeudgpsther constituting the Nova Kroélikarnia projémt a price

of PLN 175,119 thousand, of which an amount of FA4\R65 thousand is settled by way of payment i tys
ITR 2012 to the Company. For the remaining valuthefsale of the Nova Krélikarnia project, i.e. PLAD,854
thousand, the Company agreed to acquire from ITRZh order to subsequently redeem) 108,349,18% of
shares held directly and indirectly by ITR 2012eTbtal value of PLN 140,854 thousand for the oWwares
acquired equals PLN 1.30 per share.

Of the agreed-upon payment in cash for the benéfthe Company (PLN 34,265 thousand), an amount of
PLN 24,365 thousand was paid to the Company on 28e@ber 2016 while the remainder (PLN 9,900
thousand) will be paid by ITR 2012 to the Comparithiw five business days following a general megtiri
shareholders of the Company in which a dividendieislared in relation to the financial year 201®nrl June
2017, which ever date occurs earlier.

Prior to the execution of the Transaction, durihg Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholdeld be

22 December 2016, the resolutions (1) authorizilg@ompany to buy back the shares held by ITR 2012
subsequently to cancel those shares and (2) watkingbligation of A. Luzon Group to make a pultéikeover
bid as a result of the Transaction were adopted.
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39.

Related parties (cont'd)

Transactions with key management personnel

As at 31 December 2016, key management persontiet @@ompany include:
President of the Management Board, Chief EtreeDfficer
Member of the Management Board, Chief Financiicér

Member of the Management Board, Sales and Magk®irector
Member of the Management Board

Shraga Weisman
Tomasz tapinski

Andrzej Gutowski
Erez Yoskovitz

Key Management Board personnel compensation

Apart from the compensation listed below, thereewvao further benefits, including share based paysnen
granted to key management personnel that wereggrahiring 2016. Key management personnel compensati
can be presented as follows:

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Salary and other short time benefit 2,032 1,844
Management bonus 2,550 671
Subtotal - Mr Shraga Weisman 4,582 2,515
Salary and other short time benefit 548 524
Incentive plan linked to financial results 657 173
Incentive plan linked to share price performanc# fraid) 122 (25)
Subtotal - Mr Tomasz tapiski 1,327 672
Salary and other short time benefit 334 318
Incentive plan linked to financial results 365 339
Incentive plan linked to share price performana# fraidy 87 (18)
Subtotal - Mr Andrzej Gutowski 786 639
Total 6,695 3,826

*  For additional information see note 35

Mr Erez Yoskovitz are not entitled to any remunieratrom the Company and nor from any of the Conyfmn
subsidiaries.

Previous Management Board member, Mr Yosef ShakedMr Roy Vishnovizki, was not entitled to any
remuneration from the Company and nor from anynef@ompany’s subsidiaries.

Share based payments to members of the Managemenbdd

During 2016, upon recommendation of the Remunaralommittee and approval by the Supervisory Board,
237,500 options under the existing long-term inisenplan were allocated to Mr Tomasz tiagki, and 168,750
options were allocated to Andrzej Gutowski. Foredaded description of the Company’s long-term moee
plan, reference is made to Note 35

Loans to directors
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, #eneeno loans granted to directors.
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39.

Related parties (cont'd)

Supervisory Board remuneration

The supervisory directors are entitled to an anfiemlof EUR 8,900 plus an amount of EUR 1,500 pmardh
meeting (EUR 750 if attendance is by telephone)irguthe year ended 31 December 2016, the Supeyviso
Board consisted of five members. One Supervisogr@8member has waived his remuneration and thusatid
receive any payment from the Company. The totallarhdue in respect of Supervisory Board fees du2ibi6

is PLN 339 thousand (EUR 77 thousand; 2015: PLNtBd48sand (EUR 58 thousand)).

Loans granted to the joint ventures
The loans are granted to the joint venture, RonSap. z 0.0. Sp.k. For additional information Bkxe 18.

Other

As a result of requirements pertaining to A. Lufamup, one of the Company’s larger (indirect) shateers,
whose shares are listed on the Tel Aviv stock egbathe first quarter reports, semi-annual repamts third
guarter reports are subject to a full scope revigwthe Company’s auditors. For the Company itdeding
domiciled in the Netherlands and listed on the \&farStock Exchange, only the semi-annual reportligest to
a review by the auditor. The Company has agreel WwitLuzon Group that the costs for the first ahatc
quarter auditors’ reviews will be fully reimburséathe Company. The reimbursement of audit reviestis
disclosed in Note 16 to the Company Financial &tatgs
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety afafincial risks: market risk (including currency rigkice risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquiditgk. The Group’s overall risk management progracuges on
the unpredictability of financial markets and se&kminimize potential adverse effects on the Gietfipancial

performance. The Management Board reviews and sg@eies for managing each of these risks ang éine

summarized below. The Group also monitors the nigmiee risk arising from all financial instruments

The Group does not use derivative financial insents to hedge currency or interest rate risksrayiiom the
Group’s operations and its sources of finances,laind has been throughout the year ended 31 Decet@h6
and 2015, the Group’s policy that no trading inriigive) financial instruments shall be undertaken

The Group’s principal financial instruments comerisash balances, bank loans, bonds, trade recesvaht

trade payables. The main purpose of these finaimgtluments is to manage the Group’s liquidity émdaise
finance for the Group’s operations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to thedap if a customer or counter party to a finanamskiument fails

to meet its contractual obligations. Financial imstents that potentially expose the Group to comagans of
credit risk consist principally of cash and cashiealents and receivables.

The Group is making significant cash payments as sgctwr preliminary land purchase agreements. The
Group minimizes its credit risk arising from sucyments by registering advance repayment obligstionhe
mortgage register of the respective property. Manant has a credit policy in place and the exposuceedit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Groupsdaot expect any counter parties to fail in megetheir
obligations The carrying amounts of the financial assets remtethe maximum credit risk exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reportintgdeas as follows:

As at 31 December As at 31 December

In thousands of Polish Zloty (PLN) 2016 2015
Trade and other receivables 3,239 3,368
Short-term bank deposits — collateralized - 4,093
Cash and cash equivalents 69,056 99,531
Total 72,295 106,992

The Group places its cash and cash equivalent®iamdial institutions with high credit ratings. Magement
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meebhligations. Concentrations of credit risk witdspect to
trade receivables are limited due to the large rarolh customers comprising the Group’s customee b@ke
credit quality of cash at banks and short-term bdegosits can be assessed by reference to extretit

ratings:
As at 31 December As at 31 December
2016 2015

In thousands of Polish Zloty (PLN)
Rating
AAA 19 12
A 50,933 83,761
BBB 14,974 12,452
BB 3,130 3,306
Total cash at banks and short-term bank deposits 69,056 70,590
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40.

Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont’d)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of freucash flows of a financial instrument will fluete because of
changes in market prices, such as foreign excheaige and interest rates will affect the Grouptome or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments, BuEs bank loans, bond loans, cash and cash equivaed
short-term bank deposits. The objective of marksk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while agtignreturn.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk @enebles and payables denominated in a currerney dtan
PLN to a limited extent only. As at 31 December @@hd 2015, trade receivables and payables dentadiima
foreign currencies were insignificant.

(ii) Price risk

The Group’s exposure to marketable and non-marletazurities price risk does not exists becausésttoup
has not invested in securities as at 31 Decembis 20d 2015.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Except of bonds series P that amounted to PLN 1mithe Group didn’t enter into any fixed-raterbowings
transaction. The Group’s variable-rate borrowings exposed to a risk of change in cash flows dushémges
in interest rates. Short-term receivables and dagadre not exposed to interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will nde able to meet its financial obligations as thaly due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to enswae far as possible, that it will always have isight

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, undeotb normal and stressed conditions, without incigrri
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Gsaeputation.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of fundisg a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tamnsiders
the maturity of both its financial investments afimthncial assets (e.g. accounts receivable, otimandial
assets) and projected cash flows from operatiohg Group's objective is to maintain a balance betwe
continuity of funding and flexibility through these of bank overdrafts, bank loans and bond loans.
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Interest rate risk and liquidity risk analyzed

In respect of income-earning financial assets amdrést-bearing financial liabilities, the followintables
indicate their average effective interest ratethatreporting date and the periods in which theyuneaor, if
earlier, re-price.

As at 31 December 2016

More
Average effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 than
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note interest rate Total or less months years years 5 years
Fixed rate instruments
Cash and cash equivalents 24 0.05%-0.1% 8,812 8,812 - - - -
Bonds loans 28 5.25% (9,889) (62) - - (9,827) -
Variable rate instruments
Loans granted to third parties 17 11.59%Y 508 - 508 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 24 0.75%-1.95% 60,244 60,244 - - - -
WIBOR + 2.5%-
Secured bank loans 28 2.9% (1,941) - - (1,941) - -
Loans from others 28 6.5%4% (1,560) - (1,560) - - -
Wibor 6M +
Bond loans 28 3.75%-4.25% (222,591)  (85,053) - (53,722) (83,816) -

™ The interest rate is calculated based on the ldtgstest rate calculated on the construction ctémtan granted by bank to the Group

increased by 7%, and updated at the beginning efyeguarter.
The interest rate is calculated based on the l&tdstest rate calculated on the construction ctéafin granted by bank to the Group
increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning efyeguarter.

@)

As at 31 December 2015

More
Average effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 than
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note interest rate Total or less months years years 5 years

Fixed rate instruments

Cash and cash equivalents 24 0.05%-0.1% 3,503 3,503 - - - -
Variable rate instruments
Short-term bank deposits -

collateralized 22 1.4%-1.5% 4,093 4,093 - - - -
Loans granted to third parties 17 10.79%Y 458 - 458 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 24 0.75%-1.95% 96,028 96,028 - - - -
WIBOR + 2.5%-
Secured bank loans 28 2.9% (56,902)  (8,969)  (5,834) (38,661)  (3,438) -
Loans from others 28 6.19%4? (2,911) - (2,005) (906) - -
Wibor 6M +
Bond loans 28 3.5%-4.55%  (190,297) (16,526)  (2,233) (82,682) (88,856) -

™ The interest rate is calculated based on the ldtgstest rate calculated on the construction ctémtan granted by bank to the Group

increased by 7%, and updated at the beginning efyeguarter.
The interest rate is calculated based on the ldtdstest rate calculated on the construction ctéatin granted by bank to the Group
increased by 2%, and updated at the beginning efyeguarter.

@)
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Financial risk management, objectives and polies (cont’d)

Interest rate risk and liquidity risk analyzed (ctd)

It is estimated that a general increase of oneeméage point in interest rates at the reporting deduld
increase/(decrease) the net assets and the statefreemprehensive income by the amounts listethéntable
below. The analysis prepared for 12-month periadsimes that all other variables remain unchanged.

As at As at
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN by 1% by 1% by 1% by 1%
Statement of comprehensive income
Variable interest rate assets 203 (203) 335 (335)
Variable interest rate liabilities * (646) 646 (834) 834
Total (443) 443 (499) 499
Net assets
Variable interest rate assets 203 (203) 335 (335)
Variable interest rate liabilities * (646) 646 (834) 834
Total (443) 443 (499) 499

*  The financial costs which are related to loand borrowing are capitalized by the Group to warkprogress. Such costs are gradually
recognized in the statement of comprehensive indmmsed on the proportion of residential units sibldas been assumed in the above
analysis that one third of the financial costs elated and capitalized in a given period is disetbi the statement of comprehensive
income based on the proportion of residential wsold of a given period and the remaining parthef ¢osts remains in the inventories
and will be disclosed in the statement of comprshvenincome in the following accounting periods.

The table below analyses the Group’s financialilitsds into relevant maturity groupings based dre t
remaining period from reporting date to the corttratmaturity date. The amounts disclosed in théetare the

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 December 2016

Less than Between Between Over
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Bond loans 95,009 60,064 88,670 -
Secured bank loans 131 2,793 - -
Loans from third parties 1,610 - - -
Trade and other payables 38,971 - - -
Total 135,721 62,857 88,670 -

As at 31 December 2015

Less than Between Between Over
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Bond loans 29,862 91,103 93,613 -
Secured bank loans 17,268 39,751 3,616 -
Loans from third parties 2,119 963 - -
Trade and other payables 30,918 - - -
Total 80,167 131,817 97,229 -
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Real-estate risk

Management believes that the residential market\akole in Poland is less saturated than in angratbuntry
within the European Union, including also the depétg countries in Central and Eastern Europe, himic
general provides for many opportunities for restdg¢rdevelopers. However, due to the fact that Bodish
economy is still experiencing many dynamic changesay be sensitive to potential up and down-tuilifeese
market conditions form an important and significaisk factor for the Company and for other resiggnt
developers, as the development process (includages such as the purchase of land, the preparattitzmd
for construction works, the construction processlitand, finally, also the sale of apartments) rake several
years from start until completion. It is importaiot understand that decisions taken by the Companst m
assume a relatively long-term time horizon for eacbject as well as a significant volatility of thprices,
construction cost levels and sales prices of amartsnduring the duration of projects which may haveaterial
impact on the Company’s profitability and financingeds.

Another specific risk is associated with the ragddelopment of many Polish cities, which very ofitevolves a
lack of stability of development plans which coslabstantially impact the likelihood that projectsparticular
sites are realized as initially desired or planr@dite often, residential developers are interestdallying land
parcels without zoning conditions or without a dgathaster plan for the area, which would allow foedter
assessment of the ultimate value of the plot. FPogssuch market opportunities may result in rekgiviow
prices of the land parcels. However, this strategy result in increasing operational and finandiks for the
developer. Moreover, changing development plant@fities could also impact the planned developraad
realization of utility infrastructure (including wex, gas, sewage and electricity connections), vigccritical
factor for the Company and other developers. Howefee a vast majority of land parcels, the Compiag
already obtained zoning approvals, which reducesrigk to the Company significantly.

Another operating risk lies within the constructiprocess itself. The Company does not operate stremtion
business, but, instead, it hires third party gdnewatractors, who are responsible for running ¢bastruction
and for the finalization of the project includingtaining all permits necessary for safe use ofapartments.
Important selection criteria when hiring a gene@htractor include experience, professionalism famahcial
strength of the contractor as well as the qualftyhe insurance policy covering all risks assodabdgth the
construction process.

Recent turbulence in the financial markets hasltegun a lack of stability in the manner in whifihancing
institutions (banks) have approached both reatesmmpanies and individual customers when appljong
mortgage loan. As the real estate business is e@pjtal consuming, the role of the banking sectud ds
lending abilities are crucial for the Company laging not only when land parcels are acquired ksat during
the later stages of development, especially dutiegconstruction phase. Moreover, the availabditgxternal
financing is a crucial element driving the demamddpartments, as the vast majority of our custsraeg using
mortgage secured loans to finance the purchasgaofraents.

The continued instability in the financial marketuses volatility and uncertainty in the world'pital markets
and real estate markets. There is a low liquidityel in the real estate market and transactionmetuhave
significantly reduced, resulting in a lack of ctgras to pricing levels and market drivers. As sute there is
less certainty with regard to valuations and mankaues can change rapidly due to the current nbarke
conditions.
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41.

Capital management

When managing capital, it is the Group’s objectisesafeguard the Group’s ability to continue asoing
concern in order to provide returns for sharehaldend benefits for other stakeholders and to miairda
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost ofiteapln order to maintain or adjust the capitausture, the
Group may adjust the profit appropriation, retuapital to shareholders, issue new shares or seditado
reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industy Group monitors capital on the basis of tharigg ratio
and leverage. The Group’s policy is to keep theiggaatio of the Group lower than 60%, and a lagerof the
Group lower than 50%.

Banking covenants vary according to each loan ageeg but typically are not related directly to tpearing
ratio of the Company but to the proportion of Idarvalue of the mortgage collateral which usuadlyequired
not to cross the limit of 70% or 80%. Moreover @@mpany is obliged to monitor its indebtedness ating to
the conditions of the bond issuance, which req@mongst others, that in each reporting periodGbmpany
shall test the ratio between Net debt to Equitye Ratio shall not exceed 60% however if duringReporting
Period the Company paid dividend or performed auy-dut of its treasury shares then the Ratio shell
exceed 50% (for additional information see Note 29)

During the period the Group did not breach anytefléan covenants, nor did it default on any otbeits
obligations under its loan agreements.

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt dividgdotal equity. Net debt is calculated as totatrbwings
(including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ t®own in the consolidated Statement of Financiaitiom)
less cash and cash equivalents. Leverage is cedduda net debt divided by total capital employestal capital
employed is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in @mmsolidated Statement of Financial Position plesdebt
financing assets in operation.

The gearing ratios and leverage at 31 December @0d@®1 December 2015 were as follows:

As at 31 December 2016 2015

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Loan and borrowings, including current portion 6112 250,110
Less: cash and cash equivalents (69,056) (99,531)
Net debt 157,036 150,579
Total equity 361,876 459,421
Total capital employed 518,912 610,000
Gearing ratio 43.4% 32.8%

Leverage 30.3% 24.7%

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are stiltgeexternally imposed capital requirements. Theege no
changes in the Groups approach to capital managedueng the year.

During the period the Group did not breach anyt®fdan and borrowings covenants, nor did it défaolany
other of its obligations under its loan agreements.
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42.

43.

Cash flow reconciliation

Inventory

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL

Balance sheet change in inventory 127,189 5,214
Finance expense, net capitalized into inventory 037, 9,411
Transferred from advance for land 3,698 -
Sale of project to (former) shareholder 319 -
Write-down of inventory (2,269) (226)
Change in inventory in the consolidated statementf@ash flows 135,968 14,399

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance sheet change in trade and other receivabteprepayments (28,552) (9,834)
Transferred to inventory (3,698) -
Change in Trade and other receivables and prepaymés in the

consolidated statement of cash flows (32,250) (9,834)

Events during the financial year
Investment in joint ventures

As at 31 December 2016, from the total amount aihogranted to joint ventures (amounting in total t
PLN 22,485 thousand) loans in the aggregate amofiiRLN 15,906 thousand are maturing no later than
31 December 2017. The short term loans grantediib yentures cannot be regarded as a part ohthesiment

in joint ventures and are presented in the Conatdi Statement of the Financial Statement undeertiassets
as Loans granted to joint ventures.

This change is a non-cash item and has no impathempresentation in the Consolidated Statemer@ash
Flow.

Bond loans

On 25 February 2016, the Company issued 10,00@ssé&fibonds with a total nominal value of PLN 10,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amounfLfd 1,000 and is equal to its issue price. Theesek
bonds shall be redeemed on 25 February 2020. Tidshzarry an interest rate composed of a basegat to

6 months Wibor plus 3.65% margin. Interest is pé&yaemi-annually in February and August until regéan
date.

On 17 March 2016, the Company issued 10,000 sétié®nds with a total nominal value of PLN 10,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®Lfd 1,000 and is equal to its issue price. TheeseN
bonds shall be redeemed on 14 September 2019. difus kearry an interest rate composed of a baseqaial

to 6 months Wibor plus 3.60% margin. Interest iygide semi-annually in March and September until
redemption date.

On 8 April 2016, the Company issued 10,000 serié®@s with a total nominal value of PLN 10,000utsend.
The nominal value of one bond amounts to PLN 1@@®dis equal to its issue price. The series O bshdl be
redeemed on 8 April 2019. The bonds carry an istenr@e composed of a base rate equal to 6 montherw
plus 3.50% margin. Interest is payable semi-angualApril and October until redemption date.

115



Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43.

Events during the financial year (cont'd)
Bond loans (cont’d)

On 14 June 2016, the Company repaid all outstarilomgls series D (15,550 bonds with total nomindle/af
PLN 15,550 thousand) in date of their maturity.I&wing this repayment, the total number of outstagdonds
series D amounted to nil.

On 15 July 2016, at the date of their maturity, @@mpany repaid all outstanding bonds series E5@Rl®nds
with total nominal value of PLN 2,250 thousand)ll®weing this repayment, the total number of outsiag
bonds series E amounted to nil.

On 29 July 2016, the Company issued 15,000 seridsoigls with a total nominal value of PLN 15,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amoun®Lfd 1,000 and is equal to its issue price. Theese@
bonds shall be redeemed on 29 July 2020. The beendg an interest rate composed of a base ratd &m6a
months Wibor plus 3.50% margin. Interest is payaklimi-annually in July and January until redemptate.

On 18 August 2016, the Company issued 10,000 s€riesnds with a total nominal value of PLN 10,000
thousand. The nominal value of one bond amountLtd 1,000 and is equal to its issue price. Theeser
bonds shall be redeemed on 18 August 2020. Thesbeaudy fixed interest rate equal to 5.25% p.serbst is
payable quarterly in February, May, August and av&mber until redemption date.

On 21 November 2016, an early redemption of 58,d0Gtanding bonds series F took place, with a total
nominal value of PLN 5,840 thousand. Following th&ly redemption, the total number of outstandingds
series F amounted to 221,600, with a nominal vafteLN 22,160 thousand.

Bank loans

During year ended 31 December 2016, the Compangeredd bank loans for a total amount of
PLN 100 million.

In March 2016, the Company executed a loan agreewi#m Alior Bank S.A. related to the first phasktbe
Vitalia project in Wroctaw. Under this loan agreardlior Bank is to provide financing to cover thests of
construction up to a total amount of PLN 27.9 moilli Under the loan agreement, the final repaymate df the
loan facility is March 2019.

In July 2016, the Company executed a loan agreemigimtAlior Bank S.A. related to the fourth phasketloe
Espresso project in Warsaw. Under this loan agreekor Bank is to provide financing to cover thests of
construction up to a total amount of PLN 39.3 miili Under the loan agreement, the final repaymata df the
loan facility is December 2018.

In August 2016, the Company executed a loan agneewith Bank BZWBK S.A. related to the third phase
the Miody Grunwald project in PozfiaUnder this loan agreement BZWBK is to providefining to cover the
costs of construction up to a total amount of PL12million. Under the loan agreement, the fingdayment
date of the loan facility is August 2019.

In September 2016, the Company’s subsidiaries ¢é&ddoan agreements with Alior Bank S.A. relatedhe
first stages of the Nova Krélikarnia project in Waw. Under these loan agreements Alior Bank isréwige
financing to cover the costs of construction upataotal amount of PLN 61.9 million. Under the loan
agreements, the final repayment date of the loaititfas is December 2018.

In September 2016, the Company executed a loarmgm with Bank BZWBK S.A. related to the first gha
of the Miasto Moje project in Warsaw. Under thiahoagreement BZWBK is to provide financing to cotrer

costs of construction up to a total amount of PLG\N33million. Under the loan agreement, the fingdayment

date of the loan facility is October 2019.

Commencements of new projects

In March 2016, the Company commenced the construetiork and pre-sales of the Espresso IV projebichy
will comprise 146 units with an aggregate flooramaf 8,100 rh

In March 2016, the Company commenced the constmuotiork and pre-sales of the Miody Grunwald Il
project, which will comprise 108 units with an aggate floor space of 7,1000m

In May 2016, the Company commenced the construatiork and pre-sales of the Panoramika Il project,
which will comprise 122 units with an aggregateflgpace of 5,800
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Events during the financial year (cont’d)

Commencements of new projects (cont’d)

In June 2016, the Company commenced pre-saleg @ith Link Il project, which will comprise 189 usiwith
an aggregate floor space of 8,808 m

In June 2016, the Company commenced the constnuatiok and pre-sales of the Chilli IV project, whiwill
comprise 45 units with an aggregate floor spacz @30 ni.

In June 2016, the Company commenced the construatiok of the Nova Krélikarnia I-IV project, whickill
comprise 106 units with an aggregate floor spac&0p700 M. The sales for this project were commenced in
July 2016. The Company sold entire project, foritmlthl information see note 39.

In June 2016, the Company commenced the construaiiok of the Miasto Moje | project, which will cqarise
205 units with an aggregate floor space of 10,930 The Company commenced sales for this project in
September 2016.

In November 2016, the Company commenced construatiorks of the City Link Il project, in which the
pre-sales commenced in June 2016.

Completions of projects

In May 2016, the Company completed the construatibthe Espresso Il project comprising 151 unitthva
total area of 7,600 ™

In June 2016, the Company completed the constructidghe Moko | project comprising 178 units withcal
area of 11,200

In July 2016, the Company completed the constraaiothe Panoramika Il project comprising 107 umitth a
total area of 5,900 ™

In September 2016, the Company completed the aanigtn of the Kamienica dgce | project comprising
144 units with a total area of 7,806.m

In October 2016, the Company completed the consbtruof the Moko Il project comprising 167 unitstivia
total area of 12,500 T

In December 2016, the Company completed the cartairuof the Espresso Il project comprising 155tsin
with a total area of 8,500

In December 2016, the Company completed the cartgiruof the Kamienica Jgce Il project comprising 151
units with a total area of 7,400°m

Land purchase

In May 2016, the Company completed the acquisitiball rights to a plot of land at Marywilska Sttée the
Biatolcka district in Warsaw with a size of 76,30¢.mccording to the valid zoning conditions, the tpis
dedicated for development of a residential multifgmroject. The total purchase price amounted it F36.1
million (net of VAT).In August 2016, the Company rapleted the acquisition of another part of plot at
Jaminowa Street in Warsador its project Nova Krélikarnia. Pursuant to a lprénary purchase agreement
entered into with the Sellers of the property d@mlaowa Street in Warsaw in June 2012 (the “Seljerie
Company had the right to purchase properties withtal area up to 118,400°rtfReal Properties”), provided
that the Sellers fulfil a number of conditions prdent, which included concluding a court disputeveen the
Sellers and third parties concerning some of tlepgnties covered by the preliminary purchase ageeeitthe
“Disputed Real Properties”). Due to the fact tligt above mentioned court dispute had not been uwdedluntil
May 2014, the agreements signed with the Sellethaindate did not include the Disputed Real Priggse(and
the total area of land initially purchased by them®any in 2014 amounted to 82,008)nfrollowing a positive
final outcome of the disputes concerning the DisduReal Properties, the Company purchased also the
outstanding plots of land (i.e. Disputed Real Prtgg) in August 2016, based on the same conditioaiswere
already agreed with the Sellers in 2012. The tptathase price for the undisputed Real Propertias was
settled by the Company until May 2014 was PLN G&iion and the price paid for the remaining plats, the
Disputed Real Properties, in August 2016 amourddeliN 17.4 million.

117



Ronson Europe N.V.

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ende31 December 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43.

Events during the financial year (cont'd)
Land purchase (cont’d)

In October 2016, the Company entered into a fimgk@ment concerning the sale of the right of peiget
usufruct of an undeveloped property located inGnenwald district in Pozrfa The Seller has obtained the final
planning permit (decyzja o warunkach zabudowy)esisoly the mayor of the City of Poznavhich sets out the
terms and detailed land development conditionstligs property and refers to an investment involvthg
construction of a building with residential, comwial and office space, an underground parking gaeagl the
necessary technical infrastructure. The Compargnig to build nearly 300 apartments on this prgpére
price of the disposal of the right of perpetualfustt to the property has been fixed at PLN 9.5iarland has
been increased by applicable VAT. According to #greement, the full price has been paid within ehre
working days.

In October 2016, the Company entered into a fimge@ment concerning the sale of the right of pemdet
usufruct of an developed property located in theudrdistrict in Warsaw. The territory of this propeis
covered by a binding zoning master plan. The pityg@mcerned is a part of greater area, whichasmd to be
purchased by the Company for the development of wtifamily residential project with necessary
infrastructure. In the entire project, after pursihg all real properties that the Company is irgt@ in, the
Company intends to build over 150 apartments. Triee pf the disposal of the right of perpetual usaf to the
property has been fixed at PLN 1.2 million to beré@ased by applicable VAT. The full price was phaydthe
Company on the date of conclusion of the menticagréement.

Dividends

On 10 August 2016, during an extra-ordinary Gendédaleting of Shareholders, the shareholders of the
Company accepted distribution of dividends as psepgdy the Board of Managing Directors and the 8adr
Supervisory Directors. The dividend in a total amioof PLN 21,788,800 or PLN 0.08 per ordinary shavas
declared and paid on 24 August 2016.

Sale of a development project to and acquisition awn shares from major shareholder

On 23 December 2016, the Company sold to one qdriteipal shareholders, I.T.R 2012 B.V. (“ITR 2012
certain shares in project companies and propeudgpsther constituting the Nova Kroélikarnia projémt a price

of PLN 175,119 thousand, of which an amount of FA4\R65 thousand is settled by way of payment i tgs
ITR 2012 to the Company. For the remaining valuthefsale of the Nova Krdlikarnia project, i.e. PLAD,854
thousand, the Company agreed to acquire from ITRZh order to subsequently redeem) 108,349,18% of
shares held directly and indirectly by ITR 2012eTtbtal value of PLN 140,854 thousand for the owares
acquired equals PLN 1.30 per share. Of the agrped-yppayment in cash for the benefit of the Company
(PLN 34,265 thousand), an amount of PLN 24,365 shad was paid to the Company on 23 December 2016
while the remainder (PLN 9,900 thousand) will bédday ITR 2012 to the Company within five businesy/s
following a general meeting of shareholders of @@mpany in which a dividend is declared in relatiorthe
financial year 2016 or on 1 June 2017, which ewate dccurs earlier.
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44, Subsequent events

Bank loans

In January 2017, the Company executed a loan agmewith mBank Hipoteczny S.A. related to the third
phase of the Panoramika project in Szczecin. Unhisr loan agreement mBank Hipoteczny is to provide
financing to cover the costs of construction up total amount of PLN 18.9 million. Under the Icagreement,
the final repayment date of the loan facility iscember 2019.

Land purchase

In January 2017, the Company entered into conditicale agreements concerning the acquisition af re
properties located in Warsaw, Ursus district, anid certain cooperation agreements. The Propetesovered

by a local zoning plan (Polish: miejscowy plan zsmmdarowania przestrzennego) which allows for the
development of multi-family housing projects on fiteperties. If the conditional sale agreementseaezuted,
the Company’s subsidiaries will become the perpetsafractuaries of the land properties which desped to

be used for the development of housing projectetad to comprise approximately 1,600 apartmerits.tdtal
sales price for the acquisition of the properties phe value of the work which must be performeeltow the
Company to carry out the housing projects (suchkvbaing the responsibility of the sellers) has bagreed at
PLN 82 million net. The individual final agreememisvered by the transaction are planned to be adadl in
stages by December 2019. The conclusion of thé figeeements is made conditional upon satisfaatioa
number of conditions precedent relating mostlyhi preparation of infrastructure and utilities utls a manner
that would allow the Company to implement the hngsgirojects in accordance with the adopted guidsliithe
Company paid a portion of the price amounting toNRI5 million net plus applicable VAT in Januaryl20
Subsequent payments towards the total price wilimagle in accordance with the schedule adopted &y th
Company and the sellers for the years 2017-2018.0dmpany’s interest will be secured by mortgagethe
properties, appropriate entries in the land andtgage registers kept for the properties, and tHierse
guarantees. The Company expects that the firse sitaghe housing project to be developed on theentes
will commence in the first quarter of 2018.
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Company Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Revenues from consulting services 8,394 5,075
General and administrative expense 4 (8,352) (4,283)
Other expenses (638) -
Operating profit (596) 792
Finance income 6 12,429 11,597
Finance expense 6 (13,299) (12,406)
Net finance income/(expense) (870) (809)
Profit/(loss) before taxation (1,466) an
Income tax 7 - -
Profit/(loss) before result from subsidiaries (1,466) an
Result from subsidiaries after taxation 9 65,997 19,367
Profit/(loss) for the year 64,531 19,350

The notes on pages 124 to 130 are an integral giaihese Company financial statements.
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Company Statement of Financial Position
After profit appropriation

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Assets

Investment in subsidiaries 9 499,958 460,890
Loan granted to subsidiaries 10 55,586 151,688
Total non-current assets 555,544 612,578
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 771 1,100
Receivable from subsidiaries 5,429 1,082
Loan granted to subsidiaries 10 21,308 1,682
Cash and cash equivalents 8,368 37,798
Total current assets 35,876 41,662
Total assets 591,420 654,240
Equity

Shareholders’ equity 11

Share capital 20,762 20,762
Share premium reserve 282,873 282,873
Revaluation reserve 3,556 3,556
Treasury shares (140,854) -
Retained earnings 193,249 150,507
Total shareholders’ equity 359,586 457,698
Liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Bond loans 12 137,538 171,425
Total long-term liabilities 137,538 171,425

Current liabilities

Bond loans 12 85,053 18,872
Payable to subsidiaries - 167
Loans from subsidiaries 5,001 3,310
Share based payment liabilities 978 630
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses 3,264 2,138
Total current liabilities 94,296 25,117
Total liabilities 231,834 196,542
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 591,420 654,240

The notes on pages 124 to 130 are an integral giatiese Company financial statements.
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 Decemb@15:

Share Share Treasury  Revaluation Retained Total
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) capital premium shares reserve earnings equity
Balance at 1 January 2015 20,762 282,873 - 3,912 41695 449,242
Net profit/(loss) for the year
ended 31 December 2015 - - - (356) 19,706 19,350
Payment of dividends
(see Note 11) - - - - (10,894) (10,894)
Balance at 31 December 2015 20,762 282,873 - 3,556 150,507 457,698
Net profit/(loss) for the year
ended 31 December 2016 - - - - 64,531 64,531
Payment of dividends
(see Note 11) - - - - (21,789) (21,789)
Acquisition of Treasury shares
(see Note 3) - - (140,854) - - (140,854)
Balance at 31 December 2016 20,762 282,873 (140854 3,556 193,249 359,586

The notes on pages 124 to 130 are an integral gittiese Company financial statements.
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Ronson Europe N.V.

Company Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN) Note

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

Profit/(loss) for the year 64,531 19,350
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the period

to net cash from/(used in) operating activities:

Finance income 6 (12,429) (11,597)
Finance expense 6 13,299 12,406
Share based payment 348 (72)
Net results subsidiaries during the year 9 (65,997) (19,367)
Subtotal (248) 720
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables

and prepayments 329 (381)
Decrease/(increase) in receivable from subsidiaries (4,347) (585)
Increase/(decrease) in payable to subsidiaries (167) (61)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payable

and accrued expense 1,126 1,569
Subtotal (3,307) 1,262
Interest paid, net (931) 4,139
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities (4,238) 5,401
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

Loans granted to subsidiaries, net of issue cost (53,900) (31,066)
Repayment of loans granted to subsidiaries - 32,800
Dividend from subsidiary 9 20,242 -
Net cash from/(used) in investing activities (33,658) 1,734
Cash flows from/(used) financing activities

Dividend payment (21,789) (10,894)
Proceeds from bond loans, net of issue costs 53,939 44,243
Repayment of bond loans (23,684) (15,000)
Net cash from/(used) financing activities 8,466 18,349
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (29,430) 25,484
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 37,798 12,314
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 8,368 37,798

The notes on pages 124 to 130 are an integral gittiese Company financial statements.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

1.

General

Ronson Europe N.V. (‘the Company’), is a Nethertatichited liability company with its statutory seft
Rotterdam, the Netherlands and registered at tadeTRegister of the Netherlands Chamber of Comnwitbe
number 24416758, and was incorporated on 18 Judié. 20

The shares of the Company are traded on the Wa8aek Exchange since 5 November 2007. As at 31
December 2016, 39.78% of the outstanding sharesar&olled by Amos Luzon Development and Energy
Group Ltd. (‘A. Luzon Group’), while another staké 39.78% is held by the Company for the purpose of
redemption. The remaining 20.44% of the outstandhges are held by the public.

The Company holds and owns (directly and indigg@cté4 Polish companies. These companies are actithe
development and sale of units, primarily apartmentsnulti-family residential real-estate projetdsindividual
customers in Poland and lease real estate to fhartles. For additional information see Note 1.bthe
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accounting principles

The Company’s financial statements have been pedpamder the option of clause 362.8 of Part 9 aikB® of
the Netherlands Civil Code, meaning that the actiogrprinciples and measurement basis of the Cogipan
financial statements are similar to those appliégt respect to the Consolidated Financial Statemésge Notes

2 and 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statemeptg)ept for the valuation of subsidiaries which eatued
using the net asset value method. The Company ¢islaBtatements have been prepared in conformitiy wi
generally accepted accounting principles in thehsigands (‘Dutch GAAP’), whereas the Consolidated
Financial Statements have been prepared in acamdaith International Financial Reporting Standards
('IFRS’) as adopted by the EU as described in Niote the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue from consulting services represents feagyed by the Company to its subsidiaries; this nmeas
eliminated upon consolidation.

Sale of a development project to a major sharekaer and acquisition of own shares

On 23 December 2016, the Company concluded anragreaewnith one of its principal shareholders, . P&RL2
B.V. (“ITR 2012"), under which the Company sold kBR 2012 certain shares in project companies and
properties together constituting the Nova Krélikarproject for a price of approximately PLN 175.1llion, of
which an amount of PLN 34.3 million was to be settin cash (PLN 24.4 million was paid to the Compan
immediately and remaining PLN 9.9 million will baid by ITR 2012 within five business days followiag
general meeting of shareholders of the Companyhiictwa dividend is declared in relation to the ficial year
2016 or on 1 June 2017, which ever date occursegarFor the remaining value of the sale of thev&lo
Krélikarnia project, i.e. PLN 140.8 million, the @pany acquired from ITR 2012 (in order to subsetiyen
redeem) 108,349,187 of its shares held directly iaditectly by ITR 2012, which at that date congtd
39.78% of the Company'’s share capital and carhiedight to exercise a corresponding percentagkeofotes
at the Company’s general shareholders’ meeting, tdta¢ value of PLN 140.8 million for the sharegjaiced
equals PLN 1.30 per share.

The transaction was conditional to approval by Exéraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders leld22

December 2016, accepting the resolutions (1) aizihgrthe Company to buy back the shares held /2012

and subsequently to cancel those shares and (2)ngahe obligation of A. Luzon Group to make a fwb
takeover bid as a result of the abovementionedéaetion (the “Transaction”) were adopted.

Reference is made to Note 39 to the Consolidatearn€ial Statements.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

4.

General and administrative expense

For the year ended 31 Decembe 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL

External service 1,566 975
Remuneration fee 6,649 3,175
Othel 137 133
Total 8,352 4,283

Directors’ remuneration

Key Management Board personnel compensation

Apart from the compensation listed below, thereengs further benefits, in the years ended 31 Deeer2d®16

and 31 December 2015. Key Management Board perb@mumapensation, payable by the Group, can
presented as follows:

As at 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Salary and other short term employee benefits 32,0 1,844
Management bontrs 2,550 671
Subtotal - Mr Shraga Weisman 4,582 2,515
Salary and other short term employee benefits 548 524
Incentive plan linked to financial resutts 657 173
Incentive plan linked to share price performana faid) 122 (25)
Subtotal - Mr Tomasz tapiski 1,327 672
Salary and other short term employee benefits 334 318
Incentive plan linked to financial results 365 339
Incentive plan linked to share price performanas (raid) 87 (18)
Subtotal - Mr Andrzej Gutowski 786 639
Total 6,695 3,826

* For additional information see note 35 to the Gohidated Financial Statements

**The financial statements include a provision fogrtain bonus payments and payments within incergian related to Company’s
financial performance. The controlling sharehold@ed vice chairman of the Supervisory Board disgitltsl 2.3 million of these payments.

be

No payment of the disputed amounts shall be matilesunh dispute is resolved among the parties. diteve and the abovementioned does

not limit any party from any legal actions and does$ derogate from any right of any party.

Mr Erez Yoskovitz is not entitled to any remunesatirom the Company and nor from any of the Compsany

subsidiaries.

Previous Management Board members, Mr Yosef ShakedMr Roy Vishnovizki, were not entitled to any

remuneration from the Company and nor from anynef@ompany’s subsidiaries.
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5.

Directors’ remuneration (cont’d)

Supervisory Board remuneration

The supervisory directors are entitled to an anfemlof EUR 8,900 plus an amount of EUR 1,500 pmard
meeting (EUR 750 if attendance is by telephoneYinguthe year ended 31 December 2016, the Supeyviso
Board consisted of five members. One Supervisorar8omember (Mr Amos Luzon) has waived his
remuneration and thus did not receive any paymemh fthe Company. The total amount due in respect of
Supervisory Board fees during 2016 is PLN 339 thods(EUR 77 thousand; 2015: PLN 243 thousand
(EUR 58 thousand)) and can be presented as follows:

As at 31 Decembe 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL

Mr Mark Segal 86 62
Mr Yair Shilha 92 69
Mr Reuven Sharo 92 69
Mr Przemyslaw Kowalcz 69 43
Total 339 243

(*) The amounts above were translated from EUR Ridbish Zlotys (PLN) using the average exchange Fatblished by the NBP.

For additional information about transactions withnagement Board and Supervisory Board see Note &
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Net finance income and expense

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL

Interests and fees on granted loans to subsidiaries 11,977 11,353
Interest income on bank deposits 452 244
Finance income 12,429 11,597
Interest expense on bonds measured at amortizéd cos (11,860) (10,611)
Commissions and fees (1,354) (1,354)
Other (85) (441)

Finance expense (13,299) (12,406)
Net finance income/(expense) (870) (809)

Income tax

No Dutch income taxes have been recorded, primbgbause current year’s tax charge has been offsétst

the carry forward of taxable losses from the pBsalizations of these carry forward tax lossesdaegendent
upon generating sufficient taxable income in theqokthat the carry forward tax losses are realiBased on

all available information, it is not probable ththe carry forward tax losses are realizable andefbee no
deferred tax asset is recognized.

The Company is not recognizing deferred tax assetsax losses carried forward in the Netherlandse T
accumulated Dutch tax losses available for carmwdéod as per 31 December 2016 are estimated to be
PLN 8,277 thousand (2015: PLN 7,420 thousand).
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8.

10.

Personnel

The Company did not employ any personnel during fihancial years ended 31 December 2016 and

31 December 2015.
Investment in subsidiaries
The subsidiaries of the Company are valued at ttediasset value.

The movements in subsidiaries are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Balance at beginning of the year 460,890 441,523
Net result subsidiaries during the year 65,997 34D,
Dividends from subsidiaries (26,929) -
Balance at end of the year 499,958 460,890

The Company holds and owns (directly and indirgcty Polish companies. These companies are actitieei
development and sale of units, primarily apartmentsnulti-family residential real-estate projetdsindividual
customers in Poland and lease real estate to tharties. For additional information see Note 1.bthe

Consolidated Financial Statements.

Loan granted to subsidiaries

Loans as at 31 December 2016:

Nominal interest Year of Accrued Charges Carrying
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL Currency rate maturity Capital interest and fees value
Ronson Development Finco PLN  wibor 6M + 5.05% 2017 1,700 3 - 1,703
Ronson Development Finco PLN  wibor 6M + 4.25% 2017 20,000 3 (398) 19,605
Ronson Development Finco PLN Wibor 6M + 4.1% 2019 5,009 6 - 5,015
Ronson Development Finco PLN Wibor 6M + 4.1% 2019 4,500 6 (56) 4,450
Ronson Development Finco PLN Wibor 6M + 4.0% 2019 15,000 19 (226) 14,793
Ronson Development Finco PLN Wibor 6M + 4.1% 2019 10,000 13 (162) 9,851
Ronson Development Finco PLN  Wibor 6M + 4.15% 2020 10,000 13 (166) 9,847
Ronson Development Finco PLN 6% 2020 10 295 - 305
Ronson Development Skyline PLN 6% 2020 7,350 3,975 - 11,325
Total loans granted to Subsidiaries 73,569 4,333  (1,008) 76,894
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Loan granted to subsidiaries (cont’d)

Loans as at 31 December 2015:

Nominal interest Year of Accrued Charges Carrying
In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PL Currency rate maturity Capital interest  and fees value
Ronson Development Finco PLN wibor 6M + 5.05% 2016 1,700 - (18) 1,682
Ronson Development Skyline PLN wibor 6M + 4.25% 2017 69,985 - (593) 69,392
Ronson Development Finco PLN wibor 6M + 4.0% 2018 28,000 - (336) 27,664
Ronson Development Finco PLN wibor 6M + 4.75% 2018 9,000 - (115) 8,885
Ronson Development Finco PLN Wibor 6M + 4.75% 2018 5,000 - (57) 4,943
Ronson Development Finco PLN Wibor 6M + 4.5% 2019 10,000 - (165) 9,835
Ronson Development Finco PLN Wibor 6M + 4.1% 2019 15,500 125 (271) 15,354
Ronson Development Finco PLN Wibor 6M + 4.1% 2019 4,500 7 (79) 4,428
Ronson Development Finco PLN 6% 2020 10 294 - 304
Ronson Development Skyline PLN 6% 2020 7,350 3,533 - 10,883
Total loans granted to Subsidiaries 151,045 3,959 (1,634) 153,370

The loans are not secured.

Shareholders’ equity

The authorized share capital of the Company cansisB00,000,000 shares of EUR 0.02 par value €Huod.
number of issued and outstanding ordinary sharest &1 December 2016 amounted to 272,360,000 (as at
31 December 2015: 272,360,000 shares).

On 23 December 2016, the Company acquired 108,84%tvn shares from one of its principal sharehalder
I.T.R 2012 (see Note 3). All of the treasury skagkall be redeemed during February 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a dividandunting to PLN 21,788,800 in total or PLN 0.08 pe
ordinary share, was distributed. During the yeadeeh 31 December 2015, a dividend amounting to
PLN 10,894,400 in total or PLN 0.04 per ordinargrgh was distributed to the Company’s shareholders.

According to Dutch Law, the Company has an amonat 6f tax) of PLN 3,556 thousand (2015: PLN 3,556
thousand) as legal reserve relating to unrealieedlts of changes in fair value of an investmeapprty owned
by one of the Company’s subsidiaries. This legs¢ree is not available for dividend distribution.

Bond loans

As at 31 December 2016, the bond loans comprisgaa principal amount of PLN 222,616 thousand plus
accrued interest of PLN 1,807 thousand minus cdsisctly attributed to the bond issuance (which are
amortized based on the effective interest methowjuamting to PLN 1,832 thousand.

As 31 December 2016 all covenants were met.

For additional information see Notes 28 and 2h&QGonsolidated Financial Statements.

Commitments and contingencies
As at 31 December 2016, the Company had no commithand contingencies.

As of 31 December 2016, the Company has issuedgtgas for bank loans granted to subsidiaries atimgun
to a total of PLN 2,527 thousand (as at 31 Decer2b&b PLN 16,898 thousand).
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14. Related party transactions

During the financial years ended 31 December 20d® 21 December 2015, respectively, there were no
transactions between the Company on the one haddt{sashareholders, their affiliates and otheates parties
which would qualify as not being at arm’s length.

15. Financial risk management, objectives and polies

For a description of the Company’s financial riskmagement, objectives and policies reference isentad
Note 40 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

16. Information about agreed-upon engagements of hCompany’s auditor
Information about audit agreements and the valuges those agreements is disclosed below:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2015

In thousands of Polish Zlotys (PLN)

Audit remuneratiof” 660 590
Reimbursed audit review costs (190) (179)
Other services 81 65
Total audit remuneration for the expense of the Comany 551 476

@ Audit remuneration includes amounts paid and du¢h&o Company’s auditors worldwide for professionaivices
related to the audit and review of unconsolidated aonsolidated financial statements of the Compang its
subsidiaries for the relevant year (excluding feedax advisory services). The part of the aueé felated to the Dutch
auditor amounted to PLN 249 thousand (EUR 60 thal)séor 2016 and PLN 177 thousand (EUR 42 thousaod) f
2015.

@ Costs in respect of the audit review of the Compafigss and third quarter reports have been reimduitsy one of the
Company’s shareholders. For an explanation referenceade to Note 39 to the Consolidated Financiate®tents
(under ‘Other’).

17. Proposed profit appropriation

For the year ended 31 December 2016, as at theofldités report, Management proposes to allocagenidt
profit for the year 2016 amounting to PLN 64,53buband to Retained earnings. This proposal has been
reflected in the Company's Statement of Financadition per 31 December 2016. However, in line with
prevailing dividend policy, management and the Boaf Supervisory Directors will be evaluating the
possibility of declaring a dividend during 2017light of the Company's financial position, takingd account

(i) the current and expected balance sheet of trap@ny, with close observance of the all balane=slnked

debt covenants, (ii) the financial needs of the @any aiming to be ranked amongst leading residentia
developers in Poland and (iii) changing market emrent.
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18  Subsequent events
For a description of the Company’s subsequent syarference is made to Note 44 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Rotterdam,
15 February 2017

The Management Board

Shraga Weisman Tomasz tapiski Andrzej Gutowski
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer I8a and Marketing Director

Erez Yoskovitz

The Supervisory Board

Mark Segall Amos Luzon Przemyslaw Kowalczyk

Reuven Sharoni Yair Shilhav
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Other information

Articles of Association rules regarding profit appropriation

In accordance with Article 30 of the Articles of #&giation,

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

8)
9)

the Management Board, with prior approval of th@&uisory Board, shall determine which portion o t
profits — the positive balance of the income statieim shall be reserved. The profit remaining dbalat the
disposal of the general meeting;

profit distributions may only be made to the extdrd equity exceeds the paid and called up pathef
capital increased with the reserves which must dmtained pursuant to the law;

Dividends shall be paid after the adoption of thnal Accounts evidencing that the payment of dinits

is lawful. The General Meeting shall, upon a pr@bad the Management Board, which proposal must be
approved by the Supervisory Board, at least deterrfi) the method of payment in case payments adem
in cash (ii) the date and (iii) the address or adsies on which the dividends shall be payable;

the Management Board, with prior approval of the&uisory Board, may resolve to pay an interim
dividend provided the requirement of the seconcdagraaph has been complied with as shown by interim
accounts drawn up in accordance with the provisicthe law;

the General meeting may, subject to due observaiitee provision of paragraph 2 and upon a propbgal
the Management Board, which proposal has been aepprby the Supervisory Board, resolve to make
distributions out of a reserve which need not tarfzéntained by virtue of the law;

cash payments in relation to shares if and in aagahe distributions are payable outside the étkthds,
shall be made in the currency of the country willeeeshares are listed and in accordance with thkcaple
rules of the country in which the shares of the @any have been admitted to an official listing on a
regulated stock exchange. If such currency is metsime as the legal tender in the Netherlandantioaint
shall be calculated against the exchange raterdigted by the Management Board at the end of the day
prior to the day on which the General meeting shedblve to make the distributions in accordancea wi
paragraph.1l above. If and in as far as the Companthe first day on which the distribution is palgab
pursuant to governmental measures or other exirargdcircumstances beyond its control, is not able
pay on the place outside the Netherlands or inréiievant foreign currency, the Management Board is
authorized to determine to that extent that theygayts shall be made in euros and on one or mocelia

the Netherlands. In such case the provisions ofitstesentence of this paragraph shall not apply.

the General meeting may, upon a proposal by theafiag Directors, which proposal was approved by the
Supervisory Board, resolve to pay dividends, or endistributions out of a reserve which need nobé¢o
maintained by virtue of the law, wholly or partiaih the form of shares in the capital of the Compa

a claim of a shareholder to receive a distribugmpires after 5 years;

for the calculation of the amount of profit disution, the shares held by the Company shall beuded.

Auditor’s report
The auditor’s report is taken up on pages 44 thnclg)
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